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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
moperty located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investment Trust ple (the "Campany” ai the
“Tiust”) was formed 1n 1905 and has been a dedicated
property invesior since 1932 The Company 1s an
Investment Trust and 1ts shares are premium histed on the
Landan Stock Exchange

BENCHMARK

The benchmark Is the FTSE FPRA/NARET Develoned
Furope Capped het Total Return Index in Sterling

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve iis opjective by investing in
shares and securities of property (ompanies and properly
related businesses on an interngtional basts, althaugh,
with a Pan-Eurogean benchmaik, the majonty of the
investments wali be located in that geographical area The
Company alsc invests in investment pioperty iocated in
the UK anly.

Further details of the investment Polities, the Assel
Allocation Guidelines and polices reqgarding the use of
geanng are sel out In the Strateqic Report an page 25 and
the entire portfoho 1s shown on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BrAO Investment Business Limited acls as the Company's
alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM”) wiin
porlioho management delegated Lo Thames River Capital
LLP ("the Portiolio Manager " or "the Manager™) Marcus
Phayre-Mudge has managed ihe portfolio since 1 April
2011 ang beer part of the Fund Maragerment team since
1997

INDEPENDENT BOARD

he Directors are all independent of the Manager and
meet reqularly 1o consider investment stiglegy, to momitor
adherence to the stated abjective and investment pohices
and to review performance Details of how the Board
operates and fulfls its responsibilities are set oulin the
Report of the Directors on page 41

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Higlhghts Tor the current year are set aut
apposite and histoncal Perfarmance can be found on
page 3. Key Performance Indicators are sel oul 10 the
Stralegic Report on pages 76 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts iis affairs so that its
shares can be recommended by indenendent Finzncial
Advisers (“IFAS™Y i the UK Lo ordinary retatl investors in
accordance with the Finanaal Corduct Authority (“FCA™)
rules In refation to non-manstieam investment producis
and intends to conlinue 1o do so The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restrictians, which apply to non-mainstream
investment producls, because ey are shares in an
authonsed nvestment frust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder information and delails of how to
irvest 1 TR Property investment Trust plc, includhng an
imvestmert through ain [SA or saving scherme, can be
found on pages 111 ard 12 This informauon can alse be
found on tne Trust's websile wyww lrproperiy com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Financial Highlights and Performance

Balance Sheet
Net asset value per share

Shareholders’ funds (£'000)

Shares in issue at the end of the year (m)
Net debt's

share Price
share price
Market eapitalisation

Revenue

Dividends?

Year ended
31 March
2001

217.97p
1,326,433
317.4
16.5%

392.50p

Year ended
31 March

- plirq]
Revenue earnings per share - 12.25p
Interim dividend per share 5.20p
Finat dividend per share 9.00p
Total dividend per share o 14.20p
Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total return®s +20.7%
Benchmark total return® +15,9%
Share price total returi*® +28.3%
Ongoing Charges™¢
Including performance fee +1.40%
Excluding performance tee +0.65%
+07.63%

Eﬁ!uding performange tee and direct property costs

£1,246m

Year ended

31 March

2020 Change
358 1p +16.7%
1,136,453 +16.7%
3174 +0.0%
7.6%
317.50p +23.6%
£1,008m +23.6%
Year ended
31 March
2020 ___ Change
14.62p 16.2%
5.20p +0.0%
8.80p +2.3%
14.00p 7 +1.4%
-11.5%
-14.0%
. -16.8%
+0.80%
+0.61%
+0,59%

1. Neldebt is the total value of Inan notes, lnans (acluding notiona! exposure to CFDs and Total Relula Swap) less cash as a propoition of pet assel value.

2. Dwadends per share are the dividends in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021. An interm dividend of 5.20p was paid in January 2023, A final dwidend of
9:00p (2020: B.80p) will be pard on 4 August 2021 to shareholders on the registef on 18 june 2021

The shares will be quated ex-dwvidend an 17 June 2021,

3 The NAY Total Return for the year ts calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company trom the relevant ex-dwidend date. Divdends are deemed
1o be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this 1s the protocol ysed by the Company’s benchmark and other indices.

4. The Share Price Tatal Return is calculated by refnvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company tram the relevant ex-dividend date

Ongoing Charges are calculated in accordance with the AIC methodoiogy. The Ongoing Charges ratios provided in the {ompany’s Key information Document are
calculated in tine with the PRIPs regulation which is different to the AIC methodology

6. (onsidered fo be an Alternative Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Historical Performance
For the years ended 31 March

200 2012 2013 2014 2005 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 m

Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)

NAV® 15.4 -8.5 215 22.4 283 8.2 8.0 15.5 91 A5 207
Benchmark® 15.2 -89 178 14.9 233 5.4 6.5 10.2 5.6 -14.0 15.9
Share Price®© 126 95 25.8 377 295 1.6 9.1 255 6.2 168 283

Shareholders’ funds (£'m)

Total 670 588 684 209 1010 1,065 118 1,256 1,328 1136 1,326
Ordinary shares 53 470 634 809 1,010 1,085 118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Sigma shares® 139 118 . - y . i N . -7
Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence per share)

Eamings 6.94 707 6.74 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends'® 600 660 700 745 770 835 1050 1220 1350 1400 14.20

NAV per share (pence) 20710 18360 21525 25494 31812 33556 35242 39564 854 35871 4797

share price (pence) 17770 15450 186.30 24750 31050 29750 31450 38250 394.00 31750 ?_92_.5{1
Indices of growth

Share pricet 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179 222
Net Assel Value®® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 191 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 110 n? 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPI 100 104 107 110 m 12 116 120 123 126 128
Benchmark 100 87 99 105 126 130 134 14 w13 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

{A) The NAV Total Retum for each year is caiculated by remvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company's benchmark and other indices. This is considered to be an Alternative
Perioimance Measure as defined on page 98.

(8) Benchmark Index: camposite index comprising the FISE EPRA/NARET Deveioped Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereaster the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capital.

(C) The Share Price Total Return 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares o the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.
(D) The sigma share class was launched in 2067 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012,

(E} Dividends per share in the year ta which their declaration refates and not the year they were paid.

(F) Shara prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(6} Capital only values. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(H} Price only value of the indices set out in (B) above.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 3
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reporting penod was very close to the
recent COVIC-19 influenced nadir of global equity markets
in Mateh 2020 Since ther equity markels have heen
determinedly focused on the future rather than reflecting
an the more immediate econamic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic. As a result, I'm able ta report
healthy returns foi the year with 3 net asset value {"NAV™)
total return of 20 7%, well ahead of the penchmark total
returi of 1599 The share price total return was even
stronge: at 28 3% as the discount narrowed over the year

Siock markets have taken greal comier! fiam the huge
amount of centrai bank simulus and state aid for botn
corporates and individuals Since November 2020, this
serise of supoor! has beer augmented by ophimIsm
foliowing the announcements and sabsequent rel'out of 4
‘ange of vacane programmes

The coisis has forced a dramatic change i (he way we work,
consume and relax Over the last year our managemen. team
has ponderad nol only the pace of these changes arnss a
wide 1ange of properly sectors but also their sustamabihty
once the world reverts 10 "the new normal”

Over the last quaries ol the inandal year under review
ana into the siart of the new gne, we Nave Seen yery
cramatic snare price movements as nvestors rotated
frosm companies offering the safety of secure income
towards those ofienng greater sk, particsiarly wheie the
comparies were ading atarge ¢iscounts 1 then asset
valde Your maracer's epoil wil' examie 1n meie de
how the portfalie structure has eyvolyes througr these
Pematic rotelinTs



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

tarnings for the year were 12 25p pel share, 16% lowel
than the prior year earnings of 1462

The headiine earnings per share figure 1s shightly deceptive,
earnings hefore tax were 24% lower than the previgus yedr,
but a significant tax refund and some further prior perod
wilhholding lax recoveries reduced the revenue tax charge
from an effective rate of 11.38% 10 2020 to jusl 19% for the
financial year to March 2027 Further details of this are set
out in the Manager's Report

The Board has announced a final dividend of 900p per
share, bringing the fult year dividend lo 14 20p per share
(2020- 14 00p) an overall nciease of 14% or the pnor year
divigend. The Board s conscious of the income aspirafions
of some of our Investor base ang, although this drvdend
is nol fully covered, the Company has sigmificant revenue
reserves avallable As long as the Board has a reasonable
sxpectation of income relurring to previous levels in the
medium term, the Board 1s happy o maintain a modess
level of dividend progressior
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REVENUE QUTLCGOK

within our portinlio, the manager antiaipates ncome

for the year lo March 2022 to be sphit into three broadly
equal parts with one third suffenng a reduction and In
some cases sigmihicant cuts or even suspensions, a third
with income ietuining to pre-pandemic levels, and the
balance offenng some level of increase We do nol expect
total iIncome levels Lo return @ pre-COVID-1S levels within
the current finanaial year although we do expect an
iImprovement relative Lo 2020/27

After allowing for the propesed dividend, revenue reserves
wik still amount Lo 17 18p per share giving plenty of
capacily for the board to supplement the dividend again

N 2021/22, providing a return 1o pre-Covid levels can
reasonably e anlicipated in the medium term

ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

200 I Benchmark Total Retarn [l TR Property Share Price Total Return % TR Property Net Asset Value Total Return

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 5
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AWARDS

The Trust was the winner in the Specialist Equities
category of the Citywire Investment Teust Awards. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising in a broad range of equities and alternatives.

. aTyWwiRe
- WINNER

ANVERTMENT TRUST 3430

TR SROPERTY

CGUTLOOK David Watson
L O R L B SR T
S IR | IR S e e i
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Manager’s Report

b\

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics pravides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Net Assel Value lotal return for the year 10 31 March
2021 was 20 7%, ahead of the benchmark total return of
15.9% At the imtenm stage, | reparted that Cantinental
European property companies had sigmhcantly
outperformed therr UK counterparts (returns of 11 3% v
2.1%) The second hall saw the complete reverse The UX's
performance in the second half was sa strong that the

12 ronth perfoimance of 19.3% {in GBP) outperformed
Contirental Europe at 18 7% (In EUR)

Theimtbiai impact of the pandernic on Eusopean real eslate
equities saw the benchmark tali 36% from the pre-Covid
peak of 19th February to the trough on 18 March 2020 Qi
Yinapcial year theselore stasted close 1o these depressed
‘evels and tre steady recovery since then s reflecled
the nealiny figuies for the year unde: review However 12
Is worth noling that collectively the sectar -emains nearly
15% oelow the pre-Covic peak

This extraordinary year has clearly been hke no olher and

the gulb e performance of the different real estate seciors
(and therr respectve hsted companies) requires e same

adjective The year can he neatly dividec 10to pre and post
the vaccne arrounceiment

From March 10 dclober nvesto:s focysec on owning
sustairahle, pancemic proof income suck as residertial,
supermar<ers and healthcare alongside ‘agisics,
warerousing and industnat wrere the underlyiag tenants’
busingsses Sad remained open and 10 Mary cases

were wirg fonsumer faang sectars sach as rata,
restaurants hole and leisure were shunned We diide aur
univesse of par Foropean [eai esiele (0moaries inio 26
Kespoke louos 2rd ovel the 7 ot from te rouge
B March 2020 ou ‘ogisiics S rcasingl graus relurned
Sadd German tesidenta —a0%

L<ietal fel) 452 anreat retyrrad ust 1<
} , .

o1

30E <3600 WSt

pregktbirnagh noogr s
the consymer fatr g seciors



sectofs had been sianding at large discounts given Lhe
market’s expectation of {urther assel value dechnes and
they enjoyed significant price recavery Slocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesoury, who had bath carned out
emergency <apital raises (more on this later), enjoyed
100% and 85% price appreciation lrom ther respactive
{pre-vaccine announcement) capital taise prices

The Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandermic with overwelghts to European PRS (private
rented secion) parlicularly in Germary, supermatkels

(UK and Nordics), healthcare (mainly UK) and logistics /
industnial across both the UK and Euiope These exposures
diove much of the relative outperformarce from tarch 1o
November

Lordon exposed stocks suffered particularly as office
waorkers have nol retuined (we estimale office ulilisation
rates al €25% versus a Continental avelrage of aver 50%)
and this combined wath the collapse in tounsm {bath
domestic and inte natioral) has tempaianly hollowed out
out global aty Dur UK oflice exposdare was concentrated
in decentralised offices through €LS and Mckay whist

we avolded London retail focusea names such as Capco
and Shaftesbury as well as thase businesses with short
occupatonal leases such as Woikspace

As the ‘relief / reapening / refiation” trade gathered
momentum, | closed our undenwelght expos.Jre (o
European shopping centres, bought hack into some Central
London retail and renewed our exposure 10 office markets
particularly those ciuas with the sharter commute times
tssentially | was stll shying away from the largest two
tonurbations (London and Paris) whilsy adding to smalle”
ones such as Madnd and DuBhn and maintaining exposuse
to decertalised ofthice seclors it the UK, Sweden and
Germanry

The nandemic has turned much on its head and i our
corner of the equity market It was the perfonmance of
Swiss property companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicted Traditionally a safe baven,
these stocks did robinitially recover from the farch iows
with investars focused on tne problematic selall exposure
of the largest listed companies We continue to be
underweight the group
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Anolher posibive surpnse has neer n self-storage which
reported very steady numbers thiotgh the worst of the
yeal Whilst our stock selection in the UK was correct
{Safestore total return «27% veisus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway success was Shurquard, the Contmental playe
returning +48%, which we didr’t own In our defence, the
stock enjoyed strong dermand from index lrackers as it
entered varnous benchmarks midyear

Mast of 2020 was an understandably subdued

period for M&A corparate activity with one particuiar
exception, Norweglan offices Entra {where we were a
top 20 shareholder) was the subject of a bidding was
hetween two Swedish listed piayers, Castellum and
samhallsbyggnadsboiaget (alsc known as SBRY Whilsl
resther successiully gained control, the share pnce total
relurn was 57%, our most successfulinvestment in the
petod

The sontfolio has some geanng [his was recuced in
Fedruary and March 2020 but has subsequently returred
to pre-pandenuc levels Why have geaning in volatie
nmes? The Trust continues o take advantage of its

closed ended stiucture and hoids a number ol thguid
small cap stocks These well-run companies (even when
exposad 1o outperforming subseclars) often suffer from
lirmuted invesior attenlion, being deemed loo small As a
consequence, N Asing markets they often underperform
therr larger brethren (in market parlance Lheir ‘beia’is less
than ane) adding some gearing helps compensate far
these lower bela neames Our expernence 1s that over Ume
the underlying property fundamentals will he recognised
and. If not, then the market will take them private or
merge them together Dur physical property exposure alsa
sits outside aur benchmark and additional geanrg ensures
that we are at underexposed to equIlies versJs oul
benchmark given that a oroportion of capital 1s invested in
physical property

OFFICES

01 all the segmentis of 1ne commercial real estate
lardscape. the future demand for oflices remains the
hardest to forecast. The two undeniable consequences of
the pandemic, for this asset ciass, has been the realisation
that employees of corporates of ali sizes can work
remotely (far long penods) if required and secondly thal

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 8
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Manager’s Report o ey

the next generation of ‘bestin class’ othice accommodcation
will be ulihsed very differently with tenants having new
priofities Built inte these demands will be the overarching
need for enerqy efficiency. carbon neutralty ang
sustamability through the ife cycle of the building

The take up ligures far the last year (across the 15 major
oiies we monitor) offers ittle comparative value given the
nability for pusinesses to physicalty relocate in many of
these markets rom Mdich 2020 Takirg 1ongon as a tase
17 poini, Sawills reparted that West Enc take up fell from
A4m 5 ftin 2019 to 17man 2020 Dfhce utibsatior rates
lhrough 2020 and 1to 2027 have vaned hugely A broad
iUle of thumb was (hat the larges the aty (ard the Tongel
the average commule nme) the lower the office utiisation
raie Gererally the smaller aties also had nigher levels o
coimmunng oy onwvate transport of where workers were
using overground public ansport Scandinavian and Swiss
ailes have seen almost normalised utihsation rates whilst
Londan and Paris remair sub 30% Looking forward. what
Isamportart o us 1s the amount of new space which was
scheduled to complete (construclion was Natied for vesy
short penads in most markets) and whether trere are
signs of demard as we move nlo the post vacane penod

L00<ITg a0rpss barope as a whoie, the combiaed effect of
educed leasing activily and constiaction completions fed
10bES INCredse 1IN vacandy 10 ar aveage of 699 (BNP
Ja 1a) This singie staustic cieary ides a wice range of
‘eve’s Umsurpusmg\,, Londor and Pans have expenenced
the greatest inueases from 5% to neaily 89 Hut Bubln
toilects the woogen spon” with vaca oy iIrtreasing o
gver 9% This 15 a good examp-2 of a smal markel wrere
a {iemporany) derand strike meets 3 nurber of large
completians 2rg e‘urnshments However the hisionca -
I favels of vagancy
have Insulaiec mos: maj«ers, S0 N
MG erments In me 1ems aCrossy the Garran
319 5. valen, edtid Gso, Amisterda ™ ang Stackhom

i many (ties pao o the sarderc

w7 NoCes:

5 reco ded

The deir.er, of new uffice burdings has a'sp 2een
daferrec, Larucalz oy for tall Buizings The 2w ondan

Sichirechy 95 Antaa Tai Bundings Sove, racordad

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 27% decline in planming applications for buildings

aver 20 storeys i 2020 when compared with 2019 Wwe
were surprised that tne fall wasn't larger but 73% of ali
applications were in the latter part of the year ard hints a:
developer confidence regarding demand for new build

investment demand has remained very resilient almost
regatdiess of shori-ferm weakness 11 otcupational
markets The weight of capital seeking real assels s

3 therme which will recur through this repart The nise

in the long end of the curve as the 1eflation theme
gatners momeatum (s proving very damaging far fixed
rcame structures High quality oflices - offering jarge ol
sizes - with secure income deliverng 3 5-4% net yield

15 atfractive versus negative yielding soveregn bonds.
Further up Lhe nsk cusve, appo:turishic camital also remans
very acuve and listed devegpment specialists such as
Great Portland Estates and Derwent Tonder have found 1t
hard to deploy caprial amidst fierce competition

The 2027 CBRE EMEA 1avestor Intentions Survey Righhghts
tondon as sull the most attractive atly foriavesimen:
In burepe wath an eshmated £40-45bn of globaf equity
Inokirg Lo he depioved into wne market across ail types
of Butdings This 15 1he highest figure since the survey
stathing tracking demand i 2012 Whilst transacion
voiumes slowed last year, the fist two months of 2621
’“ad:tlorah, a cuiet time) have seen volur-es reack
875m greater than the same penod ir 2019 Part of [ne
Amdw raction 15 that yields didn't compress duling
the e« ancertamty makirg the aty oo« rmuch cheaper
than other big Luronear ties Post the EU-UK Traze aro
(ooperanon Agreemert we execl 1his gap to maow

RETAIL

The *AS0 7 IFD data fo me 12 ~omthe to Meeh 2027 saw
Capl al ges {ali 12 89+
2o s} .' STOPPINg cemre s alles

P25 540 gver uc @57 12 mants e Miarms
2 naswe Tl the vaatior commamt, yere
beniad the umes dae o e reguiremert tn look at dee‘
Esserilalty, A¢ markets 1z published
ne oyt of dase Stacc marke's knows

2 @l oronent ¢ i @ senious
;((:xlsr,‘mr\ﬁ o

s fed
1 COMIME

eydenos I~ fast man

flaures w1 arreads,



this and retail landiords across the globe have been
trading at very targe discounts to their (no longer valwd)
last published fyuics

The woes of retall are well understood The pandemic
has accelerated tiends which were well established
Reapening ol econoimias will see foolfall return to
snopping centies hul the levels of sustamnable ents
remain the subject of marke! farces In the UK the loss
of a huge number of well known brands either through
bankruptcy or retreat kas resulted in avelage vacancy
levels ir shopping ceatres 1eaching over 15% (MSCI data)

[ris means the negotiation boot remaims fumly on the
tenarts’ foot and we predict a further 15% falls 10 rental
values. The one area where there are clear signs of price
stabilisation 15 1n retadl warehousing Gpen air wilh plenty
of free parking, this type of retar’ asset sits welin an
omi-channrel envicanment where fetarer margins are
maximised through chck ang coflect Affordability 15 the
eterpal walchword and whilst there are some parks with
very high renls (often fashion retailer led} the majonty will
see modest dechines i rental values dccupancy cost ratios
are also nol hurdened by escalaling service charges

ACrass Europe, the pictues 18 nore nuanced valuers are
even more conservative 11an ther UK counlerparts and
capitalisation 1ates are yel 1o move matenally. In some
countres, retallers have beer qiven huge amounts of
government supoort and as a result rental delirguency

s generally lower than 1n the LK In addition, many
shopping centres are anchored by hypermarkets {which
have remained open) and noi departiment stores (a UK/
Us concept no longer it for purpose beyond a handful

of tounist destinations such as Selfnidges and Galenes
Lafayelie) There have been lower leves of retaile
pankrdptcy across Centinental Eurape and we put

this down o two factors: less overrenting and the UK
insclvency legislation On this tatter paint, a huge number
of UK retallers have taken advantage of the CvA (company
voluntary administialion) 1o force landlords (generally 2
iarge creditor) 1o accepl coiporate reconstruciions whicn
urduly damage ther interests A recent High Court ruling
mvalving the overty indebted relaster New Laok, reinforced
this terant friendyy leqisialion
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Investars remain very circumspect lowards this asset class
Income msecunty has resulted in mvestors requimng much
higher initial yields. CBRE estimate that UK prime shopping
centre yvields have moved fram 4 5% to 7% 10 the last

5 years with poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
or teraliy unsaleable Retait warehousing has hucked tne
depressing trend at least from an investor perspective
Investors are increasingly confident that they are able

1o measure tenant affordabidity and this is the key Lo
delermining pnang. In the last couple of months we have
seen compettive bidding for a number of 1elail warehouse
schemes, something rot seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industnal and logistics take up hit a record 597 sq [t
it 2020 Whils: the pandernic suppressed demand ir many
other parls of the property markel, it clearly stimulated
logistics and businass activity which utilised industnal
proveity AMaZon agan accounted for a sizeable (70%)
porlion of the actity and 1t was s XL segment {250,000 +
5q Ity which was the major beneficary of the suiging onlire
demand The online share of fetail sales rose from 19 2% n
2019 10 279% 1n 2020 hiting a new hugh of 36 3% in January
2021 as we retumed 1o lockdown This will scale back as we
reopen bul the hoosl Lo online scaie and efficency 1s here o
stay Supply has responded but has beer more thar matched
y this demand As a consequence, supply has fallen to
734m sg it down 6% on the year, and this ightening has
occurred in every size brackel

Rertal growth continues to march on bul there has been
a broadening of growth rates across the regions Grealer
Londan and the East Midlands recorded growsth of over
79 whilst average rales acoss the countiy at 3 9% Such
strong rental growtn, the secure incoime and the positive
odtlook has dirven bath domestic and interrational buyers
{0 pay 1ecord prices for this sector whether i 15 last mile
urhan untts, XL brg boxes or terraces of wel located
industnial units Pame yields are 35 to 4% and even short
Imcome 15 not deterning investors as evidenced by the sae
of aur 89stal distribution umt at 4 3% imtal yieid with

35 years unexpired

The same picture of rude heglth is evident across
Conbnental Europe According to BNP take up ncreased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11
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14% across the 6 largest Furopean economies and vagancy
rales diopped fo 5 5%. ther lowes: and all against a
backdrop ot a sharp contrachon in GEP Again 1t was 3
suige 1N e-commerce and home defivery which drove
demand. Prime yields across furope tghlened 25bps in
2020, matchung the UK wilh no signs of decompression
even as the long end of the curve nises Investment
demand 1s Luly global with U and Asian institutional
caprtai competing with mare domestic fong term capital
el determined to perticipate in this structural shilt

RESIDENTIAL

As expected lhe sector has remained highly resihent
dunng the nandermic The majonty ol our investments are
i German and Sweadish nousing where rents are subjeci
to state control The remaming exposure s Finland and the
UK wnere rents are opep-maiket 1he former offer g eate
‘nLurM\ with rents ted toindexation whist the fatte
offers mote opportunity 1o capture marke! o owir but
with e commmensarate nsk 1" vacancy fises and maixe:
rents fall Dunng the crisis, the secunity of ircome and very
high occupancy levels resulied 1 the secior retaiming its
popu.anty Germai housing as exzenenced price nsas N
virtualy atoits sub-markeis

A5 explained eailier, Berlin remained the oulier

as the Siate of Berhn imposed a 5 year ret lreese
{Yuetengackel) The subs'ﬁqum Conshtusionai Court uiing,
ux-‘hm" orfrmed that rent conteg s are determined at the

‘ede.al, not Stdie ievel. came (st after the year end n
wd-A;\'F e are
es of both Ceasche woknen (4 4+ of net assets) and

(7 5% of nel assets) iesnondad posiiren

1m£[|0m of anartimer s n Berlin bad all byt rJ 121!
1635 -:Jeu-e\opefs awaied the oyicome of the appeal
2amzing the ¢hy ama’ Qb 0 yestan
Chfyogcerfina
0N, 0 Keep 1L b
oy ’wjhmj oy

w
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2 preassd vatt this outcome and the siate

thase which have not {studert accommodation, hotels)
Share price performance was an amplified reflection of
rot only the underiving property performance but also
the diamatic shift innvestor sentiment Self storage
share prces have tracitionally performed voorly in
siowing econamic cordiiions as the ncame 1s considered
shoil term and volatile However the pandemic has
focused investars” minds on the emerging strength
s sector where a small groug of aperatars {maostly
histed carnparies) have the hnancal muscle 1o dominate
the price comeanson wehsites Anoher emerging trend
nas heen the mcreasing busmess usage of a praduct
traditionally seen as the domain of pnvate customers
Businesses have seen the meits of immediate, hassle fee
access to short or fonqeu term starage The suppiy chain
disruption aunng the patdemic heighlened the neea fol
space as the mantia became a hittle maore Just In case and
aitle less just In tme Oui self stolage group refurned
«46% from the low pornt (18th karch 2020) o the erd
i Geroher However, from November 2020 o the end of
Maich 2021 they rave collechivaly retaried just 41%
A classic example of 4 swilch 10 senhmert as nvesios
rotated eway fror De Cowid relative wirners” group mla
the value n1ames which nad ungeoerfarmed and looked
very cheap on DISLoTc mencs

T anather alternatives sub-sector we expenencad the
torplete reverse Studert accommodalios businesses
suffereg a coapse 1IN mcome and Unite (our anty
exposdie) fed the 1e!d in ~efunding rents which was the
Loed PR shiaegy Dt depm:- ted they lop Ine 17e wel,

documented dificues fom studerss thiough the .asl
L0 40308 TIC years ard e compete 1abity (o0 mary
04215235 students 1o enie) phusica'ly 1T oactad investor
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Income REIT raised a tolal of £490m n three separale
transactians through the year and now nas a market

Cap ol uver FO00M. Qibus also ased capilal (SEK

00m) 1N two tranches to make (urther acguisitions. The
\arger supermarket operators nave been able to attract
customers through their online netwark which the hard
discounters {Lidl, Ald) are not able to offer Volumes

and margins will normalise post the pandemic but these
aperators have had the ocopartunity te prove Lhe resihence
of their omni-channel model which utilses last mile
distabution fiom Ltheir network of stores 1t 1s one of the
few pants of the retail landscape where physical stores aie
truly integral to the onhine Jjourney

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remained busy on debdt refinancings
throughout the pandemic and the huge amount of central
bark support and government stimulys ensured a healthy,
nqud markel where priang did not weaken According to
EPRA. €15 2br was farsed in 2019 al an average coupon of
18% and 2020 saw €15 6bn at a cosl of 16% These figuies
are not direclly comparacle as the mix of debt offenings in
edach penod was different hut they are a clear indicalor as to
the health and onice stabiiity in the debt markets German
residential companies were again busy with vonovia raising
€2 5br1r four transactions borrowing 10-year money al 1%
Laler in October, Geara, Eurape’s largest office REIT raised
€200m 17 3 2034 term bond at 0 86%.

Larly in the ¢risis, we saw a number of stiong businesses
lrading at premiums raise equity cagilal for opportunistic
expansion. This was in sectors with clear underlying
demand, namely healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Prmary
Health Properties), seff-starage (Big vellow), logistics/
Inqusiial (Londontetnic, Seqro, YGI* ), supermarkets
{Supermarket Income REIT, Cibus) and Gerran residential
{Monovia, ADO Properties. TEGY The Autumin saw
opportunistic rases in Sweden and Nonway (8alder,
Klovern and Noiwegian Propeities) a reqion which had
expenenced low levels of ockdown restrictrans More
recently i February and March this vedl we saw renewed
activily 10 the UK, as the vacare rollout improved
sentiment, with raises from Target Healthcare, LX! Tnilax
Eutohox and Supeimarkel Income REIT agamn Continentai
buropean faises 1n 2021 have so lar been cealred to
heallhcars (Cofimmmao) and stucenl accommodation (Xior)

ws
b
)
t
m
=
[}
=
m
-
=3
-
=]

Post the summer we saw the beginning of ar expected
surge of maore defensive raises as companies finakly
came under cashflow and valuation pressure. 1A the end
it was just a handful of retall focused names who had
been mismanaging therr balance shests long before

the pandermic Hammerson's L&00m raise effectively
recapitalised the balance sheet with a 24 for 1 rights i1ssue
accompanied by the {previousty announced) departure ol
the CEC completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Charr,
CED and CFO In late October, Shaftesbury announced a
£300m plaang and cper offer Looking back their Limung
was spectacularly unfortunate a5 the announcement of the
st vacanes came less thaa a fortmight later

These game changing announcements iImmediatery
altered expectations and there 15 nowhere better to
ilfustrate the point than tne corporate saga at Unibail-
Rodamca-westhietd (URW) URW had announced a €9bn
‘Reset’ plan comprising €3 5bn capital raise. dividend
cancellation and @ manned €4bn of disposals A group

of activist shareholders lead by Lean Bressler (the (RO

of Unihan from 1992 1o 2006) {aunched a campaign to
nppose these AGM proposals ard launch an alternative
strateqy which did not include e deeply discounted capital
raise They proposed the sale ol Lhe US (ex westhield)
porticiio and a returm ta thelr roots as an owner of

prime European shopping centres. Their uming was
farlunate, with the 10th November AGMW coming just
after the vataire announcement and the improvement in
investor sentiment even for deeply iIndebted businesses
Essentially convinaing investoes that they dida't need

to put ‘good maney after bad” and that the self help
stiatagy wou'd succeed They were successiulin therr
campalgn and shareholders vated against the Reset’
pian This led to the geparture of the Chairman, CEO

and CFO and the promobion of existing senior managers
lo the Board The share pnce, which had troughad al

€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the dosing
af shart positions This cofporate tale neatly encapsulates
the dramatic change 0 mveston sentiment (and pricng
af previously unloved businesses) which we saw from
November anwards

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

tarnover {purchases and sales divided by two) totalled
£468m equating 1o 36% of the average net assets over
the penod This was broadly in line with 1ast year’s

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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Manager’s Report o~r s ces

we ngreased the capacity on our ICBC loan faality duning
the year and the ;emaining loans were renewed at
existing levels We did see small increases on margins
on some renewvals We also fooked at the potenlial to
take out new or extend our longer-term dent. Qur Euro
denominated loan note 1s due for repayment in 2026 and
the Sterling note in 2031, however the flexibihty of the
snort- term (acilities 15 valuable n micre volatile markets
and has cerlainly worked well Lor us 10 the cunent year

We conuinue o explore new oplians 1o all markets

OUTLOOK

As economies emeige from the gip of the pangemic,
yiveslors have focused on assessing whelhe the damage
{or growin) was temporary. lonrger iasiing o permanent
Real estate irvestors are no exception and ihe ~ange

of pemiums / discounts 1o rel assel values of ysted
companies highaghts the breadth of expecations across
the property spectium The difficulty is that trere s no
precedent for the profile of recovery in tenant demand
aciass sa much af this asset dlass early existing
structural shifis have been accelerated ard new ones have
emerged vmrh Tay plove Mare permanent than Le
maixets curentty expect Al of this uncertainty ieads s 1o
focus o7 income auﬁamfibw\n\, a1d those markets wheare -
if demand does i2lurn - supply 15 constraned

Whilst tenant demdnd 1s hard Lo gauge we da beneliy
from g denigr fizanang environment. Debi markets zre as
accommadating as they have ever been, even if the long
end of e curve 1S isINg We see no reaso [of margins 1o
viaden 1 the tear e snflationary Liessutes are bullding
and fixed ircome assel values reflect these eqpatialiom
Propery offersncome which s ed eithes directy
findex-"Inged) ar ndirecty (etar graseth] to ecoro i
SAPATIIAN SoTiernonas o iemein tocased or areds
wirerg thatincore s kath sustainab,e 2rg where 1t g
growTr

Line aeat BT owe Am o mantain (he
privaie enied rasidennal secion (parncal:
27179 Sweden] g5 the mearet nuries 1o 0
oty the guelit, of those earmings pat also

Groswin piotile There s nsk - in Germary H*a

VARG CSF T JoveTTmen Wowoua 3

ADOSUTR 16 e
$ N Cermany
Wzl ng:
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federal law resulting in local cties getung more control
avel renls Howevel the rent freeze m Berlin {over the
last 18 monthsy resuited in 3 reduction i the aumber of
available apartments as well 35 a slowing in the pace of
new apartment delivery We Liust that commaon sense
will prevall over poliicai dogma. Elsewhere, undervalued
ncorne streams are evidept i supermarkels and in

parts af the healihcare markel Algngside tndex-linked
sustanabilily we will also mantain expasure to the
greatest giow:h opportuniies The structural shifts in
retall benaviowr are shill ongomg Evolwlion in the speed
of delivery and past pardemic supply chain dynamics

will gnive growlh across the logishcs landscape lior big
box" talast mile” we will continue to own the developers
where we see Increases 1t the vatue of landbanks as well
&y groveng develonment margims nvestor demand for the
erg product shows ne sign of abating

Office markets wiil remain volatile Busimesses wiil spend
fime wworking out Ih@u reqairements 17 g post Daademic
world nteraction cotiaboration will drive oflice usage
Tasks thai can e 'fu‘hlfed without physical interaciion sl
be umetabled for ;emate working A new balance will
develop with one sure hie certanty, \he prermium being
attached 10 bestir dlass newly bl share with complele

environmental credentiais Ueveopers will respond 1o
this demand and we expect an ecceleramen in builgings
pe1ng sdertifiad for refuriisment earher than preyigushy
envisaged Obsolescence of the swsting office stock will
accelerate

Posy e year endim early May, STvogven Propestiss
arrouncec “rat an affer of 3227 ser skare from
Siackstare, g 23w sreram o the last pudlisned WAY
hzd the suppatt of the baard Tois compary 1as a 1arga
stetegic landbank, 2 migh qua ity odistics pw itioilg and
A4 GTOWINY hr\ ebuliding unit and wirss it wias trading
£'0se W IS agset valde, o IS

Ui oer of

urdevaues T’WS 15 2erminder, 3y $IAel 1 a o

DrEeI0JS 12071, that the deptm of Do 2quit, a|'7(1 debyt

avaten ity unde. pins sted compAny L2 J2hions

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fana Manager
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Portfolio

Distribution of Investments
as at 31 March

2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 By 000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 304
UK Investment Properties ) 83,071 5.9 94,510 8.1
UK Total 478,715 34.2 446,698 38.5
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 65.8 708,597 611
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 100.0 1,155,295 99.6
- CFD {creditor)/debtos’ (141) - 8,698 07
- TRS creditor? - - {3,808) ©.3)
Total Investment Positions 1400375 1000 160,185 100.0
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
2021 won 2020 2020
£'000 % £'000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 289
- CFD exposure® 45,441 29 32,257 26
- TRS expaosure* - - 6,598 0.5
UK Investment Properties 33,01 5.5 94,510 78
UK Total 524,156 34.0 485,553 398
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
-4CFP PTFRQSP@_}‘#A L 100,560 6.5 24,47 2.0
Total investment exposure’ 1546517 1000 12862 100.0
Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March
201 2020 2079 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Total investments £1,401 £1,155m £1,291m £1,316m £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shares 28% % 33% 3% 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally vaiued) 6% 8% &% 7% 8%
Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March
2021 2021 2020 2020
(CTULED AT sl Company  Benchmark
USROS UGV S S— s — % % %
GBP 279 28.3 270 268
EUR 51.2 50.9 53.0 531
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 19
SEX 129 12.9 .o n3
NOK 13 1.3 1.1 0.9

Gross velue ot CFD positions.
Gross value of TRS position.

[V - VERY ST

Net unrealised (loss)/gain on CFD ceniracts held as balance sheet {creditor)/debtor.
Net uarealised loss on tetal return swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheet creditor

Total investments illustrating market exposure including the gross vatue of CFD and TRS positiens.

I UK Securities

B uK Property
¢ Continental Europe

[ Equities
Il UK Property

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Investment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2021

Austria
CA Immobilien

Belgium

Warehousing and Distribution de Pauw
Aedifica

Cofinimmo

VGP

Xior

Care Property

Montea

Intervest Offices & Warehouses
wereldhave

Finland
Kojamo

Ctyeon

France
Argan
Gecina
Covivio
Klépierre
Altarea

Germany

vonovia

LEG

Deutsche Wohnen
Aroundtown

VIB Vermoegen
TAG Immobilien
Alstria

Deutsche Euroshop

Ireland
Hibernia REIT
trish Residential Properties

Netherlands
Eurocornmercial Properties
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield
NSI

Norway
Entra

Spain
Arima Real estate
Merlin

18 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

9,092

9,092

24,171
16,502
13,677
8,070
5,926
4,841
2,329
1,923
247

78,286

17,500
2,170
19,670

53,987
24,036
13,457
10,364

1,351

103,195

145,982

63,904
54,499
39,306
37,980
33,294

3,8M

5,283

389,059

20,998
2,990

23988

25,077
14,499

4,099
43,675

16,199
16,199

21,102
19,901

Market
value

%

0.6

0.6

18
1.2
1.0
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1

Y

12

0.2

14

39
17
14
0.7

01

74

0.4
4.6
39
28
27
24
0.6
0.4

78

15

02
Y

1.8
10

0.3
31

1.2

2

1.5
14

41,003 29

Sweden
Kungsleden
wihlborgs
Cibus
Fabege
Castellum
Fastighets Balder
Nyfosa
Catena
Samhalls
Pandox

Switzerland
PSP

United Kingdom
SEGRO

Derwent London
Safestare Holdings
Landsec

Stenprop

Phoenix

Unite Group

Sirius

Picton

CLS Hofdings
Londonmetric Property
McKay Securities
Secure Income REIT
Supermarket Income REIT
Tritax Eurobox

PRS REIT

Assura

Target Healthcare
Primary Health Properties
Atrato Capital

Capital & Regional
Capital & Counties

Direct Property

CFD Pasitions

Total Investment Positions

Cormpanies shown by coustry of iisting

36,061
23,390
18,201
17,594
16,805
16,216
12,008
8,933
3,737
2,690
155,635

41999
41,999

60,357
33,584
32,193
31,327
30,477
25,213
25,143
22,241
21,330
20,077
19,903
18,104
15,551
9,614
7,634
6,189
5,194
4,418
3,848
1,468
1,062
n7
395,644

83,071

(147)

1,400,375

Market

value

25
17
13
12
12
12
09
0.6
03
0.2
n1

30
30

43
24
23
2.2
2.2
.8
1.8
1.6
15
14
14
13
1
07
0.6
0.4
0.4
0.3
03
i3]
01
01

283

59

0.0

100.0



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA {(GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value  £146.0m (£144.4m)
% of investment

portfaliot 9.4%  (1.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.7%)

Share price €55.70  (€44.86)
Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EUR56.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%} and
Austria (5%). Vonaovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
portfolio. The company is involved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%) and its recurring sales program
(5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject 1o strict requiations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia’s management has
been particularly pro-active with public
autharities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which shouid
allow them ta benefit from critical paolitical
goodwill in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
defivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return (computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The fike for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resifient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustrment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Mgples

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

31 March
i 2020

-S—h;réh_(nnlding valye £67.8m (£38.7m)
% of investment .

portioliot 44%  (3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6% {0.5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p)

LEG

3. LEG (GERMANY)

31 March
e i
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Sharehoiding value  €£63.9m  {£75.3m)
% nf investment

portfolio? 4.1% (6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €112.2  (€102.7)

Seqro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and Is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). in
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbatance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to
deal with the growth in e-commerce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group's largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have a lower, but stifl
positive, rental growth outlock (and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong inceme. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at vields
significantly in excess of investment
values (c.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAY growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a German residential cormpany
tocused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. It is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and €
locations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as wel
as their existing platform still within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed lo regulatory risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EUR5.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macro-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management
on the liabilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum target set at 43% for 2021),
an average debl maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

= 1he percertace of investmert porifaiio posit ons set owl abeve relude exposcies througn CHS fer a0tk the irenedual pes tens and the portfalio
= he investment Fortiong by Counlry positors set oot o0 page 18 are the physita neidirgs arwy irclLded i the nvestments he ¢ at ko valie ©the dalance Sheet The
prat 1 ar loss posdions on the CHD contracts {1 e not the irvestment expesure) gre ¢lso showr ar page "8 «nc are rcluded 1 the Basance Sheet as deblors o creditors
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments . rir <~

DEUTSCHE
W  WOHNEN

4, DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
{GERMANY)

31 March
S 2020

Shareholding value £54.5m  (£36.4m}
% of investment o

partfaliot 3.5% (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.3%)
Shate price €39.78  (£34.77)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany's second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Berlin (76%

of the total purtfolio FV). The company
awns a high-quality portfolio consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a combined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Groyp EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investmnent cost of EUR6.9bn
(27% of GAV) split between build-to-hold
(EURA4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline) and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).

in a context of the implementation of
the rental freeze in Berlin, the company
showed a resilient financial perfermance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Beflin portfolio was valued

at EUR2,853 per sqm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the positive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelied. The five-year total sharehotder
return has been +62%.
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IARGAN
5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

31 March
200

gecina

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £54.0m  (£46.8m)
% of investment 2

portiolio’ 3.5%  (3.8%)
% of equity owned 3.5% (3.5%)
Share price €80.4  [(€676)

Shareholding value ~ £53.9m  (£47.5m)
% of investment

portofio" 5%  (3.9%)
% of equity owned 0.7% {0.6%)
Share prite €74 (€1207)

Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude ie Lan, which has
been listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has been to buitd a
portolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high accupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf, Theretore, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little
to no risk on the letting side. In 2029,

the portfelio value amounted to EUR3bn
(100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% around Lyon).

The tompany delivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRY per share up 19%

YoY and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amaortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
company to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its tounder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% aof the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total sharehalder return has
been +307%
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Gecina is the largest office landtord in
Europe with a portfolio of mare than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region (97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
{60% of the total office value}. It owns
also a partfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets (of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly lecated in

the Paris region. Finally, the company
owns a partfolio of exclusive high

street retait assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city, The management is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of mare than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets

to aystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creatian (EUR1S per share). in 2020, the
comparny showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financial position of the company is very
solid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years.

The five-year shareha'der total return has
been +21.6%.
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7. KLEPIERRE {FRANCE)

31 March
__2020

shareholding value £51.3m (nil)
% of investment

portfoliot 3.3% (0%}
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price €19.89  (€1757)

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

31 March
__ 2020

sharehotding value £44.0m (£279m)
% of investment

porialio 2.8%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6%  {1.9%)
Share price 796p 641p)

PIS|P

Swiss Property

9. PSP {SWITZERLAND)

31 March
- 2020
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Shareholding vaive  £42.0m (Em})
% of investment o

portfaliot 2.7% (2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20 (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belglum (39% of total), Italy
(18%), Scandinavia {17%) and Iberia
(10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis In 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by tood retailers contrary to UK of US
centers anchored by departrent stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges (partly driven by online
competition). The financial position of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
8oard), Chairman and CEO of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kieppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

MNotesy

safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operatos, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards London and the South
East {c.60%). In addition the company has
a large footpiint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding info new
European cities {through both JV structures
and outright ownership} taking foothoids
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer 8ig Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
eamings growth both organically {through
like-for-like oecupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies owning
praoperties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland’s key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company’s
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a leve! at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid results in 2020 with EPS
(excl revaluation) stable and NAY per
shase growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents {11% of current}
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment} and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial prafile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

> [he peicertage of ruestment porttons sosit ons set ot abowe indude eapasures through G0 for both the ndadeal pos tons ard the pentfcho
=the nvestren! Portfclio by Countey postars set oul o page 18 are the physial hindligs sniy nciuded ir the irvestments Feld gt fain velue 10 the 2alairce Sheet Toe
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@AROUNDTOWN o

10. AROUNDTOWN {GERMANY)

31 March
e B 2020

V'B Vermdgen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £39.3m  (£20.3m)
% of investment

portfalio? 2.5% (1.7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.3%)
Share price %607 {€4.55)

Shareholding value £38.0m {£22.9m)
% of investment o

portlalio? 2.5%  {1.9%)
% of equity owned 5.5% (41%)

Share price €29.25 (£22.80)

Aroundtown is a diversified Gerrnan-
based property company that owns a
EUR24.5bn porticlio. 1t has a diversified
coinmercial portfolio with exposure to
Office (60% af the commercial portfolio),
Hotels (28%), Retail {$%) and Logistics
{3%). The majority of its exposure is

in Germiany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The company is alse exposed
to German Residential {14% of tatal GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
portfolio has grawn significantly since
Aroundtown was [isted in 2015, thiough a
sefies of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Immebilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
{advisory board deputy Chairman) who
founded the company, still owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group (down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the portfolio with a disposal
pipeline of EURS00m while buying

back shares for a maximum amount of
EUR500m:. The tive-year total sharehoider
return has been 58%.
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ViB is a German cornpany developing,
buying and holding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
tegions of Southern Germany. The
tompany pursues a develop or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid tinancial structure. The real estate
portfolio (EURT.4bn) includes logistics and
light industyial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
(11%), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
portfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superier EPS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
grawth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. In 2020, the company maintained
a solid momentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAY per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 93%.

orow o ToLoes

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UK)

31 March
. 2020
Shareholding vaiue ~ £37.6m (Nily
holmesment e (o)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price 3228p {3270p)

Derwent London is a London Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering €.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West End and “tech belt”
{Old street, Clerkenwell etc ) areas of
tondon. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
af COVID-19, which bath brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left angoing uncertainty
overs future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
We befieve the rofe of the office remains
important hawever, and think that
Derwent tondon is the best placed London
Office landlord to weather the COVID-19
storm given a) its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b) the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in Ltondon
and other European cities (c.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and c) the cormpany’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue 1o create value as schemes like
Soho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)
as at 31 March 2021

Residential
and
Retail Industrial ~ Ground Rents Other
West End of London 42 9% - 14.5% 0.6% $8.0%
Inner London™ 1.6% 31.2% - - 32.8%
South west - 9.2% - - 92%
Total 44.5% 40.4% 14.5% 0.6% JEEO%
“tnner Lenden defined as inside the North and South Circular.
Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio Contracted Rent
as at 31 March 2021 as at 31 Maich
Gross rental income -
0to'5 years - 4%  Year1 £3,000,000
5 to 10 years 7% Years 2-5 £10,600,000
10 to 15 years 53% Years 5+ __£1%,000,000
15 to 20 years 0%
20+ years 6%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial £state,
wandsworth, London SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, London W2

Sector

10 Centre, Gloucester Business

Park, Gloucester GL3
. Bl L

Mixed Use Sector Industrial Sector Industrial
Tenure Freehold o Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehold o
Size (sq ft) 64,000 Size (sq f_lm)A 36,000 Size (sq ft) 63,000 o
Principal  Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Principal  Kougar Tool Hite Lid Principal  Infusion GB o
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

tockdown Baker

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswatey, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment ed redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is iocated to the east of Junction
1A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4
via junction 15,
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investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling. The index, calculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epfa.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company’s business made! follows that of an externally managed
investment trust.

The Company has no employees. Its whally non-executive Board of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend peticies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment gusiness Limited as the Alternative
investment Fund Manager ("AIFM”) with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-mudge acts as Fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
fund Manages. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and joanne Elliott the
fFinance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements under the
investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 4110 43.

in accordance with the Alternative Investment fund Managers Directive
{"AIFMD"), BNP paribas has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
@NP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services afe provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the tavestment Manageiment Agreement are set out on
pages 53 ang 54.

e p
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Strategy and Investment Policies
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Managerin meeting the Trust's objective against
the tollowing Key Performance ndicators ("KPIs™):

KP Board monitosing and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directors 1egard the out-performance of the -

Company’s nel asset valye tolal return in performance
I compansan with the benchmark as Heing an overall
measure of value delivered Lo the shareholders” over the
longer-term

The Board teviews the perfaimance 1n detal! al each

meeting and discusses ihe results and outlook with the
Manager

Outcome
Tyear 5yeass
NAY Total Return ™ (Annualised) 20.7% 77%
Benchmark Jotal Retuin {(Annualised) 15.5%  4.3%

NAY gt RelLIr s caituloted by re-rivesting (e ¢ wderds o ifte assets and
tre Compary form the relevant ex-civcend fate b vderds aie deerred ‘o be
ce-nvestec o the ex-divicends date for the benchmarg

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

The pnintipal gbjective of the Company 1s a totai Teturn .

oplecive, pawever, the Furd Manager also aims to
deltver a renaple diadend with growith over the lange

ierm

The Baard reviews statements an ncome receved Lo date
and income forecasis al each mesting

Outcome
Tyear 5 years
Compound Annual Dividend Growth 14%  112%
Compound Annugs 3P) 15% 26%

the fird cry cendg i the tre seres 3o gec oy the ¢ tend vdend m the
per gd faised 1o the power of * g ced by tre vurrber of yeers o 1re senes

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst expectalion of irvestment performance 15 g key :

snver of the snafe pnce discou: of premiur Lo e et
Asset value of aninvestment tryst aver e lopger-term,
there are senods when the discount con widen Tre
Board 1s aware of the vuine adinty of a sectar-spead’ist
st to @ crange of Dvestor sentiment owaids that
seCiof, of o penads of serder marca® uncettariy, and re

IMpact that can naye o0 b2 disconnt
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The Board 1akes powers at each AGM 1o oy -hack and
jssue shares Wien considenrg the ments of sha,e buy-
hack orissuance, 1ne Boara 'ooks at a number of factors in
addiuon 1 the short and ionger-term discount or giemigr
to MAY 10 assess whether acuon would oe berefical to
sna-eho'cers overa’l Paiticd'as atiention s paid to e
carrent mzikeT serument. the paenlial impact of
srare buy-bagk agiit, on the e

or Orgoiny Charges ave: the

oy
any

Qutcome
5 years
10.2% 6 3%

Nil 150,000

1 year

Aseage discoant

Toter mamizer o 3
Ayerage dary disceurt througheout the pencd of share pree te
NAY w i neome Scurce 3 comberg



KP
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board 15 conscious of expenses and aims Lo deliver a
balance between excellent service and Costs

The AlC definiian of Ongoing Chaiges includes any direct
property costs in addinon to the management fees and
all ather expenses incurred in running a publicly histed
company As no other investment trusts hold parl of their
portfolic 1n direct property {they either hold 100% oi thes
portfolic as property secunties ar as direct property). in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 1s shown without direct property costs 1o allow

a clearer comparnison of overall administration costs with
other funds investing In securities

The Board monitors the Orgoing Charges, 1N ComMparisan
te a range of other Investment Trusts of similar size, both
property seclor specialists and other sectar specialists

Board monitoring and cutcome

Fxpenses are budgeted for each financial year and the
Board reviews reqular reports on actual and forecast
expenses throughout the year
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Qutcome
1year §5years
arges excl
Oﬂgomg_charges xCluding 065%  0.65%
performance fees
ngoing charges excluding performance
Ongoing ges excluding perfarmance 063%  0.62%

fees and Diecl Property Costs

The ongaing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group

Investment Trust Status

The Company musl continue to operate i order to meet
the requirements for Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
ACL 2010

The Board reviews financiat inforrmation and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requiements outhned in
Section 1758

The Directors beheve that the conditions and ongaing
requiremnents have been mel in respect af the year o
37 March 2027 and thal the Company will continue Lo
meet the recurements

The KPls are considesed to be Alternative Performance Measures as defined later in the Annual Report
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delivering fong-lermn 1etums to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the nisks that have been faken
i order to achieve that return The Board has included below details of the pnincipal and emerging isks and untertamties
facing the Company and the appropnate measares taken in ordei to miigate these nisks as far as practicable

The Board aisa considers new and emergmyg nsks addng appropriate monitonng and mitigalion measures acordingly

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the response of inanaal markets, the unknown duration of the pandemic and
angeng 1mpact on economies arcund the word togethner with operational changes i response to government guidelines
continues to increase same of the nsks hsled below i companison with prior years

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Share price performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

1he shares af the Company are listed on tre Lendon - The Board monitors the level of discount or premium at
Stack Exchange and the share price 15 delesmined by which the shares are trading over the short and longes-
supply and cemanc The shares may tiade at a discount term

or premium to the Company's underbang NAY and 1his

; a3 E AAement w e de
EiSCOuNT O presmeuin may fuctuale over e The Boald encourages engagement wilh tne sharehalders

Tie Boaid recewes teports al each meeing on the acivily
ol the Company’s brokers, PR agent and meetings and
events attended by Lhe Fund Manager

- The Compary s shares are avariable thigugh the BMG
snare schemes and the Cempary participates 1 the 2ctive
marketing of these schemes The shares are also wadely
avaniable on open architecture platforms and car be neld
directly through the Compary's 1egistral

« The Baoard takes the pawers o buy-nack and to ssue
shares at each AGMH

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

fve s o outpeniarm the henchmark

The Corrpany's portfolo s actively managed n addmion + The Manayer's ote

o rvestment secanties tne Company also inyvests in Tne Board reguiarty reviews the Company s long-tenm
cornimercial prope:fy and accordingly, the zortfola may, stralegy and irvestment guidelings and the Manage™s
not foicw of outpertorm the rewn of 1re Senchmaik ielelive DOSIOns aganst these

-+ Tre Managemer! Engagemer: Comimitlee ieviews the
Manage''s veriormence anrually The Board has ine
powers Lo ¢hange e Marage: If ceemed appiopiiate
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Risk Identified

Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the vaiue ol the Company's
portfolio.

Although the portfolio 1s diversified acioss a number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate 15 focusea
on a single sector and therefore the portluhie wilk be
sensitive towards the property sector, as well as alohal
equity markets more generally

Property companies are subject to many faciois which
car adversely affect therr investment performance, these
include the general economic and financial environment
i which then lenants operate, interest rates, availability
of mvestment and development finance and regulalions
issued by governments and autharities

Althaugh we have now exited Lhe European Union the
structure of our future relationship with Continenta
Eurgpe 1s still evolving and tnere could be an impact on
accupation across each sector

The COVID-19 global pandemic dominated the financal
year 1his has changed the way we Iive and woik,
crealing unprecedented Jncertamty regarding the impact
on economigs and property markets around the wond
both n Lthe short and longer term

Any sirengthening or weakening of Sterhng will have

a direct imipect as a oroportion of our Balance Sheet s
held in non-GBP denominaled currencies. The currendy
exposure 15 mantained 10 ine with the benchmark and
wil change over ime As at 31 March 2021, 72 1% of the
Trust's exposure lies to currercies other than GBP

Board monitoring 2nd mitigation

The Board recewves and considers a regular report fram
the Manager detalling asset allocation, Investment
deqisions, currency exposures, geanng levels and rationate
In relation to the prevailing market conditions

[he report considers the poteatial impact of Brextt and ihe
Manager’s response in posilioning Lhe portfalic,

The reporl considers the current and potental future
impact of the COVID-19 pandermic and the ongoing
imphication for the property market and valuations gverall
and by each sector,
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties contimued

Risk identified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings 16 the undetlying portfohe puthing - The Boaid iecerves and cansiders regular inceme
pressure on the Company’s ability to grow the dividend forecasts
couid resJit friom a number of factors

Incame farecast seositivity to changes in £ rates s also
- lower earnings and disinbutions i nvestee monitored

companies Companies 1 some property sactors
conlinue to be negalively impactec by the COVID-19
pardemic Comipanies in some sectors cancelled or
reduced diidends duning the last financal year as a
piecaulionary measuie 1o prolect thew balance sheels
in the shart term: Although most have returned to
paying dividends, some are at a ‘ower leve! than
previously and others are continuing Lo withhold
dividends,

Ihe Company has substanlial revenue reserves which can
be drawn upon when fequired

The Board wiii continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19
and the fong term implications for incofre generation.

pralonged vacancies in the direct properly portiolio
and 'ease o7 renial renegoliations as a resub of
Covin-15,

strengthering Sterhing reducing ihe value of overseas
dividend receipts in Sterling terms The Comiparny

has seen a malenal inciease in the level of 2armings
in recent vears A signrficant factonin this was the
weakening of Sler'ing failowirg the Brexit decisior
sierling strengthened 1 the [3st quarter of tne
financial vear This may conunue or reverse again

10 the near ar medm ferm as the langer Lerm
imphcations of drexit and the COVIGA19 pandenic and
the impact on e UK and Furopean ecoromies are
uncersiood Stiengthening of Sieinng would lead 1o 3
‘all 17 eamngs,

adverse cnanges i the tax tealment of dwvicends or
athe income received by the Company, and

chargesin e tring of Jividend recersts from
INveste

2 L0mpanes
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Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Accounting and operational sisks

Distuption oi fallure of systems and processes
underpinning the services providead by third parties and
the nisk that these suppliers provide & sub-standard
service

The impact of the COVIB-19 pandemic and the
operananal response liom the manager ang service
providers has heen closely monitored

Third party service providers produce penodic repoits to
the Board on therr contral environments and business
contmualion provisions on a regular basis.
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The Management Engagement Commitles considers the

performance of each of the service providers on a regulal
basis and considers their ongang appointment and terms
and conditions

The Custodian and Depository are 1espansible for the
safequarding of assets In the event of a loss of assets
the Deposilory must return assets of an ientical type
gl corresponding amount unless able to demonstrate
that the loss was the result of an evenl heyond therr
reasonable control

WMonitoring the quahly and timediness of service as
service providers fespond Lo (COVID-19 requlations and
quidelings, 1N particular with widespread nome working
and consideratien ol the durabiity of the arrangements
fany arganisations aie now planning te incorporate
nome working into thew operational structure as a
permanent feature

Financial risks

The Company’s Investinenl aclivities expose 1l to a
vanety of financial nsks which include counterparty
cradit nisk, hguidity sk and the valuation of finanaal
mstruments Any impact of the COVID-19 pandemic bas
been considered

Details of these nsks together with the pohaes for
managing these risks are found in the Notes to the
Financia: Siaternents 1 the fult Annuat Reporls and
Accounts

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Campany has been accepled by HW Revenue &
Customs 35 an investment trust, subject ta cantinuing
to meel the relevant ehgibility condiiens, As such the
Company is exempt fiom capia: gans tax on the prohits
reglised from the sate of Investments

Any breach of the relevant eligibility condilinrs coald
lead 1o the Company tosing nvestrent trust stalus and
belag subject o corporalion tax or capital gains reahsed
wathin the Company’s portiolio

The Investment Manager momlors the investment
portfolio, income and proposed dividend levels to ensuie
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached. The
results are reported to the Board &t each meeting.

The income forecasts are reviewed by the Compary's tax
advisor through the year who also reports to the Board
on the yeai-end tax position and reparts on (TA 2010
compuance
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Identified Board menitering and mitigation

Legal, requlatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
rules; laure to meel the requireiments urder the
Alternative Investment Funds Directive, the provisions
of the Companies Acl 2006 and other UK. European
and overseas legislation atfecting UK companies
Failure to meet the required accounting standards or
make appropnate disclosures in the Intenim and Annual
Reports.

1he Board recerves reqular requlatary updates from
tne Manager, Company Secrelary, legal adwisors and
the Auditors The Board considers these reporls and
recommendations and takes achion accordhngly

The Board recefves an annua' report and apdate from the
Depository

internal checkhsts and review procedures are in place at
sefyice providers

inappropriate use of gearing

Geanng. either thraugh the use of hank debt or through
the use of denvatives may be utihsed from lime to ime
Whilst the use of geanng 15 intended to enhance the NAY
total return, 1t wali have the opposite effect when the
return of the Company’s vesimant portichio 1s negative
o where the cost of deht 15 higher than the setuin from
the portfolio

The Board reteives requiar reports from the Marager on
the levels of geaning 1n the nortfolg These afe considerad
agamsL the geanng hmits set 1 the nvestment Guidelines
and alsa 1n the context ol current market conditions and
sentiment The cost of debt s maritored and a balance
sought hetween term, cost and flexibihty

Personnel changes at investment Manager

Loss of portiolio maneager or otner key staff
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the Charman conducis regular meelings with the Fund
Management leam

The fee basis protects the core infrastrocture and depth
and quality resources The fee struciure incentivises
autperformance and 1s fundamentanin the abifity to reian
xay stalf



Viability Statement

In accardance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Cade, which requires the Company o assess
the prospects of the Company over the longer term, the
Diectors have assessed the prospects of the Company
aver thie coming five years This penod 15 used by the
Board dunng the strategic slanning process and Lhe Board
consider this penod of time appropriate for a business of
our nature and size

This assessiment takes account of the Company's current
positien and the policies and processes for managing the
principal and emerging nsks sel out on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s ability 1o contitue in oberation and meet 1ts
liabilities as they fall due over the perod of assessment

In making this stalement the Board carned out a robust
assessment of the erinopal and emerging nsks facng the
Company, including those that might threaten #ts business
model, future performance, solvency and hiquidily.

In reaching their conclusians the Directors have reviewed
five-year forecasts for the Company with sensitivity
analysis to 3 aumber of assumnplions, Investee company
dividend ciowth, interest fate, foreign exchange rate, tax
‘ale and assel vaiue growlth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directars have noted that:

The Company has a long-terrm investment strategy
under which it irvests mainly in readily reahsable,
publicly hsted secuniies and which restncts the level of
Dorrowings

Ol the current portrolia, 50% could be hquidated within
five trading days and £9% witnin 10 frading days.

01 a Group basis, Current assels exceed cur-ent
nabihties at the Balance Sheet Date.

The Compary invests in real estate related compames
which hold real eslate assets, anc invests i cammerdal
real estate diectly These investments provice ¢ash
recelpts in the form of dividends and -ental income

The Company 15 able to take advanlage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust structure and able to hold a
proportion of its peittolo in less iquid direct property
with 3 view to long-term outperformance
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Al the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 mulhen undrawn on s revolving loan facihties

The structure has also engbled the Company to
secure [ong-term financing. CUR 50 mithon iudtl ioles
tssued in 2016 are due to malure ab pain 2026 and
GBPIS mullion loan actes ssued on the same date are
due to mature at par in 2037

The impact of COVID-19 on the UK and European
corumercial property markets remains a coasideration.
This 1esulled 1n a reduction in dividend receipts from
mvestes companies in the vear to 31 March 2021 with
some companies withholding ar reducing dividends
The majonty of companies have returnec to paying
dividends, although some at lower levels than before
the pandemic As a result an improvement In income
Is anticipated in the forthcoming year The longer
term mpacl on some sectors s stli difficult to assess,
nowever the company has low exposdre to these
sectors

The direct property pottioho has heet wel posiionad
In respect of the COVID-19 cisis and rental collection *o
date has been robust We have very miled exposure
o retail and scme smaller occupiers in the hospitalty
sectar, however, overall the expected drop in income
from the direct portloho in 2020/27 was nol matenal
and hkewise 15 nat expected to be n the forthcoming
yeal

The expenses of the Company are predictable and
modest 1N companson with the assets Reqular and
robust monitenng of revenue and expenditure forecasts
ale underlaken thioughout the year The Company
could sufter a reduction i earnings of 95% and sui” be
able 1¢ meet s habihties as they fell due
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viability Statement coniinued

Ihe Company has no emplovess and consequently
goes not have redundancy or other empioyment
relaled habiivies of responsibilities

The Company retams tille fo11s assets beld by the
Custodian which are subject to further safequaras
imposad on the Depositary

«  Theimpact of Brexit and COVID-19 have peen
consicerad in lerms of the potential effect on Sterling
72% of the porlfoho 15 exposed o currenaes other tran
Sterling

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Reai bsiale wil' continue to be aninvestaple sector oi
internanonal stock markets and investars will coninue
to wise Lo Nave exposyie o thal sector

Uosed-ended Investment Trusts wily continge Lo be
warted by nvestors and requiation of {3x legisiation
wil nNot change to an exteal to make the strycture
unatlractive in compalson o other investment
DrOGUCTS

The uerformance of the Company will conbinue 10 be
satistactory Should the periormance be jess than the
Joard deems 1o be satisiactory 1 has tne apo opndale
powers o mep'ace the mvesiment Manage

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Scaal and Governance ("tSG") factors

can present both opporlunities and threals o the
performance we airm 1o deliver to our shareholders The
Boaid 1s therefore committed to taking a responsible
appioach on £SG matters This covers the Company’s own
responsibililies on governance and reporting and. the mosl
matenal way n which the Company can have animpact,
through responsible ownership of the investinents that are
made on its behalf by its Manager.

As a long-tenm mvestor, governance and sustainabiity
considerations have always been embedded In our
Manager's Investment Process £5G risk assessments
and considerations are integrated inta the detailed
fundamental investment research and analysis that takes
piace on any potenhal mvestment before 1L1s considerad
for inclusion in the portfolio and continues on an engoing
basis for all investments held.

This approach 150 ine with the defiition of an Arucle
& Fund under the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Requlations Wnilst this 1s currently European not UK
requlatian 1t 1s nonetneless a widely utihsed definilion

There are lwo fundamental considerations (o investment
I property companies the assets themselves and therr
managemeant The Manager seeks to Invest in sustainable
assets which are managed by quality teams in 3 well
governed corporate structure As a result, there has

beer a long-standing and strong culture of stewardship
in the tManager’s investment approach the Manager
believes thal engaging with companies 1s best in the
fiistinstance, rather than simply divesung or excluding
mvestment apportunities However, there are Instances
where governance matters have dnven a decision not to
nvest (n a company As ane of the largest teams invesling
N Pan-European real esiate equities, oul Manager meelts
with @ significant number of the management teams of
irvestee and potenlial investee cornpanies each vear and
has a robust record of 2ngagemeant with an agenda of
reducing risk, improviag performarce and encouraging
best practice  whilst likely an elsvated number reflecting
the impact of Covid. over the course of the year. our
management team partinipated 10 380 ndividual o geoup
maetings with companies and 1eir manageme it leams

Corporate Governance disclosgie iecuirements have
ncredsed transparency @normously i recent yeas
and erabied informed engagement, with sociat and

employment praclices also gaimng increased focus and
disciosure Environmental measures are now rapidly -
ceming to the fore and with wider disclosure requirements
being placed upon our nveslee companies, as a result the
Manager 15 able Lo scrutinise mote easily other measures
such as cimate change and sustamabihily policies and
outcomes.

w
=
T
m
a
-
=
m
-
[+]
=
3

Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recagnises the impartance of the
Company’s own Governance and disclosures The
Company's compliance with the revised Al{ Code al
Corporate Governance 1s detailed 1n the Corporate
Governance Stalement on page 44 of this Annual Report

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there 15 the
requirement to detall information about employee and
humar rghls, inctucing information about any paiicies

1t has i relation to these matlers and effectiveness

of these policies As the Trust has no employees, this
requirement does not apply The Compary 15 not within
the scope of the UK Madern Slavery Acl 2015 because 1t
has not exceeded the lurnover threshold and is therefore
not obliged to make a siavery ard Auman trafficking
statemment The Directors are salisfied that, to the best of
their knowledge, the Company’s grincpal supphers. which
are listed or page 108, comply with the provisions of the
UK Madern Slavery Act 2015,

The Board currently compnses three male Diredtsis and
two female Directors The actiaties of the Nomination
Comrmittee 1 1elation o the board changes are referned
to 1 the Nomimation Committee Report an pages 5% and
52 The Board's diversily policy 1s outhined in more detall
in the Corporate Governance Report The Marager Fas an
equal opportunity policy which 1s set out o0 1ts wezsite
wiww bmo com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Board has approved a colparale governance voting
pohcy wiich, 1 s opirion. accords with current best
practice whilst maintaimng a pnmary focus on fingncial
returns

The exercise of voling nghts at-ached to the portions
has been gelegated to the Wanager Where pracliceble,
ali sharehaidirgs were voted at v company meelings
In the financial year ir accardance with BMOGAMS
oW COIpOTAte govenance poices [his ensures tha!

a strong, Consisienl approach 1§ taken o proxy voting

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENTTRUST 35



Eﬁviror,mema; : 5
< " [T . S . 100y, ’ ) - :
: [ T o B o 130, 1601 . -
| [or i : - » oo, 1007, 160s,
. Lo i " i
! it o ,
- [ | . ; ' )
- !
: Ly o ' [y / R
. [N Jl
) ; y ‘ R
] ! [ i B il J‘ |
. b ' L
[ T ! ) o KR
- o ! {
. S : [
" ! ro / " P
v T T s
‘ S ) ‘ !
: : . Vo i fl '
K f .
I ' -
f fei oo
o . ; ; 159
. [ i i
i L
R . Mg |
120
Doty og !
s
. 50 !I
; . ) :
] .
! ! ! E
i _
s
TR Prapesy, Iy gty
FTS‘EEPR.-‘-N
! . Trus areit MSCTag -
L De: Evrope ¢ A Z00niry gng
' R . nag, | oPred fcsex
i o T CONE AM Sapey
!
1l
B [
B i LTI




As can be seenn the cnarl above, the fund's portfolio
wetghled carben intensity was broadly in line wath that of
the benchmark, whilst sigrificantly lower than the wider

giobal equity index  1his reflects the fact that for property,

this 15 largely measunng the nmpdact of onrgoing emissions
from running a bullding whereas the wider index includes
operating companies wilh manufactunng capabihities and
the need to distribute goods worlcwide

Far the property sector, e Tutus 1s culiently on the
energy efficency of bulldings once they are otcupied,
but we expect 17 ume maore attention will be paid to
the carbon emitted 1n getting them bullt and eventuaily
dismantled which accounts for a large proportion of a
bukding’s emissions aver (s ifespan

The message 15 that this 1s stll an area where it s difhcult
to make fully informed decisians The assessments from
the vanous data providers reach different conclusions

4s they do not all score in a consistent way. We expect
this lo nnprove and change but it will be a jodrney Our
Manager 15 gedicating a lot of resource 1o the analysis

of the information evallable and also has the benefit

of the knowledge of 3M0s award winTing Responsible
Invesiiment Team. As datd coverage impraves, our
Manager wail i Lo be able lo engage wath our investee
companies on envirormental matters ard report to our
sheneholders in mare depth

Direct Property Portfolio

The Maragement team recagaises the importance ol
sustainabiiity in our business and 0 the direc! property
assets which we mnvest in. held and manage or behalf ol
ourInvestors  Property impacts upes the environment,
the health ard welibeing of occupters, and the
corrmunities it winch they are situated  Specific ssues
relevant 1o physical property investrent portfolio include.
for exarnple, responsible and sustainable ~2furbishment
praciices, efficiert use of resources throughout their
aperation, and design and serwices 1o support the health
and wellbeing of cccuplers and local communities

Environmental Audits are conducted on all our buildings
prion to purchase The Company will take remedial

action or enforce tenant obhgations to do so wherever
appropnale In maaaging Environmental, Sacal and
Governance 1ssues across the direct portfolio - our
Manager engages wilh accupiers, external managers and
supplhiers  As a responsible steward of the Company’'s
assets, ow Manager 1s commitled Lo improving
sustainabilily charactenstics traugh interventuaas thal are
carefully planned and executed
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Our Manager has strong. direct relationships with
accupiers and 15 committed to warking with them ta
develop the data, measurement tools and resources 1o
sel and achieve meaningful sustaimaniiity targets for the
asselsn the portfoho  As part of this, and warking with
the portfalio property managers, a Sustaimabiity Roadmays
15 bamg implemented which targels biodiversity net gain
acipss the portfolio by 2025, imperoving energy, water and
woste efliaency, transiioning to 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse das emissions 10 line with
CAMmatle saence.

By order of the Board

David Watson
Chairman

3 June 2027
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Directors

DAVID WATSON
Chairman

Appointed:
Aprit 2012

Experience:

David became Chairman following
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board’s
Senior Independent Director when he
simuftaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, a
position he was appointed to on 1
January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group plc,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance,
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services industry.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and sisk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as Si0 and
Chair in a number of boards have built
significant experience in shaseholder
and invesior engagement.

Other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.
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KATE BOLSOVER
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
October 2019

Experience:

Kate previously worked for (azenove
Group and ).P. Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Director of the mutual
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Bafing’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of fPMorgan
American investment Trust plc until
2016, Senior independent Director of
Montanaro UK Smatler Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Tustee of Tomarrow’s People until
2017,

skills and Contribution to the Board:
from her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Xate's role in varioys boards
also gives her the refevant experience
in invester and shareholder
engagement.

Other Appointments:

Kate is currentty Chairman of

Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Seniof
Independent Director of Invesco Bond
Income Plus timited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

SARAH-JANE CURTIS
Non-Executive Director

Appaointed:
January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarah-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grosvenor for 24 years
including as tondon Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
far LiverpoolONE.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Safah-jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particulatly in the retail, and
experience sectots and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

Other Appointments:

Sarah-jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
3 consultant to Value Retail PLC.




SIMON MARRISON
Senior Independent Director

P 7 %

TIM GILLBANKS
chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed:
September 2011

Experience;
Simon joined the Board of the
Company on 28 September 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th july 2020. He has over 30
years' experience in the European
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at Lasalle Investment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Europe.
Siman has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
Wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
LaSalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Europe.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skitls in his executive roles and
relevant skills in investment
management.

Other Appointments:
Senigr advisor for European Real Estate
at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis Roberts)

Appointed:
January 2018

Experience:

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

Other Appointments:

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Directos for Henderson Global
Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.

Al directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Aadit Cormmitize
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Managers
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MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Managesy, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolio and lattesly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UX and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcys moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to jeining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc {Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

GEORGE GAY

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyar in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuaticn and
Law from City University.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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JO ELLIOTT

Jo Elliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team, She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager
with Londen and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSt (Hons) in Zoolegy from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988, Jo is 3 Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Palar Capital Globa! Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

Alban Lhonaeur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental Furopean Real £state, Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSc in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, tondon, He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. In 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Speciatised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP.



Report of the Directors

The Duectors present the audited hnanaal statements of
lhe Group and the Company and ther Stialegic Reporl
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 Mareh
2027 The Group comprises TR Property investment Tiust
plc and its wholly owned subsidianes As permitied by
legislalion, some matters normally included in the Reporl
ol the Dieclors have been included in the Suateqic Repaorl
because te Board considers them to be of strategic
importance The-efore, the review of the husiness of the
Company, recent events and outlook ¢an be Tound on
pages 4 to 35

STATUS

The Company 15 an
Section 833 af the Companies Act
an ipvestment trust in accordance with Section
Corporation Tax Act 2010

inveslmenl company, as defined in
2006 and operates as
1158 of the

The Lampany has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p edach wihic are premium
isied on the London Stock Exchange

The Company nas recerved corhrration from KM Revenue
& Cusloms thal the Company has been acceptec as

an approved mvestmem trust for accounting penods

COMMencing on or after 1 Aprl 2012 subect o the

Company conlinuing to meet the ehginitity conditions of

Section 1158 Corporatian Tax Act 2010 and tnhe ongoing

requireents for approved companies in Chapler 3

of Part 2 Investrnent Trist (Appioved Compary) (Tax)

Reculations 2017 (Slatutosy Instrument 2011/2996)

The Diectors are ol the opiaon that the Company has

conducied and will conunue Lo corduct ks affans so as

to maintain mvestment tist status. The Company has

alsa conducted 1ts affairs, and wii continue 16 conduct

s affairs, i such a way as to comply with the ‘ndradua
Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares car be

held in Irdividual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

ALZT March 2021 the pel assets of the Compary mr‘mnled
o £1,326 million (202G £1.136 million), on a per snaie
basis 41797, (2020 358 11p) per share

Revenue earmings per share for the year amountad Lo

12 25p (2020 14 62p) and the Direclors recommerd the
payment of a finat divdend of 900p {202C & 80p) per
share bringing tne tatai drvidend for the year to "4 20 1
(2019 1400p) 10 anrarg el ther dividend procosal, i
Board also reviewed the moorme forecasts for the year 10
targn 2022

Pe-formance details are set out in the Firarcal Thghhights
cn page 2 and the outcome of whal the Directars consider

Lo be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 26 and 27
The Chairman's Statement and the Maragel’s Repart give
full detalls and analysis of the results for the year

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

AL 31 March 2027 the Company had 317,350,980
(2020 317,350.980) Ordinary shares in 1ssue

Al the AGM 0 2020 the Direclors were given power o
buy back 47,570,511 Ordinary shares Since this AGA the
Directors have not boughl back any Ordinary shares at
the nominal volue of 25p each under this authonty The
outstanding authonity 15 therefore 47,570,91 shares

This authority will expire at the 2021 AGM  The Company
will seek to renew Lhe power 1o make markel purchases
of Ordinary shares at this year's AGM

Since 1 Apnl 2021 1o the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for canceliatior The Board
has aot set a speafic discount at which shares will be
repurchased

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

Detanis of the management airangements and fees are
set outin the Report of tne M anagmkn Lngagement

Committee beqinning on page 53 Tola fees paid

to the Manager in any one year (Managemen: and

Performance Fees) may Aot exceed 4 99% of Group

Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable far the

year Lo 31 March 2021 amount Lo 12% (2020 0.8%) of

Group Equity Sharenelders’ Funes maouded in this were

perloimance fees earned in the year ended 31 Maich 2021

of £9.65900C (2020 £2.683.000)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND IFRS

The Group and Company financial statements ‘or the yea
anded 31 #March 2021 have been preparad on a oing
concern basis i accordance with Intermeaiional FINanaa:
Reporiing Standaras {IFRS). which comnpiise standards and
Interpretations approved by the Intemational Accounting
Slangaias Boara (IASB). together with interpretations

of the Internationas Accounting Standards anc standing
Irterpretations Commitiee approved by the International
Accounting Standards mrﬂmﬁ ee (IASC) that remain o
offact, to the extant that they have been adopled by tf
Eu‘opean Unton and as recards e Group ard Company
financiai statemenrts. as apphed in accordance vath the
nrovisions ol e Companies Ac 2006

The accounbing policies are set outin rate 1 1o the
finangiai Statements on pages 7310 /7

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Report of the Directars “ui 7o oo

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

the Company's Financial Instruments Compnse 1ts
Investrrent portfolio, cash balances, barrawings ard
debtors and credilors thal anse directly from s eperalions
such as sales and puichases awaiting seitlement, rofit

ot loss balances on denvauve instiuments and acuued
incamne and expenses The tinancial nsk management
objectives and pohcies ansing from its financial
istruments and expesure ol the Company (o risk are
disclosed i note 11 to the finanaal statements

GOING CONCERN

Tre Directors” assessment of the longer-term viabidity of
the Company 15 st out on pages 33 and 34

In assessing Going Loncern, the Board has made a detalled
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group o
meet 115 lahilities as they fall due, mc|ud|rg stress and
hqmd\r‘ tests which considered the eifects of substantia!
estment valaations, substantal reductions

In revenue recelved ang reduchions 1t maret ngJidily
mcluding the effecis ond potential effecls of the continued
ecoromICimpact cadsed by the Coranavicy 15 panceric The
Boald 15 salisiied with the operetional resilience of service
oroviders despile COViD-19 ard wnlinues to monitor their
nerformance throughout the pardemic

Ir higns of lesting carmiec out. e overs els uf the
investiment hgudiy rerd by the Company and the
sigmhcanl el asset sotttolio posibor, and cespile e
small net carent hatility posinon of the Fa-eat Tompary,
~nd Grodp, t rw D| rectors are satstied that the Comoe v
end the Gooup nave adecuate firanaial fesources o
cantinue 1 operaior [or al least e pext 17 moatas

Fo wowarg the signimg of th Anancial state Tenis dr
‘hereforz it s approsnete o adopt the going concern basts

of accounting

[ Grogps

RS ,\;:.'* [. e il

‘i tAETage’ s Fesponsln'e for the

' gem‘fi‘i CeOsIaTs on enal

e IS es 20

aks e

AN 15 4

GRETZUDNAL, G 1e e

'

22Nt 1S “”PPD”I“"H 17 e cantrals o
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Al and Porticho tanager reports and quaiterly control

reports. Key nisks have beendentified and contrels putin

place to miagate them, induding those not directly the

responsibility of the AiFM or Portfolio Manager The key

nsks are explained i maore detad in the Strategic Report

01 pages 28 to 32 ‘

Tne effectiveness of each third party provider’s internal

Lontrols s assessed or a continuing basis by the Complance

and Risk departmerts of the AFM and Portfolio Manager,

the Admimistrator and the Company Seccetary Each

rmairtams s own system of internal contiols. and the Board

and Audit Cormmiltee recetve reguiar reports from them

The conlict systems are designed o provide reasonable, but

not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatermnent ar |
loss and to manage, rather than ehminate, nsk of faiiure w0

achieve abjeclive

As e Company has no employees and ts operalioral

funchions are undertaken by third paities, the Audit
Commult do s not consider 1t necessar y far e Compd 1y
25t ablwa S own Internal audn funciion Instead. the

i udst Cor mwttee relies anonternal contiol repor's received
from 1is prnapal service providers to satisly isell as o the
contrels i place

1he Board has establishec a process foridentifying,
evaluating and maraqirg ary majer risks fac *r1 oy e
Gioup The Boerd urdertakes an mmua\ review of (he
Gioup's system of mteraa; controls in hne with the Turnbull
guidance Business nisks have also been araiysed by
tre Board and recorded in ¢ 115 Map 1At 1s tevigwed
reqularly Each quatter the Board recewes & foimal
tepor: fror 2ach of the AIFAL Portioho Marager, he
Sdrumstrator and the Compary Secretary detaring the
steos laken Lo moitar the areas of sk, ndduding thase

that are not "I actly e responsibiity, ara which report
t1e cetals of any known internal contro. failures
gnsiders 're flow of Informaiion and the

mothe bt pany seriIce rovd
SJIE 2CCUTACY
cncome The 3o
|(\](‘g [32Tr Qi e <e

and compieteress

The Boai: 250 nas et acress o iom
2l 2md sanices {:: A Totel P
Ated ez
aglTl thar e 808




Key nsks identiied by the Auditors are corsidered by e
Audit Comrantiee o ensure robust intemal controls and
monitonng proceduies are i place in respecl of these
nsks o an ongoing basis

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE "AGM")
The AGM vall be held on 27 July 2021 31 2 30pm al the Royal

Automotuile Club, 89/91 Pall Mall. Londan SW1Y 5HS The Nolice

of AGM 15 sel oul on pages 100 and 107 The full text of the
resoiutions and an explanation of each 1s contaired in the
hotice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 107

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were no contracts subsisting dunng cr at the end

af the year 1 which a director of the Company ts 01 was
matenally interested ang which 1s or was sigrificant i
relation to the Company's business Na Direcior has a
contract of service with the Company Further details
regarding the appointment ietters car be found on page 52

DONATIONS

The Company made no pohtical or ¢iantabie donations
dunng the year (2020- £nil)

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company confirms thal there are no ilems which
require disclosure uader Listng Ruie 98 4R in respact of
the year ended 31 March 2021

VOTING INTERESTS

Rights and Gbligations Attaching to shares

Subect 1o applicable slatutes and other sharenclders rnighs,
shares may be 1ssued with such nghts and restnctions as
the Company ey by ordinary resalution deade. or (if there
15 no such resolulion or so far as 1l ¢oes not make speafic
srovisior} as the Board may decide Subject to the Aruc'es,
the Companies Act 2006 and olthes sharehclders nights
unissded shares are gt the disposar of the Board

vminq
I a general meeting of the Compary, when voung 15
UFC(‘HH-(':‘D oy wey of 3 pod, 2ach share alfo ds ils owne-

ong vote

Restrictions an Yoting

No member shali pe enhiled o vale 1f 18 nas been
served with a restaction nolice (as defined 171 the Articles)
alter falue to movide the Compary wath informatior
concering anterests i those shares required o be
pravided under e Compdnies A, 2006

Deadlines far Voting Rights
votes are exercisabe at the general meeting of the Cormpany
in respect of which the business being voted upon 1s being

heazel Votes may be exercised 1n person. Dy proxy, orin
relation to corporake members, by comorate representatives,

The Articles provide a deadhing for subrission of pmx'f
formes of not less than 48 hours {or such shorter ime

as the Board may determine} before the meeting (not
excluding non-working days}

Transfer of Shares

any shares in the Cornpany may be hold i uncertificated
form and, subject 10 the Al .|L|es, title to uncertificated shares
may be tiansferred by means of a relevant system Subjecl
a the articdes, any meirber may transter all or any af his
certificated shates by annsliument of transfer in any usua!
form of 1N any other form winch the Board may approve

Significant Voting Rights

A% 3T March 2027, no shareholders held over 3% of voting
rnghts on a discietionary basis However, al 31 Macch 2021
the follawing shareholders held over 3% of the voting
rnghts on a nen-discretianary hasis

Sharehoider

Brewin Do[phin Ltd MNA%
Retail Investors - UK 89%
Interactive tnvestor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 5.1%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.0%

" See gbove for furthenirfarmation on the votng 1 ghts of Gfc nary skares

sance 31 March 2027 to the date of this repart, the
Company has 1o beern informed of any notifiabie changes
with respect 1o the Oidingy shares

Artictes of Association

The Company’s Aracles oi Associauor may orly be
amerded by a speaa tesolubion at a Geleral Mee
the shareholders

tng af

Aamendments to the Aricles of Assooiation will he
proposed al Ibe 2021 AGM and “uriher detalls are se
oan page 125 to 107

tout

Corpoiate Goavernance
Full details are giver 1n the Corporate
on pages 44 1o 50 The Comorate Goyern
part of this Diceciors’ Report

Governarce Repol.
ance Report forms
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directo.s 15 accourtable to shaeholders for
the governance af the Company s affars

This statement describes how the principles of the 2018
edition of UK Carporate Governance Code ("the Code”)
tsued by the Financal Reporting Counal (1e “FRC™Y N

2018 have been apphed 1o the alfairs of the Campany The
Code can be viewed at www frc org.uk

Application of the AI{ Code s Principtes

I applying the pnirciple of the Code, the Dieclors

have also taker account of the 2079 Code of Corparate
Governance published by the AIC (the "AIC {ode™), of which
the {ompany 15 o membe: fhe AIC (ode esiablishes the
framews:k of best practice speahically for the Boards of
nvestment tryst companies burthermore, the AIC Code
has “ul endorsement of the FRC which means (hat AC
members who report against the AiC Code, 00 the wrole,
meet e obiigations under re Code and the related
distinsuie regaire ments cantained in the Lising Rules Toe
AIC Code can be viewed al www theaic co gk

fhe Directors believe that dunng the senad under aview
they fave comphed wih the main p inciples and relevant
orovisions of (e Code, 1wsolar as they apo y o the
Corrpany's busipess, and with te pravisiors of the AIC Coce

Cempliande Statamant

The Directors note thal the Campary did no: camaly wilh
he fouowang provisions o° the Code 17 e year ended
37 Maon 20217

Provision 9 Due o the ralure aind struct e of the
Compary he Board of non-execyive dracions does not

fec s aporopae o anioirt A dhief egecdtive

S Diectars.
sn 07 3l 0" e 30ard 5

Frovision 2 Tre 30a7¢ peheves that a
InC ding the Crarmar, should
Tommitiees

Frowigio 26 As
augnal fy o

i Comimiies does
CTMpAn.y oo estEdliah s o

C
Compan. s sere |

rarne gy f m’m Th=

S OroL i ass e Ny
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Composition and independence of the Board

The Baard curently consists of five directars, all of whom
are nor-executive The Boards mdependence, inc'uding
that of the Chanman, has beer considered and all of the
Directors are deemed to be independent in character and
have no relationsrips of cicumstances which are hikely 1o
affect then judgerent

The Board subscnbes to the viewy expressed n the AlC
Cade thatl long-serving Dieciors should not be prevented
friomy forming part of an mdependent majority 1 does nol
cansider thal the length of a Duecior's tenure, I 1soiation,
requces his or her ability Lo act irdependently The
Board s policy on tenure 1s Lhat continuity and experience
add significantly to the strength of the Board although
the Zoard believes i the ments of ar ongoing and
progressive refresamert of 4y Comjtmmﬂ

Divarsity

Tne Board 1ecognises the berefit of diversity anc as of tre
cale of tis report e Board consists of three mer ane
[V WOMEN

Drversiiy 15 taken intg account as part of the recraitrent,
appontment asd saccession planming process and

the Bua(c Is alsa awae of the develoning corporate
governance waith regard to ethniaty of individual

Duectors Tre Baard 15 cormmilted Lo appoinling sme most
ﬂ')mpuate candidate, regaidless of gendsr o other formns
of diversit :; snd trejsfore 10 ﬂfgt[.‘: NEYEe Deen se (‘g;<i1ﬂSL
WPICE 1 T 2port

Powers of the Directors
suject (o the iomp y 5 AT 25 of Assoaauon, e
Cormpams ACH 2008 and any airectio s given by special
resoluion, the business of the ompery 15 managed
by w2 oarc who may, exerdse all ine oowes af the
(oroeany, whetrer 2'34ing to the maragema of the
Jusiness of the Lampany or not Ie mhculor t~e spar
ce peanets of the Compan, o hormoLy
? r, ob s andettagos

CAnEsuR

- f

Qi e secun 1oi
)




DIRECTORS

The Charrman 1s MiWatson and the Senmior independent
Direclor 1s M Marnsan ke watson succeeded M Seaboin
as Chairman wher' he retired from the Board of Director
following the AGM on 28 July 2020 M Marnison succeeded
Mrwatsor as the Semwor Independent Director on this

dale The Duectors” biographies, on pages 38 and 39,
dernonstrate the hreadth of investment, commercial and
professional pxpenense relevant Lo ther positians as
Directors of the Company

Directors’ retirement by rolation and re-election 1s subject
to the Articles of Assoniation. In accordence with the Code,
ail directors wil be subject 10 annual re-election

Ms Bolsover, ts Curlis, Mr Gilbanks, Mr Marnson.

Mr Watson will ai' retire al the farthcoming AGM I
accordance with the Code and, being eligible, will oifer
Ihemselves for re-election All Directors are fegarded as
being free of any confhicts of interest and na 155ues 1N
resaect ol independence anse The Board has cancluded
that all Dieccers continue 1o make valuable contiibutions

BOARD MEETINGS

and beleve that they remain independent in character
and judgement

Mirectors are nal compensdted by the Company for lass of
office in an event of a takeover bid

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audil Commuittee, a
Norrunalion Commuttee and a Managemenl Engagement
Commuttee. which also carnies out the functions ol

a Remnuneraton Committee All the Directors of the
Company are non-execubive and serve on each Committee
of the RBoard. It has been the Company's poiicy 10

include all Directars on all Committees This encourages
dnily, clear commurication and prevents duplcation of
discussion belween the Board and the Commitiees

Ine rotes and responsibilities of each Commitiee are set
out on the Individual Commillee reports which fobow Each
Commiltee has wrilten terms of reference which dearly
define its responsiniities and duties These can be faund
on tne Company s wehsile, are availabie on request and
will also be available for inspection at the AGM

[he number of meetings of the Board and Cammitizes held dunng the vear undel review, and the atlendance of

indrvidual Directars, are shown below

Board
- Attended Higible  Attended
David- Watson 6 6 2
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2
Simon Marnson 6 6 2
Kate Bolsover 6 6 2
Sarah-jane Curtis 6 6 2

- Audht

MEC ‘Nemination
figible Attended Higble  Atended Bigible
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1

In agdition to formar Board and Committee meetings, the Direclors also atlend a number of 11formal mesungs o
represers the nteresls of the tarmpany, and to discuss operationgl markets and succession planing

THE BOARD

The Boasd 1s responsible for the effecyve stewardship of the Company's affairs Certain strateqic 1ssues are moailored

by tne Boarc al meebrgs against a frarewoark which has been egreed with the Manage Addiional meetings may

he arranged as recuned The Board has a ‘ormal schedule of matters speafica’ty reservec for 115 deasion. which die
catzgonsed undst vanous headings, including sirategy, managermept, stincdre, capita, financial reporting, interra,
colios, qeanng. asset & lucalion, snare pnce discount, contracts, Investment pelicy, finance, nsk, mvesiment restuctions,
performance, corporate governarae and Board membesship ard appointmenss

I orden o enable them to discrarge their responsibiities, all Direciorns have {4l and nimely access o elevant nformation
At each neeling he Board reviews the Company s investment perlormance and considers financal analyses and othe
reporls of ar operdliondl nalure 1ne Board moniters cornpliznce with the Company’s objeciives and s responsibie for
setung asset allocatior and myvestment and geanng hmils wiinis which the Portfolio Manager has ciscretion 10 act and
WS supervises the manacemenrt of the invesimenlt postiolio, whicn 1s contractually delegated o tne Portfolio Manager
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The Board has responsibuity for the appiaval of
mvestments i unquoted invesiments and any
nvestments 1in furds managed o adviseg by the Poitfolio
Manager 1t has alse adopied s procedure for Directors,
the turtherance of therir duties, 1o teke independeant
Dw’()fessmﬂaf advice at the experse of the Company

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

I ime with the Companies act 2006 1ne Board has the
power 10 dutronse any potental conflicts of interest that may
arise and 1moose such hmits or concitions as it thinks it A
register of potential corflicts 18 maintaned arg 15 reviewed al
every Board meeting to ensure al details are kept up-to-cate
Approphiate authonsation will be sodght prior (o the
2ppointment of any new Dineclar or 1 any new conthcts anse

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Sharehalder relations are arven mgh priofiy by the Boad,
the AlFM and toe Potloha Manager Tha prre medum
oy which the Company comimanicates v skareho-ders
15 through the Intenm and Annual Reperts whice ar ©
provige stereholders with a clear understancing of te
Company s acvities ara thels resuts s mformation i,
suppiemartec by the daily caicuiahion of 1he het Asset
vaiue of the Company's Qidinary shares which s publisnec
an tre London Stock Fxerarge

> (ompany s
Famohy

I ER] :ormauul* 1S 3:50 avatiable oo lhe
Wwebsite, www lrprope ty Com tagatner w
factstact ardg Manager Commeriay

s he ntenhon ')l Thc 5oa'rl hatthe A

50 A
tre Al Sharenoicers wisning ta lodge gueshions
dadvance of ‘e AGY, ar o cantact fre Board at any arie’
ItM2, are irated 10 46 50 oy wnhng 1o e Company
Secistary 3t e tgislerad 20oress given oh page 158

CENera preseriaunts die qrat o hotT sha eholdes and
i

Fome anryai resgity

Tanc stereTides ae

At gy tee ot
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nvestmen: Objective and helps Lo ensare that all decisians
are made 10 a resparsible and susiamable way

Upon appairtment, Directors” aie provided with a detailed
nduction outhming therr duties, legally and requlatoiy, as

A Marector nf a UK public imited cormpany and contirue 1o
requ-arly receve relevant technical updates and training
Under their leter of appointment, the Diectors also nave
access to the adwice and services of the Compary Seqetary,

and when deemed necessary. the Girectars have the

aoportunity to seek independent piofessional advice in the
‘urtherance of ther dulies as a diector, at the Lompany’s

expense The Company has 2 schedule of Matters Reserved

for tne Buard which clearly descnibes the Board's duties

and responsibilities In acdition, trere e aiso the lerms

of Refererces of the oard’s Commitiees which outline

tre resporsibiities that are dior te Board

Tne Terms of Relerences are eviewed at .east annually 1o

consider any requlatory snd best practice developments

loom At
delegate

DECISION MAKING

Themportance of stakehoicer corsideranons, m
sarbcular o e contexl of cegsion-making. s regularly
brought to the Boaids attertor by the Lorpany
Secrelany 3nd taker into accoant at eveiry Board
meeling, and a paper rerunding Oireclars of that 15
tabled al e siart of every Boa~ mezung Tre Boad
considars e nmpact that any matendi decision wi |
have on all relevant stakehaiders to ensure that ¢ 1s
Takig a dewision taa promotas the ong-term sucress
of the Company. whetner 'his be, for examp.e. 1w
relatlion 1o Civicencs, Jew Myestme 1t 0opoiinies ol
the Compary s ‘o ward stiateg.. i1 addition, the Board,
a0ng with the vanager, hoic a meeling 'ocused on
stralegy o0 ar arnual 2asis 1a lock aleac 11 112 maiker
and \r-'.u.l:ate potental ste=aros ang how 1718 may
impac: the Compary's stakanoicers

e

STAKEHOLDERS

136 343 1200601525

BECS 27T ETRariane 0!

ey ingt
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Stakeholder Group and why  Board engagement

they are important

Shareholders |

Shareholder support is The Company has over 3,000 Sharehelders, including institutional end retail investars. The
essential to the existence of Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with

the Company and delivery Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
of long term strateqgy of the their views. These include the channels below:
business.

Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Shareholders at its AGM. Shareholders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action of makes changes, when and as appropriate.

Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to shareholders. These publications pravide information on the Company and
its portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financial position.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAY an the Stock Exchange and
monthiy factsheets on the Company's website, The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with sharehelders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together ta maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with reqular updates at meetings and outside meetings if reguired.

Sharehaolder concesns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or toncerns

with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Director is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

The Manager

Hoiding the Company’s Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
shares offers investors a the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
liquid investment vehicle line with the Company’s investment objective. Important components in the collaboration
through which they can obtain  with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.
exposure to the Company’s
diversified portfolio. The
investment Manager’s )
performance is critical for Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood befare any
the Company to successtully business decision is made.

deliver its investment strategy - Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.
and meet its objective,

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

The Boaid holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
topics on an ongaing basis. In addrtion, the Chairman reqularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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external Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the
Depository and the Broker

- — [ — — - . Jp— N

The Board maintains reqular contact with its key external providers and receives reqular

A range of advisers enables

the Company to function as reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
an investment trust and a the regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
constituent of the FISE 250 ta  taken into accaunt. The Management Engagement Lommittee formally assesses their
ensure it meets its relevant performance, fees and continuing appointment at east annually to ensure that the
obligations. key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately

remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

Lenders ;

_ e ~ - . _ . e R . . . |
Availability of funding and The Board needs to demonstrate to lenders that it 1s 2 well-managed business, capable of
liquidity are crudial to the consistently delivering long-term retufns,

Company’s ability to take
advantage of investment
oppoftunities as they arise.

Requlators 1
The Company can only The Board regularly considers how it meets various regulatory and statutory obligations and
operate with the approval follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it

of its requlators who have makes can have an impact on its stakehclders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

a legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders.

Investee Companies

Portfolio companies are The Manager communicates reqularly with partfolio companies and is an engaged
ultimately shareholders sharehaolder (on behalf of the Company).

assets and the Board
fecognises the importance

of good stewardship and
communication with investee
companies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strategy.

—— . — — ce—

The Board monitors the Manager's stewardship arrangements and receives reqular feedback
on meetings with the management of poitfolio companies and voting at their general
meetings.

250 Rresis of an
Canolicaile secnns ¢

il

Chslor -mMax-g or

GEARING

Loy e
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Wyl e
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dwidends. The Baard 1ecognises the importance of diaidends
to shareholders and after careful review of the Company’s
revenue forecasts and reserves together with the investment
outlook with the Manager, the Board deqided that,
nobwithstanding the exceptional market conditions, 1t wouid
draw on the revenue reserve to supperl the dividend

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Dunng the year the Board continued 1o focus on Lhe
perfuimgnce of the Manager in achieving the Company's
investment objective within an apprapriate nsk framewark.
Following the emergence of the COVIDA19 pandemic i March
2020, the focus widened to consider the polential impact of
COVID-19 on the Company {ncluding partfoho activity, nsks and
apportunities, geanng, revenue forecasts and the operations
aof other third party providers) 1o ensure that the portfolio had
sufficient resilience together with the Compdny's operational
structure to meet the unprecedented aicuimstances

DIRECTORATE

The Board's palicy op tenure was reviewed dunng Lhe
year The stability of the Board durnng one of the most
challenging penods was constdered important particularly
as appointments had been made Lo the Buard in Ocleber
2019 and January 2020 Therefore, no changes were made

to the Board composttion dunng the ingnaa® year However,

the Board s mundtul of the importance of having a suitable
succession plan especially as Bavid Watsor has sefved on
the Board since 2012 and Simon darrson since 2011

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Boaid Is In agreement thal having a good corporate
culture, particularly 10 1ts engagement with the Manager,
sharehoiders and other key stakehalders will audl delvery
of its long term strateqy The Board pramotes a cuituie
of openness, m hne with this purnose thiough ongoing
engagement witi its service providers and the Manager

The Directors agree that estabiishing and maintaining

a healtny corporate culture within the Board and 1n 115
interaction witk the Manager, Shareholders and other
stakenoiders wiil support the delivery of 1ts purpose, values
and strateqy The Board seeks to promote a culture of
openness, debaie and 1ntegily thiough ongoing dialague
and engagerment with s service providers, principally the
Manager The Boad strives 1o ensure [hat 11s culture 1510
line wih the Company’s pu-pase, values and stialegy

The Company has a number of polioes 2ad procedures
in place ta assist watk mairtaining a cullute of good

governance incfuding those relating to drversity,

Directors” conflicts of interest and Directors” dealings in

the Comnpany’'s shares The Board assesses and manitars
comphance with these policies as well as the general
culture of the Board reqularly thioigh Board meetings and
in particular dunng the annual evaluation process which 1s
undertaken by each Director (for more informatian see the
Board evaluation section an page 51)

Ihe Board seeks to appoint the hest possible service
providers and evaluates then sefvice on 4 regular hasis
as descnbed on page 53. The Board considers the cullure
of the Manager and other service providers, including
therr pohicies, practices and behaviaur, thraugh requiar
reporling from these stakeholdets and in parlicular dunng
the annua! review of the performance and continuing
appomtment of all service providers

EMPLOYEE, SOUAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The: Board recognises the reguirement under the Companies
ACL 2006 to detail information about humar nghts,
employees and community issJes, ncluding information
about any policies 1t has in relation to these matters and
the effectiveness of these policies These requiements,
practically, are not applicable to the Company as it has no
employees, alt the Oirectors are non-execulive and it has
outsourced all cperational functians to thrd-party service
providers |herefore, the Company has not reported further
In1espect of these provisions

DIRECTORS  INDEMNITY

Directors” and Officers” iabihty insurance cover s in
slace 1n respect of the Directors The Company's Arficles
ol Assocalion provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemnity for Birectors in respect of costs
which they may incur relating to the defence ol any
pioceedings brought against them ansing oul of their
positions as Directors, in which they are acquitted or
judgement is given in their favour by the court

To the extent permitied by law and by the Company s
Arlicles of Assocation. the Company has entered into
deeds of indemmity for the benefit of each Gneclor of
the Company 1n respect of labilities which may attack to
them in their capacity o5 Directors of the Campany These
provisions, which are qualifying third party indemrity
provisions as defined by sectior 234 of the Companies
Act 2006, were mlrocuced in january 2007 and currentiy
remain in force
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DIRECTORS' STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITGRS

The Directors who were imembers of the Board at the me
of approving the Duectors’ report are listed on pages 38
and 39 Having made endquiies of {ellow directars anad of
the Company’s auditors, €ach of these Girectors confirms
that-

to the best of eacn Direcior's knowledge and behef,
there 15 noinformation (that 15, information needed by
the Company’s auditors i connection with prepanng
thew report) of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

eacn Director has 1aken all the stebs a Director might
reasonably pe expected o haye laken to be aware of
relevant audit nlarmation and to establisk that the
Companys audilors are aware of that mionnaton

This information s given and should be interpretec in
accordance with the provisions of Secion 418 of the
Compames Act 2006

W order of the Board

David watson
Chairman

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman- Mr Wwatson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Corminitlees and make
recommendations i relation Lo shiuclure, size and
composition, the balance of knowledge, expenence
and skill ranges,

Consider succession planming and tenure policy anid
oversee the developmen! of a diverse pipeline,

Consider the re-election of Directors, and
Review the outcome of the bomd evaluation process.

The Nomination Committee meets at least on an annual
basis, and more frequently as and when required and last
met in March 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Cammittee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity policies.

The Commitlee anauaily reviewss the size and struclure

of {the Board and will continue 10 review succession
planning and further recraitment and take inta acceunt the
recommendations of external Board evaiuations

BOARD EVALUATION

Following the engagement of Tim Stephenrson of
Stephenson & Co. to faoditate an independent eva'uation
of the effectiveness of the Board, 1ts commuttees and
the performance of each director for the year ended

31 March 2020 The annual evaluatior for the year endec
31 March 2027 was carmed out by the Company This
took the: form of questionnaires followed by discussions
to 1denufy the effecliveness of the Board's activities,
including its Committees

The Charrman also reviewed walh each Director their
individual performance, contribation end commiment
The appraisa of the Charrman foilowed the same lormat
and was ted by Simon Marmson. The resulls of the
evaluation process were presented to and considered by
the Board There were no significant actions ansing from
the evaluation process ard i was agreed that the curenl
cornposition of the Baard and its Cammittees reflected a
surtabie mix of skills and expererce, and that the Board
as a whole, the indradual Direciors and its Committees
were functionimg effectively

After careful consideralion, particuiarly of the Board's Policy
Governing Board Members' Tenure and Reappaointment, all
of the directors, will be offening themselves far re-election
at the forthceming AGM It 1s considered that each of them
menl1e-election by shareholders Further infarmation on

each directors’ skills and ther contnbuticr to the Board are
outhned i the duectors” hiographies on pages 38 and 39

In accordance with the provisions of the Cade, 1t 1s the
intention of the Board to engage an external faclitator to
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be carmed aut for
the year ended 31 March 2023 The Board will continue to
complete annternat beard evaluation annually within the
mlervening years.

BOARD'S POLICY ON TENURE

In lire with the update of the Code n 2018, the AIC has
updated its Code of Corpoiate Governance in 2019, The AIC
reconmended, under Provision 24, a different approach Lo
terure n relabion to Investment companies, considenng
now Lhey differ to chairs of operating campanies, where
the Board does not have a chiel executive The Board took
il consideration the approach and mtioduced the "Polcy
Governing Board tembers’ Tenure and Reappointment’
This palicy outhies the Company’s approach to tenure and
reappointment of non-executive directors It highhights the
Board's belie! that the value brought through continuity
and experience of Girectors with langer penods of service
15 not only desirable, bul essentiat in an nvestment
company The Board did not feel that 1t would be
aporopniate 1o set a speaific tenure hmit for indivigual
Directors or the Chatman of the Board or 1ts committees
nstead, the Board will seek to recruit a8 new Director on
average every lhree yvears so as reqularly to bring the
challenge of fiesh thinking into the Board's discussions,
ensunng that on each occasion that Lthe Soard enters (rto
new 1nvestment commitiments, al least half tne Board
members have direct personal expenence cf negotiating
previous commiiments with the Manager

DIRECTORS TRAINING

when a new Duecion s appomnted, he/she ¢ offered
training to suit their needs. Direclors are aiso provides
with key imformation on the Company’s activiies on

4 regulas hasis, inciugding regulatory and statutory
requiernents and internal contra's Changes affecting
Directols responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
anse Directors ensure that they are updated on requiatory
statutory and Industy matters.
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the penod under review was a fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 020% pa based on
the net asset value (determined 10 accordance with the
AT method of valuation) on the (ast day of March, june,
september and December. payable quarierly in advance

the tee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board
for ine vear Lo 31 March 2022 2nd the fixed element of the
fee and the ad valorem rate wiil remain unchanged

The Board continues 1o consider that the fee struciure
ahgns the interests of the sharehalder and the Manage! as
well as being highly competitive

The fee arrangements will continue 1o be reviewed on an
annual £asts

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addiion to the management fees, the Board has agreed
to pay the sanager perfarmance relaled lees in respect of
al accounting penod if certain performance objectives are
achieved.

A performance fee 1s payable (f the wtal retuin of adjuste
net assets {after deductmw of all Base Maragement
Fees and other expenses), as defined in the WA, a!
37 March 2acn year outperforms he \otal retuin of the
Corrpany's bencnmark plus 14 (the "hardle rate”), this
oulperformancs {expressed 45 a percentage) 15 Koown
as the ‘percentage outperformance” Any fee payabie
sl be the amaurt eouvalent [0 the adnsled net assets
at 31 March eacn year muibiplied by the percentage
autperfarmance, then mutliplied by 3% The maximum
performance fee pdyadle fo 4 penac (s capped at 15%
of tre adiusied nel assets However i the adjusted

nel assets at the end of any penod ae less thar al the
beginming of the penod, the maximum performance fes
payah'a will e imyied to 1% of the adjusied net assets

fthe total ety of sherehotde s funds far any

performeance sennd 15 18ss an the ket mark for the

e-formance penod, such urdeoerformance
‘ led iomeard o
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relevant o
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be used for offsel purposes only and therefore cannot
rave the effect of creating a fee in a yeaf wheie 4 fee
wauld nol otherwise be payable or iIncieasing the fee

n that vear At 31 tarch 2027 there 1< a carry forward of
outperformance of 18% (2020 18%)

No fee will be payabie umess the aduusied net assets
outpettorm the hurdle rate, after laking into account

any accumulaled percentage underperformance

brought forward at the beginming of the financial year.
Performance lees earned in the year ended 31 March
2021 were £9,653000 (2020 £2,683.000) Total fees

paid 1o the Managerin any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of Group Equity
Shareholders' Funds Total tees payable for the year to 31
Narch 2027 amount to 1.2% (202G 0 8%) of Group Equity
Shareholders” Funds

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Panbas was appointed as Depositary on 14 Ju
in accorsance wilh the AIFME Tne Denosiary's
responsibiities include cash moritanng, segreqation and
sate keeping of the Company’s nanaal msirwrents, and
monnonng the Compary’s comphance with investment
ard leverage requirements The Deposilary recewves
for its seryices a fee of 20 basis points per annyir an
the st £150 millon of the Company's assels. 14 basis
POINLS per annuim on, assels above £150 milhon and
helaw £500 mulion and 0735 basis points on assets
£300 million

ly 2074

above

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS FEES
Cuslody and Admistration Services are crovided by

BNE Panbas and Comoany Secetana Services by Lifix
Cornpany Katers The fees for these servicas are charged
diecily 1o the Company ard afe contamed within

olher admimistative expenses disclosed in notes Lo the
ACCaUs

Dayvid Watson

‘

3 igne 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared Lhis reporl and the Diiectars’
Remuneration Pahcy, in accordance with the requirements
of Schedule 8 of the iarge and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reporls) Requlations 2013 An
ordinary resolution far the approval of this report will be
pul to the members at the forthcoming Annuat General
Meeling

The law requiies the Company’s Audiiors, KEMG LLE

lo audit certain of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have been audited, they aie indicaled as such
The Auditar's apinion s Included n the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’

ANMNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITYEE

The MEC met 1n March 2071 and considered the results
and feedback from the hoard evaluation aiongside
other factors. The MEC also considered the frequency of
remuneration increases for the Trust, feedback from the
market and Investors on the level of frequency ard the
current impact of the outbreak of coronavius (COVID-1%)

Following the MEC meeting (n tarch 2021, 1t was agieed
that the current level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remained appropriale It was also agreed that the
Non-executive Direcior's fee would remain at £35,000 per
annum with elfect from 1 April 20271 1t was further agreed
that the Directors howling the role of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Senmor Indepenrdent Directar would continue
to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase in
therr responsibilities Moregver, 1L was agreea that the
Chairrman’s remuneration would remain 2t £70,000

DIRECTORS  REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s policy 15 that the fees payable to the
Direciors should reflec the time spent by the Board on
the Company's aflans and the respansibilities borne by the
Directors and should be sufficent e enable candidates of
high calibre Lo be recruited The policy 15 for the Chatrman
of the Board. the charman of the Audil Committee and
lhe Senioi independent Diector to be paid higher fees

than the other Directors in secognition of thesr more
onerous roles. This policy was appraved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’ intention 1s that this
will continue for the vear ending 31 Maich 2023

The Directors are remunerated 1n the form of fees.
payable monthly in arrears, to the Duector personatly or
to & thud parly specified by that Direcior There are no
long-term incentive schemes, shate option schemes or
pension arrangements and the fees are nol specifically
related lo the Direclors’ performance, either indradually ol
collectively

The Board consists enurely of Non-executive Directors,
who are appomled with the expectation that they will
serve for g penod of three years Direclors’ appoiniments
are reviewed formally every Lhree years thereafter by the
Beard as @ whole None of the Directors have a contract
of service and a Directar may resign by notice 1In wiiting
to the Board al any hime; there are no notice periods The
termms of their appoimtment ale deladed in a letter 1o them
when they join the Board As the Directors do not have
service contracts, the Compary does nat rave a polcy on
fermination payments

Thete 15 na nolice period and no pavments far ioss of
olfice were made dunng the penod The Company's
Atticles of Association currently hmit the total aggregate
fees payabie to the Board 1o £300,000 per annum

Sharenoldes views in respect of Directors” remuneration
are commdJnicated at the Company’s AGM and are Laken
inta account in fonmuolating the Directors remuneralioi
policy At the last AGM. over 39 54 of shareholders voted
far the resolution approving the Directers’ Remuneration
Report (0.4% against) Al the 2020 AGM, over 29% voled
for the resolution approving the Directers’ Remunesation
Policy (0 4% against), showing significant sharehaider
support

The components of the remuneration package far
Non-execulive Directors, which are compased in the
Directors' remuneration pohicy of the Company ae set mit
below, with a description and approach to determination

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Fixed Fees Aqgiligxial Fees i ExpensesFees = | othee.
The aggregate limit for the Additional fees may be paid ~ The Directors are entitled Board mernbers are not

Fees for the Board as a whole  to any Director who fulfils the to be paid 2|l reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in role of the Chairmnan, who expenses properly incurred benefits, share optians,
accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  long-term incentive schemed
Association, which is divided  Board or who is appeinted with shareholders or other or other non-cash benefits or
between the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise taxable expenses.

they may deem appropriate.  Director. in connection with the

Annual fees are set to These fees will be set dllscharge of thetr duties as

reflect the experience of at a competitive level to Directors.

each board member and reflect experience and time

time commitrment required commitment.
by Board members to cary
out their duties and is
determined with reference to
the appointment of Directors
of similar investment
companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REFGRT
For tte vear ended 31 March 2021 Directors ‘ees were paid al the annual rates of Charrman E70,000 (2020 £70,600)
and all other directors £35.000 (2020 £35,000) An addwonal £5,000 15 paid per annum lor eack of the roles of Audit
Committee Chaiman and Semor Independent Diector The actual amourts paid to the Directors dunng the iinanciai year
under review are as shown helow

AMOUNT GOF EACH DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS (AU{)ITEL‘-)

The fees payanle in respect of 2ach of the Directors who served duning the finanaal year were as foillows

3% March 2021 31 March 2020

B 3 £

David watson® 60,461 40,000
Siman Marrison' 38,410 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,600
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborm® 23,333 70,000
Total - ' . ' - i ’ - 132208 " 208,877

A, fees are at a fier rate and there s roenzole remaretalian Fees ae 2g-rated Wwh2ie a (range akes slace g
1
I

2 1manda ve Jced 17 the {egs referred to 10 the tonle 2pove Thefe 2re no

‘omtter fens 1o diseose a3 the Corpan, R CUtr, @ Of Sxeutvg Cractans
ALLGTIEC s LA el 60 08 Ly 4070
ARes iR 2T S o Poenetren D Le0 o0 28 Ly 2020
srtrac e Lnaryar o 2y Ly UL
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COMPANY PERFORMANCE

the graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2027, the percentage change over each pernod

in the share price total return to shareholders compared

to the share piice total return of benchimark, which the
Board considers o be the most appropnate benchmark

for investment performance measurement purposes An
exolanabion of the performance of the Company 15 given in
the Chairman’s Slaterment and Manager’s Reporl

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class
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Shaie Price 1ete: Retuir assumirg iavestment of £1.006 on 3 March 2011 gnie
teirvestirert of all divcencs fexcluding desling experses) (Sovice |hames
R ver Lapia)

Henchrark lotel Retum assumiry netional rvestment nte the ncex of £1,000 oo
31 Marck 2077 (Sguice Thamres River Capitall

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES {AUDITED)
The interests of the Dueciors In the shares of the
Company, at the beqinaing and at the end of the year, or
date of appomtment, if later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
David Watsan 36,083 35,692
Simon Matirison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

sarah-Jane Curtis - _

Since 31 Margm 2021 1o the date of thus report, there haye
been no subsequent changes Lo the Direclors” nterests in
the shares of the Company

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

2001 2020
£000 £000 Change
Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
Directors’ fees 232 209 11.0%

Five year change comparisan
Over the lasl live years, Directors’ pay has increased as set
out in the lable below

2021 2016

£000 £000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%
Audit Commitiee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senior independent
Diector 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%

For and on behalf of the Beard

David Watson

3 June 2027
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chatrrman Mr Gilhanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
- Review the nternal financial and non-finarcial controis

« Review reporls frorm key thud paity service providers,

- Consider and recomimend to the Board for approval the
conterts of the draft iatenm and Annual Reports,

Review accounting pohcies and significant financial
reporting judgements,

- Monitor, together wih the Manager. the Company's
compliance with finanaal reporting and requiatory
requirements,

+ The review and sobsequent praposal (o the Board of
e ntenim and final dvidenas, and

- Considenng theimpact of providing non-aud)t sesvices
07 the axternal Auditor's independence and obyjectiaty

Representatives of the Manager's internai audit and
compliance departiments may atlend these (Ommwtlee
Meetings at the Committee Chairman's reques

Representatives af the Compa 1y's Auditorn atiend the
Commitee meetngs at wrich tha diaft Inlenm and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed, and are qven
the apparturity 1o speak to the Committee members
without the presence of the represertatives of the
Manager

[re Board iecogmses 19e requnemei: for the audi
Comrmittes as a whole to have (omueteme relevant

lo the sector 3nd at 'east one membe; wilh recert and
relevant financial expenence Trhe Chauman and Al
Watson are Chartera2d Accou tants wits extensive ard
recent axpenence 17 the Financia. Services irdystry The
girer memhers gl he Lommiliee Pave a comoinatior 3!
JTOEETYy AnarCal nyestTent 300 DUsinesy exXpene e
rrough seiar posions held thicaghoat neir caree s

ACTHVITY DURING THE YEAR

Gorirg tmeear e (Grmites mal {0s

meThets al eacs meelng ard (o0 ARG

- (osigeraon of e Risk Map, a, (’var‘g@: 0 'he
i o mpact of 15Ky anc o

changes regarec (0830273 L0770 and minigat

procecares (oTsinezion ol 20, me s of enes Qm__
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nsks and nclusion in the Risk Map il appropniate This
has ncluded consideration of the angoing COVID-19
pandemic and impact across a 1ange of nsk categones,

The Groups Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports Lhereon,

The ISAE/AAF and SSAETS reparts or their equivaient
fram BMO and BNP Panbas,

Whether the Company should have its own mternal
audil lunction, ,

The External Auditor's Planamag yemaorandum seiting
out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key
areas of focus,

The reports from ithe Auditors conceining then eudit
af the hinancia: Statemeris of the Company arid
Canstderation of Sigrificant ssues in rewation Lo the
Financial Statements,

The appropnateness of, and any changes g, the
accaunting polices of the Lampary. ncluaing the
reasorableness of any judgements 12quied by such
nohaes,

The Wighihily Statement airg consider ation of the
preparation of the Finanaa’ Statements an a Going
Conce.n Basis taang account of forward ooking Income
forecasts, the lipuidity of the rvestmert partlalio and
debt piofile,

The franoiar and ofher disclosures 11 the Finanoal

Slatements

Trenformabior presentec i the Intenm axd AnrJa’
Repors Lo assess whet her taken as a whole. the
Renots are far 2alancad and uagersiandeble and the
information presented w |I‘ -CHGJE‘ the shareholders to
assess the fompan‘, 5 posion, performance, husiness
maode’ and st Ategy

Salgrnal 3ucrors, W anpio. e
el aUdit fees ang considaT me assessment of

nodeperdence,

Tre ey and subsa;
thertenm ard ran D

chopTawose 1D Are dnar

s and

Treievend of tre Conmit
Sr5ANTG ey TRIAIN AT LTOpNE:

the 27578 LK C




Report of the Audit Lommittee -+ o

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has ovesall responsibulity for the Group's system
of Internal Contiole and Tor reviewing ther effectiveness
Key risks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Commuittee ta ensure thal robust internal controls
and monitoring procedues n respect of these are n place
on an ongoing basis Further detals can be found an

page 28 1o 32

the Audit Commuttee recerved and considered reparls on
Internal Contrals fram the key service providers. No areas
of concern were highhghted.

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to identify any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required Lo
existing nsks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place in tespect of these nisks The impact of COVID-19,
the response of fmanaial markets, the ongoing impact

on economies aiound the world and aperational changes
made by our service providers in response to government
guidelines wele considered and the nsk map adjusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and contiols in place within the
BMO Group and atner significasit service providers, the
Board nas concurred that there is ra cunent need for e
Company to Nave a dedicated internal audit function

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES [N RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee fas considered s ieport and financial
statements and the Vigbidity Statement on pages 33

and 34 the Commutiee considered the Auditor’s
assessment of nisk of matenal risstatement and reviewed
the internal controls 1n place i respect of the key areas
identified and the process by which the Board manitors
each of the procedures to give the Cormrmitlee comiort

on these risks on an argaing basis These risks are also
mghlighted in the Company's Risk Map

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Group's investments are
priced lof the daily NAV by BNP Panibas. The quoted
assets are priced by the Admimistiator's Global Pricing
Platfarm which uses independent exteinal piang
sources The coatrol process surpunding this is set
outin the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Inlesnal Controls
Renort and testing by the reporung accountant for the
petod repodted to 31 Becember 2020 did nnt reveal
any signilicant exceptions The quarteny control repart
to the Board from BNP Panbas covening the penod up

to 31 March 2021 had no significant ssues Lo reporl
In addition the Manage estimales the NAY using
an alternative pnang souice on a dally hasis as an
independent check

The Auditors agreed 100% of the listed investments
of the parlfolio 1o externally quoted prices and
independently recewved third party confirmations from
investment custodians and found the carmying value af
lisled invesiments 1o be acceplable,

valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physical property
portfolio 15 valued every six months by professional
independent valuers

Knight Frank LLP value the portfoiio on the hasis of
Fair Value n accordance with the RICS valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1.5} Fair Value and VPGA
1valuations for inclusion in Financial Statements.
which apply the definticn of Fair Value adopted by
the mternational Fnancal Reporting Standards [FRS 13
defines Fair Value as

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged 2
hiabiity settled or an eguity instrument granted could
be exchanged, between knowledgeable, vailling parties
m an arm’s length trensaction”

tn underiaking their valuation of each property, Knight
Frank make their assessment on the basis of a collation
and analysis of appropiiate comparable investments,
rentaf and sale transactions, tagether witfr evidence

of demand wathin the vicimity of each property. This
information is then apphed to the properties, taking
it account size, focalion, terms, covendnl and other
matenal factors

The board has reviewed reporls from the Manager and
the external valuer and determned the valuslion to be
reasonable

The Auditors have set out their detailed testing and
pioceduies in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Companys valuation
of investmen! properiies (o be acceptable

There has been nothing hrought 1o the Commitiee’s
allention 10 respect of the lirancidl statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, which was malenal or significant or
thal the Commuttee felt should be prought to shareholders’
attention
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52

AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company's auditors at the 2076 AGN
The Commuttee expects 10 18peat a tender process no
later than 2026 0 respect of the audit for the following
31 March year end, in hine with the latest Coporale
GOVerNance provisions.

Durng the year, KPMG presented ther Audit Plan lor

the year end at the intenm Commutiee meebing and the
Commtlee onsideied the audit process and lee proposal
The Commitiee also reviewed KPMG's independence
polioes and procedures including qualty assurance
procedures It was considered that these policies are fil
for purpose and the Direclars are satished that KPMG are
independent

Tatal fees payabie (o the Auditor i respect of the audit for
the year to 31 Marcn 2021 were £80,000 (2020 £30,000),
winch were approved oy the Audit Commuitiee

The Committee has approved and implemented a policy
on the epgagement of the Audiior to supply "on-audit
services, taking into account the recornmendations of
the Accounting Practices Board wilh a view L0 ensurng
that the external Aucitor does no! provide ron-audi;
services that have the polential 1o impair 0” appear to
impais the independence of ther audit role in addiior,
the Commitiee tevieveed the achions pul ir place by the
Audror ta ensure there was 4 cleal separalion betweer,
audii and advisoty services The Committee does not
believe theie (o be any impediment (o 1he AUGIOTs
objectivity ana independerce

The fees for non-audit services for 1he yeai 1o 31 tarch

2020 were mit (2020 il

Full details of the Auditor's f2es are proyiced 1n nolg 6 40
the aCcounts on page 79

The Boad ~oted that Mr Ke'ly the cofrent partaer vies
appointed for ne 2017 vearand audit 206 wall continge
23 parine” ool ynty the conc'usion oi 2027 year-end
audic w7 Gerchant wall replaca D7 <eddy 25 audit saping:
for e 2022 yesr-end audis M Lerchant 1as corsidetanls

17 e finanga’ Seivices secad a0 the audit of

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Following each audit, the Commuttee reviews the audit
process and considers s effectiveness and the quahty
of the services prowided to the Company Within this
process, the Committes takes into consideration their
own assessment, the self-evaiuation of the auditor and
the Audil Quality Review Repart produced by the FRCin
oider o monitar the pragress of the Auditar's perfarmance
comparable with its peer and the targets set by the FRC
The review foliowing the compretion of the 2020 Audrt
concluded thal the Committee was satished with the
Auditor's effectiveness and perflormance

The Commuttee felt thal KPMG had run an effecive

and efficient audit process with appropiiate challenge
Subsequently, a resalution to re-appont KPMG LLP as
the Company’s Audilor will be put io shareholders at the
forthcormung AGA

Tim Gitlbanks

3 June 2021



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in refation to the

Group financial statements

Ihe directars are responsible for prepanng the annual
Reporl, the Strateqic Report, Lthe Direclors Report and the
linanaal statements 10 accordance with applicable law and
requlations

Company law requires the directois 1o prepare Group
and Patent Company finanaal statements for each
finanaal year Under that law they ate required ta
prepare the Group financial statements ir accordance
with international accounting standards m confarmity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law and have elected 10 prepare the Parent
Company financial statements on the same Hasis. In
addition the Group financial statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Tiansparency Rules to
be prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporling Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (£C)
No 1606/2002 as 1t applies in the Furopean Union

Under company law the directors must not appiove 1he
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a tiue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group's profit or
loss for thal penod In prepanng each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the directors are
regurred to

select suitable accounting pohaes and then apply them
consistently,

make Judgements and esumates that are reasonable.
relevant and reliable,

state whelher they nave been prepared in accordance
with internationdl accounting standards 1n conformly
with the requirements of the Cemparies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group finanaal statements, International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to
Requlation (EC) No 1606/2002 as il apphes 1n the
Euronean Unian;

assess the Group and Parent Company's ability o
contimue as a goirg concern, cisclosing, as apphicable,
matters ielated to guing concern, and

use lhe going concern basis of accouring untess they
either intend 1o 1quidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
aternatrye but to do so

The direclors aze responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to snow and explain
the Parert Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonanle accuracy ot any time the firancial position

of the Parent Company and enable them 1o ensure that

its financial staterments comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are responsible for such internal contral as
they determine 15 necessary (o enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or enor, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably apen to them to salequaid ihe assels of
the Group and (o prevent and detect fraud and other
irrequlanties

Under apphcable law and regulalions, the directors are
also responsible for prepaning a Strateqic Report, Directors
Report. Direclors Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that comiplies with that law and
those regulations

The directors are 1esponsible for the maintenance and
intearity of the corporate and finanaal nformation
included on the Company's website Leqislalion in the
UK goverming the preparation and dissermination of
finanaal statemenrts may differ fiom legistation in othes
Jjunisdictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT GF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Each of the directors confirms that io the best af therr
knowledge

the finanaial slalements, prepared i accordance with
the applicable set af accounting standatds, give a true
and {air view of the assets, hasilities, fmanciai position
and profit or loss of the Group and Parent Company ard
the undertakigs included in the consolidation taken as
a whaole, and

the strategic report includes a fair review of the
development and periormance of the business and the
cosiion of the 1ssuer and the undertakings included

in the consoidation taken as a whole, togethes with a
description of the pnnapal nsks gnd uncertainties that
they face

The Directors cansider the annual repart and accounts,
taken as a wnale, 15 fain batanced and understandable
and provides the infermation necessary for shareholders
to assess the group’s position and performance, business
moder and strategy

By order of the Board

Dawnid Watson

3 June 2027
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KPMG

independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust ple

1. QUR OPINIGN 15 UNMODIFIED Basis for opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with International
Standards o Auditing (UK) ("15As (UK)") and applicable
law Our iesponsibiiilies are descnbed below We beleve
that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s a sufficient
ard eppropnate basis for our opinion Our audil opinion 15
ropsistenl with our report (o the audit committee

We have audited the hinancial statements of T Property
Investment Trust Plc {"the Company”) for the year ended
31 March 2021 which comprise the Group Statement of
Comprerensive Income, Group and Company Statements
of Changes 1n Fguity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Groun and Company Cash Fiow Slatements and the related

notes including the accounting pohoes i note ) _
D y

1Y Ul Qpaa:

— The financsl statements give 3 true ond fair view of :ﬁ;ﬁ?f:uh:gtemems £14.9m (2020:£12.5m)
the state of the Company's affairs as at 3* tarch 2077 ¢ a whole 1% {2020: 1%) of Total Assets
and of the Group's retuen for the year then ended, Key audit matters vs 2020
= The Group financial statemenrs have been property Recurring risks vafuation of direct
property investments i

prevared in accordance with UK-adopled international Carrying amount of listed
a((.ouwlln-; stardards, nvestments 4
We were first anpomted as auditor by the Directors on

2 hoverrber 2005 The peniod of total upinterrupied
ergagement s tor lng 5 finarcial years eacec 31 &larch
2021 Wwe Kave fulfiled cur etnical responsibilines

unge , and we remain independent of the Company in

- The pareni Comoany linancal statements have been
praperty orepareq n accordanice with UK-adopted
interational zccounting standards ana as apphed in
accodance witn e prawisions of the Corpanies Act

2506, 214 accordance wite, UK ethical recuirements inclucing the

— The‘nanciai statements have been prapared in FRLEltnea’ Standard as aophed 1o hsied pubhic inieves!
artoidarce with the requiements of the Companies enlties o nen-audit serices pomibitea by hat standaio
ACL 2008 and, as regards the Group firantia were piovidec

statemarts, Aruce 4 of tne 1AS Regulator to the extent
2ppacatne

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT
Kz, au01 matters a7e th
Anancia sIaIements 4n
ﬂaucj 15

250rces |7 1R agl,
:,r"ch.e“qef; om0

wd

a0 most significarce 17 e cudit o he
the” ar not dde o
the 2'tacetinr of

o e <y auit Teltgns

ST AIMTNG A 37 Aus U'QIHIOQ A00ve, 7(‘\;""*;’79" ST

‘Al e ou pofessionel adgerent,
y matetia, Tsstaement

mMes $1g” TICATT 25525587

NCT had

15¢5 0°

By
et sigrfie s
D7 Kgy 2udil 3Toceaures 1o adﬂ 55 thgse matters and, as ieg aed for public 1TteRst ertes, aur results o hose

ylmures [nese marets v

‘J

Ton LJGE‘H S5 UTGE AR 0 he (onte

A nnte, e rmIng

1
anT, Al 20T o7 thess Tates
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independent ayditor’s repart <t L o2

Valuation of direct subjective valuation: Wwe performed the detailed tests below 1ather than
property investments seeking Lo rely an cantrals, because the nature

56% (2020, 75%) of the Groups o he balance 15 such that we would expect 10
tot

(Group and Parent al assels (hy v .slm) A RN aprain audit evidence prmanly thiough the detarled

Company) Investment propert proceduras desciibed
(£83 17 millhon, he fairvalue of each property Our procedures inclyded,
2020 £94°5 million) iequires signibicant estimation.

— Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using our own
propely valuatian specalist. we evaluated the
competence, expernience and independence of the
external valuer,

i particular with regard 0
the key esumated rental
value and vield assumplions
The key assumptions will be

Refer ta pages 58 to 60
{Audit Committee Report),
page 74 and 75 (accounting
policy), and note 10 on

inpacted by a number of factors Tests of Detail: we compared the information
nages 82 1o 85 (financial Tadica qualits and condit - vetall: T compare -
disclosures) Including quality and condiion pravided by the Group tots external property
T of the bullding and tenant values for a sample of piopetties, such as rental
covenant strength incoeme and tenancy data to supperting documeants

ncluding lease agreements,
The offect of these matiers

15 that, as part of our nsk - Methodology choice: Wie held discussinns vath
355855mMent, we delermined the Gloup's external property valuer to determine
that the waluahon of mvestment the waluation methodalogy used We included our
properties has a high degiee of Gt property valuation specialist to assist us m
estimation uncartanty, with a cntically gssessing the results of the valuer's repart

b‘, checking that the vatuahions were in accordance
with the RICS valuation Prolessional Standards

the Red Book”and IFRS and thal the methodology
adopted was appropriate by reference 10
aceeplabie valuaton pracice,

potential range of reascnable
QuUECOmES greater than o’
matenaiity for the firancial
statements as 3 whole The
financial statements (note 10
disclose the sepsitraty estimatedd  — Benchmarking assumptions: vith the
by the Graup assistance of our own property valuatian specialst,
we held discussions with the Group's externas
propert, valuer to undesstand movements in
property valups For a sample of properties, we
assessed the key assurmptions used by the velues
upon which the valuations are based, includirg
those relating to estimated rental value and yield,
by inaking & comparnsan 1o our own understanding
af the market and to 1Industry bencnmarks,

Assessing transparency: e also considered the

adequacy ol the Groups disclasures about the degres
al estimation and sensitivity 10 key assumplion meds
when valuing tne direct oroperty, inve

Our results:

= e found the waluatian of investmaent properties o

T

be a(ca‘-iﬂ.ablw (7123 acceptanle)
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" The risk
Carrying amount of listed  Low risk, high value:

investments The Gioups

level Tinvestmen

Group and Parent
( P ) B8 29a (2200 8447

o) of the
(£1,317 4 mulhion

2020 £1,0601 milhon) and 1s gne of the ke
casulty e do not consider
Imvestmerts 1o he ol a
of Smmhram isskaterment,
10 b subje
level of Judgemu It because

Refer to pages 58 Lo 50
(Audit Committee Report),
page 75 (accounting pohicy)
and note 10 on pages 82
to 85 {firancial disclosures)

wehole, thes

the grestest effect on our
audit strategy and allocation
ol resources i planming and
completing our andit
3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
matenalily for the finapcal statements as 2 wirole was
sel at £149m {2020 £12 5m), determined wih reference
to a benchmark of total assels, of which it represents
0% (2020 1043

Matenalty for the Parent Zompany firanda statemer's as
awhole was ai £149m (2020 12 0y deterruneg as 6%
ol tre total assets of the parenl company (2020 3.9%%)

n e with our dudit methogoiogy, our HIocecuies on

in¢radual accaurt belances and disclosures wee performed

t0 a lower threshold, performance materiaity, so as o reduce

lo an acceptable level the sk that indiaduaiy immiatenal
misstatements Ir ndwaduat account belances 20d up 0 9 ratenal
amoun: acoss the finanaal slaerments as & whale. Perforre
mate A5 581 &t 757 (2079 75%) of matenaity ‘or the
finarag statements as @ wioie, whic? equates o £773m {2020
£34my for tme Group 21d £10 50 (2020 £93m) ‘or the Parenl
Compary e aophec this percertage n our deter rinator of
cecarmance mateaity secadse we did not de’ s any factors

PTG an elevated level of 4

ArCe

i agdimo~, e asoied matenanty of £7
232 and
£24Amyoar

2rnssy =ntal \-"(0”%, Ser

o
‘armance matenalts of £1

n (2
sm
renl INCame. Dmel gperaling

1mcoTe

Gqircore,

anc net

serurts GrocantTact fon diferences far v v bee e
SIssrateents ol iesser amgurts trar matena i, for

SHCOATSTAEMEN!s a5 3 whoe cou A reesanant;
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sortfolio of quoted
ls makes up

Groups widl assets (by value?

v s OF
these
high risk

0 3 signiticant

they comprse haquid. quoted
nvestments However, due 1o
their matenahity i e context
of the financal statements as a
are cansidered o
he one of the areas which nad
neral

Our response

we performed the detaled tests below rather than
seeking to rely on controls, because the nature of

the balance 15 such that detarled testing 15 determinad
to be the most elfective manner of ahtaiming

audit evidence

Our procedures mcluded

— Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 100%w0!
histed investments i the portfolio 12
externally quoted prices, and

Ly
level 1

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 1004 of level
Tisted investment hoidings 15 the portfche to
independently recerced third party confismations

from inyestment custodians

Qur results

— e found the car g amount of hsted
wvestments i be accemable (2020 acceptable)

be expecied tonlluence the Company's members’
assessment of tre financial peformance of the Company

We agreed 1o report 10 tne Audit Commitiee any conrecled or
ancorrecied identfied musstatements exceeding £O 75m
(2070 £083m)1n addiuon Lo other identified musstalemerts
that watianted reporting on quantative grou:ds

Our audil of the Company was unce:taken o ibe
matenalty leve! speci’iea above and was perinimed by 2
single audit team

The audit team perfoimed tre audil of the Group asif 1t was

a single aggregated set of iimnanaa! mtormation: This approdc
is urchangec from the priar year The audil of the Group was
performed using the Gioup matenalily leve! sel out above

Total Assets
£1,49Tm 12020, £31,256m)

Group Materiality
£14.9m (2020. £12.5m)

£14.9m

Whole firancial
slatenrents materiality
12020: £12 5my)

£14.1m

Parert Caompary
Materiality
{2020: £12.0my

£0.75m Misstaterrerts
reporiea 1o e audit
committee (20200
f083m)




independent auditor’s report e o

4. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the finanaial statements on
the going coneern basts as they do notinlend to liqudate
the Group of Company ar to cease 1Ls operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group of Company’s
financial posiion means that thisas realistic They have
also concluded that there are no matenal uncertainties
that could have cast significant daubl over 1ts ability to
continue as a going concern for af least 3 year fiom the

date of appioval ol the 'inancial statements ("the going
concern period”y.

We used our knowledge ol the Group, 1its industry, and the
generdl economic environment 1o identify the inherent
rsks toils business mode! and analysed how those nisks
might affect the Group o1 Company’s financial resources

or ability to cortinue pperations aver the gaing concern
period The nisks thal we considered most likely to
adversely affect the Group ar Company’s available finarcial
resources and 1ts atulity to operate over this penod were

— The tmpact of a significant redaction in the valuation
ol investments and the implications for the Group of
Company’s debt covenants,

— The hquidity of the investment portfalio and ils ability
10 meel lne habihties of the Group as and when they
fall due; and

— The aperational resilience of key service organisations

We considered whetner these nisks could plaustbly affect
the hguidity in the gaing concern period by assessing the
degres of downside assumption that, indwidually and
collecuvely, could result in a hquidity 1ssue, taking into
account the Group or Company’s current and projected
cash and liguid mvestment position (and the results of

therr reverse stress testing)

we cansiderea whelher the going concern disclosure i
note 1to the financiai statemenls gives a full and accurale
description of the Directors” assessment of gqoing concern,
tnc:uding the identified risks and reiated sensitiviiies

Our conclusions based on this woik

Wwe consider tnat the Directors” ase of the gqomng
concern hasis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial stetements 15 appropriate,

— We nave not identified. and concur with the Dinectors
assessment thal there 15 not, a matenal uncertainty
related to events ar conditions that. individuatly or
collectively, may cast significant doubl on the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
the going concermn perod;

We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention Lo
In relation to the Dnectors” staterment i1 note 1 1o the
financial statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no matenal uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt ovel the Group or Company s
use of that basis lor the going concern period, and

we found the going concern disclosure in note 1 1o be
acceplable, and

— The related stalement under the Listing Rules set oul
on pages 41 and 42 15 matenally consistent with the
financial staternents and our audit knowledge

However, a5 we cannol predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent evenls may resuft 1n
outcomes that are inconsistent wilh judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made. the
above conclusions ale nol a guarantes that the Groep ar
Company wilt continue m aperation

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY 10 DETECT

Identifying and 1esponding to nsks of materia!
misstaternent due o fraud

1o identify nsks of metena! musstatement due o fraud
{"lraud 15k} we assessed events or condiiions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure Lo commit fraud
or provide an opportunity Lo commit fiaud Oul nsk
assessment procedures incuded.

— Enquinng of Directors as to the Groups high-level
policies and procedures Lo prevent and detect flaud, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected ot alleged fraud,

— Assessing the segieqation of duties in place between
the Directors, the Admiristrator and the Group’s
lavestment Manager, and

— Reading Board and Audit Commiliee minules

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures
w0 address the risk of managemen: ove nide ol controls,

11 parucular to the nsk thal management may be in

a position to make mappropnale accoualing entnes

we evaluated the gesign and imalementation of the
controls over journzl entnies and ather adjustmenrts and
made inquines of the Admimstrator aboul mappropnate
ot unusual activity relating to the processing of journal
entries and other adjustments We substantively tested all
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malenal post-closing enties and, based on the results of
our nsk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, ncluding \he segregation of dubies between he
Directors ard the Admmstratorn, no further high-nisk journal
entries or other adjustments were 1icentfied

0On this audit we have rebutled the Traud nsk related

1o revenue recogmilion because the revenue 1s noa-
jdgemental and straightforward, wath imited opportamty
lor maniputation We did not identify any sigmficant
unusual transactions or additional fraud nisks.

Identifying and responding to risks of materiai
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws ang
requlations

we identified areas of laws and requiations thal (uld
reasonably be expected to have a matenal effect on the financiai
stalements $rom our genelal commesaial and sector expenence
and through discussion with the Diectors, the Invesiment
Manager and the Adminstrator (as required by 2uditing
standaids) and discussed with the Girectars the palces and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

The polential eftect of these laws and requiations on the
financial statements varies considerably

Fiestly the Company is subject o iaws and reguistions

that diectly aftect the inancial statements ncluging
firancial reporting leqislation (ncluding r2iated companies
lequstalion), disinbutabie profits legislation, and its
quahfication as an Irvestment Trust under LK taxation
legislation, any oreach of which could lead io the Group
losing varaus deductions ang exemphonrs fiom UK
coraoration tax, anc we assessed the extent of compiance
with these laws and requiations as part of our procedures
on e relatec financial stelement iems

Secandly, the Grous 1s subrect 1o many other aws ana
requlations where the consequences of nor-corphance
could ~ave a matenal etiect on amounts or disCigsures

It e hinangial statements, a1 instance thiough the
irpasthan of ines or Htljﬂm Wedennfied the jo"awing
aieas as trose Tos: kel io have such an eliect money
faundenrg. daa 2rotechon, M“ ;end coruptonr
leqislation a~g te~tair gspects o cormpaty, legisauc,
eoogisie g e rarael nature of e Grodps acisres

ard s lede lom Agdving standards it the ~aguired
ﬁ Crroceguies oderuf non-comzhiarce ik ress
l3.:5 ard “eguletians to ancutiy 0f 2 Directors ang the

L

ACTNTISLEN0N ARG ITSHRLI0n o ie Hu‘a o andlega

correspondand
requlatiors (s ROt 4IsC 252
ConesnTe TR, ar audit
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the mherent nmitations of an audit, there s an
unavoidahle nsk that we may not have detecled some
malenal rrisstatements i the financal statements, even
though we have prapey planned and performed ow
audit 1n accordance with auditing standards Far example,
the turther removed non-complance with laws and
reguiations s from the events and transactions reflected
i the financial staterments. ely the nherently
himited procedures required by audiling standaids would
identity 1t

In addition, as with any audit, there remained & higher nisk
of non-detection of fiaud, as these may nvolve collusion,
lorgery, intentional amissions. misreniesentations, of the
overnde of internal controls Our audit procedures are
designed o detect matenal musstatement. We are not
tesponsible for preventing non-compliance of ffaud and
cannot be expecied to detecl non-comphance with all
laws and requlations

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Duectors are responsible for the other informatior
presentedin the annuai Reporl together with the finangal
statenents Qur opiman on the financial stalements Soes
ot cove the other information and, accardingiy, we Qo
Not eXpress «4n audit apaion on, excepl as exphally stated
helow, any form of assurance canclusien thereon

Qur resporsibrty 15 [0 1eac the other nformation and,

11 doing so. consider whather, pasad on aur hnandal
statements gucht work, the information theren s
matenally misstated o inconsistent wath the iinanciar
statemerts or cur audx knowledge Based solely or thal
work we have not icenufied matenal misstatements 10 the
othemirformation

glc erDrt and Directors’ report
Basgc salely on our work g0 e otherinfor—atiop

— e rave ot idenniied mawena’ rmss Femenisin (he
Strateqic renol ens the Di

mor e g
mencel e

IFHan g 2

— T Gur apr
‘o the

sitemetrs, anc

Ty cargstenT ot ine Ainarng:
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Independent auditor’s repart cont- o0

Directoes’ remuneration report

In our epimion the part of the Directors” Remuneration
Report to be audiled has heen properly prepared 1n
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are required 10 perform procedures o dentity whether
there 15 a malenal nconsistency between the Directors’
disclosures 1n tespect of emerging and prncipat nisks and
the viability statement, and the financa: slatements and
our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have nothing matenal (o
add oi draw altention (o 10 relation to.

— the Directors” confirmation wathin the viabilly Statement
on pages 33 and 34 that they have cained out a robust
assessment of the emerging and prinaipal nsks facing the
Group, ncluding those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency and iquidity,

— the Prinapal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
describing these nsks and how emerging rnisks are
identified. and explaining how they are being managed
and mitigated, and

-- the Gieclors” explanation i the Viability Statement of
now they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over what penod they have done so and why they
considered that penod to be appropnate, and thair
statement as to whelher they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to corunue
in operation and meet its habilities as they {all due
over the periad of therr assessment, including any
relaied disclosures drawing attention 1o any recessary
qualfications or assumptions

We are also required o review the Viability Statement, sel
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listng Rules. Based on
the above piocedures, we have concluded thal the above
disclosures are malenally consistent with the financial
stalements and our audit knowledge

Our woik 15 imited to assessing these malies in ne
context of only the knowledge acquied dunng our
flnancia: statements audr as we canno! predict all futdre
evenls or corditions and as subsequent everts may
resultin oulzomes that are incansistent with judgements
thal were reasonable al the tme they were made, the
absence of anylhing Lo 1eporl on these statements 15 ot a
guarariee as to the Company's longer-term viabuity

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required Lo perform procedures to 1dentify whether
there 1s a malenal Inconsistency between the Directors’
carporate governance disclasures ang the financial
stalements and our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each
of the following s matenaily consistenl with the financial
statements and our audit knowledge

— the Diecturs’ statement that they consider that the
annual repoit and financial statements taken 4¢ a
whole 1s fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides the mformation necessary for shareholders to
assess the Gioup's position and performance, business
model and stialegy,

the section of the annual report descnbing the work of
the Audit Committee, including the significant ssues
thal the sudit commuittee considered in relation ©

the finanaial statements, and how these 1ssues were
addressed, and

— the seclion of the annual report that descnbes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal conirol systems

We are required Lo review the part of Corporate
Governarce Statement relating to the Group’s comphance
with the provisions of the UK Coiporate Governance Code
soecified by the Lisiing Rules for our review. We have
nothing la report mn this respect

7. WE HAVE MOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are requised to repor!
to you if, 1n ouUr opImion.

— adeqguate accounting records have not been kept, or
retuns adequate for our audit have not been recerved
lrom bianches not visited by us, or

- the finanaal statements and the pat of the Directors’
Remuneration Repo L Lo be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting recards and returns, or

— cerlam disclosdres of Duectors” remuneration specified
by law are pot mace; or

— we have not receved all the information and
expiaatons we equie for odr audit

we have nothing Lo reoort in these respects.
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explaimed moie fullyin their statement set out on
page 61, the Directors are responsible for. the preparation
of the finanaia! staternents including baing satished that
they give a Hue and fair view, such internat control as
they delermine 1s necessaly to enable the pieparation

of finanoal statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due Lo fraud or error, assessing
the Company’s ability Lo continue as a going concern,
dhsclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and using the going concern basts of accounting uniess
they estherinlend o hquidate the Company o 1o cease
pperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 5o

Auditor’s respoensibilities

Our abjectives are to abtain 1easonable assurance ahout
whethel the finanaal staterments as a whole are free from
mateflal misstatemnent, whether due 10 haud o error, and
o 1ssue our apimion in an awditor's feporl Reasonabie
assurance 1s a hugh level of assurance, bul does nol
guaranlee thal an avdit conducted 1In accordance witn 1SAS
(UK) will always detect a mratenal misstatement wien it
exists Alisstaterrents can anse rom fraud or error and are
considered meatenal if, indwidually or e aggregate, they
couid reasonably be expecied o inftuence the econaric
decisions of users taken an the basis of the finanoial
slaternents

A fuller description of our respansibilities 1S provided on
the FRCS website 41

w10 0rg uk/auditorsrespansiiiliies
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9. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE CGUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report 1s made solely to the Group's members, as

a body. 10 accordance with Chapter 3 of Paft 16 of the
Cormpanies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company Qur audit work has been undertaken so thai
we might state to the Groups mempers those matters we
are required to state Lo them in ar auditor's repert and for
no olher puspase To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we o nof accept or assume responsibility to anyone ather
than the Group and the Groups members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have
formed

Richard Kelly {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP. Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Saltire Court

15 Canaca Syuare

Longon

£14 5GL

3 June 2021



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 36,557 - 36,557 47112 - 47112
Other operating income 4 67 - 67 35 - 35
Gross rental income 3 3,185 - 3,185 3,415 - 3,415
Service charge income 3 1,051 - 1,051 1,786 - 1,786
Gains/(losses) on investments held at
fair value 10 - 196,582 196,582 - {153,614) (153,614)
Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes - (3.144) {3,144) - 11,296 11,296
Net movement on foreign exchange; e
cash and cash equivalents - (1,474} (1,474) - 302 302 é‘ %
Net retuins on contracts for difference 10 3,320 17,978 21,298 5724 (41,276) (35,552) g =
Net return on total return swap 10 - (188)  (183) - {3,808) {3.808) “
Total Income 44,180 209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,100) {129,028}
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 {1,556) (14,328) (15,884) (1,570} {7392) (8,562)
Direct property expenses, reat payable
and sefvice charge costs 3 {1,321) - {1,321) (1,984) - (1,984)
Other administrative expenses 6  (1.231) {604) (1,835) (1,398) {615) (2,013)
Total operating expenses {4,108) (14,932) (19,040) (4,952) (8,007) (12,959)
Operating profit/{toss) 40,072 194,822 234,894 53,120 {195,107) {141,987)
Finance osts 7 (ar6) (1,969) (2,285) {314) (2,443) (3,257)
Profit/(loss) from operations before i
tax 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) (145,244)
Taxation 8 (767) 2,667 1,900 (5912) 3,149 (2.763)
Total comprehensive income 38,889 195,520 234,409 46,394 (194,401)  (148,007)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9 1225 §L61p  73.86p 14.62p (61.26)p (46.64)p

The Total columa of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return colurmns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Association of
Investment Companies. All iterns in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement therefore “Total comprehensive
income” is also the profit for the year.

All intceme is attributable to the shareholderts of the parent company.

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes

share Share Capital Retained

Capital Premium  Redemption farnings
Ocdinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,9711 269,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - {44,429) {44,429}
At 31 March 202 T 79338 43762 23,971 1159962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained

Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings

Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total

£'000 £000 £000 £°000 £'000
At 31 Mmarch 2020 79,338 43,162 43,97 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 7 - - - {44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Nates Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
ordinary Account Reserve ordinary Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 75,338 43,162 4397 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) {43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,97 969,582 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Eatnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,91 1,161,783 1,328,254
Tatal comprehensive income - - - {148,007} (148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) {43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,571 969,982 1,136,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statemenis.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£000 £°000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
A 1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred taxation asset 12 686 686 - -
- 1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59,972
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100,223 100,099
Current liabilities 73 {107,280) {150,120) (59711 (10,016)
Net current (fiabilities)/assets (17176)  (60,488) 40,512 (9917)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807
Non-current abilities 13 {(57,593) (57,593) {59,354) (59,354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Capital and reseives
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premivm account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,91 43,97 43,971 43,97
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,736,453
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 417.97p 47.97p 358.11p 358.11p

These finandial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property investment Trust plc {Cormpany No:84492) and autharised for
issue on 3 June 2021 .

D Watson
Director

The nates from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) from operations before
tax to net tash outflow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) froim operations before tax 231,509 231,844 (145,244) (145,244)
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and desivatives held at fair
value through profit ot toss (214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,711
Net movement on foreign exchange; ¢ash and cash
equivalents and lean nates {179} {179} 85% 859
{Increase)/decrease in accrued income {102) {102) 584 534
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,80 315,80
Purchases of investrents {370,496) (370,496) (383,674} (383,674)
Decrease/{increase) in sales settlement debtor 4,753 4,753 (1,417) (1,417)
(Decrease)fincrease in purchase settlement creditos (5,781) (5.78%) 4,501 4,501
{Increase)/deciease in other debtors {1,436) (11,436) 4,447 4 447
Increasef{decrease) in other creditors 2,451 {(4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
feturnis on contracts for difference (8,489) (8,489} (3,818) (3,818}
interest and taxation (15,590) {15,590) (2.919) (2919)
Interest paid (2,607) {2,607) (3,421) (3,421)
Taxation paid .  (1915) oans) (2.321) 23
Net cash outflow from opefalin"g__a_cﬁ'ties o (20,112) {20,112) (8.661) (8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) (44,429) (43,794} (43,794)
Drawdown of loans 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities - 16,571 10,571 (3.794) _ (3194)
Decrease in cash C (9541 (0,547 (12,455) (12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents (e _ (4879) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year T 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received 45 45 37 7

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.

72 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
International Finarcial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC} No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have alsa been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

In assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they falt due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the current and likely ongoing economic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operational
resilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues 1o monitor their performance throughaut the pandemic.

In light of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset vaiue position,
and despite the net current liability position of the Group and Parent Company {which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid level 1
investments), the Directors are satistied that the Company and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operation

for at least the next 12 months following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accosnting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational currency.
Sterting is the functicnal currency because it is the currency of the primary econormnic environment in which the Group operates.
vaiues are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparaticn of the financial statermnents necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongeing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate 15 considered to be the valuation of investrent
properties. See section () of this nate. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Campary and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. All the
subsidiaries of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements.

In accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
+ it gbtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management services;

it commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment
income; and

+ it measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpose of operating or supporting the investment operations of
the Company (inctuding raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlled
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains controi, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. All intra-group batances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the tash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital returns of the Group Slatement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as ta reflect the effective yield on each such security,
Interest recewvable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
which case the proportionate commission received is deducted from the cost of the investment.

Recognition of property rental incorne Is set out in section (f) of this nate.
Recogrition of income from contracts of difference is set out in section (g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continved

<} Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accaunted for an an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into

revenue and capital ttems s given in nate 16. i arriving at this bieakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as foliows:

+  Expenses which are incidental ta the acquisition of disposal of an investment;

- Expenses are presented as capital whese a conpection with the maintenance of enbancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated, this includes irrecoverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residentiat
leases as premiurns received for extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capital account;

- One quarter of the base management fee is charged ta revenue, with three quarters allacated to capital return ta reflect the
Baard’s expectations of lang term investment returns. All performance fees are charged to capital retuin;

- The fund administration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; ane quaster to income and thiee quarters 1o capital.

d) Finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant fate of retun on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to tevenue and three quarters to capital return.

¢) Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 1o he recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged o credited directly to equity if it relates to iterns that are credited or charged o equity. Otherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The tax effect of different iterns of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's effective rate of
1ax for the year. The chaige for taxation is based on the psofit for the year and takes into account 1axation deferred because of
temporary differences between the treatment of certain itemns for taxation and accounting purposes.

in accordance with the recommendations of the SCRP the aflocation method vsed to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary infarmation in the Statement of Comprehensive incame is the “marginal basis™
under this basis, if taxable incoime is capable of being oifset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Staternent of Comprehensive Incorne, then no tax relfet is ransferred to the capital colurmn.

Deferred tax is the tax expecied to be payable of recoverable on differences between the carrying amaunts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the carresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet fiability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for afl taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avaiiable agaiast which deductible
temporary differences can be utitised.

1he Company is an investment trust under s.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not fiable for tax on capital
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject 10 Capital gains tax.

Investment property
Investment praperty is measuted initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs inchude transfer taxes, prolessional

fees far legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be (apable of
operating. the carrying ameunt also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investrent property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recagnised to be effected on the date
unconditional contiacts are exchanged.

f

g

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment pioperty is stated at fair vaiue. Gains or (osses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Gioup Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its dispasal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal.

Gains of losses on the disposal of investment propesty are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with 1FRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive (ncome. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation speciafists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2071
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS valuation - Global
Standards {The Red Book Glabal Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without cornpulsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmentat matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on focal market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only refied solely on historica! transactional comparables. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 (e).

Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the {ease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
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incentives for lessees 1o enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are net made an such a basis. The lease term is the nan-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inceplion of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiumns received to terminate or extend leases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
market, the investments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

Al the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are aiso
described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value.

Al investments are designated upen initial recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quated investrnents, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
far SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including alt the FTSE All -Share and the maest liquid AIM constituents. Linquoted investments or investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair vaiue which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general ecanomic dimate.

In its financial statements the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset value. The subsidiaries have historically been halding vehicles for direct property investment or financing vehicles. Ne
assets are curiently held through the subsidiary structure and alf financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. Cn disposal, realised gains and
losses are alsc recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and fosses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Gioup
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and {asses on CFDs and total feturn swaps resulting from mevements in the price
of the underlying stock are trealed as capital. Dividends from the underlying investrnent and financing costs of CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital,
Contracts for Difference (“CFDs”) are synthelic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market vatues.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract {e.g. notionat dividends, financing costs, interest returns and capital
changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the undertying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend income or expenses arising on long or short positions
are apportioned whoily to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on iong pasitions is apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes i value relating to underlying price movernents of securities in relation
to CFG exposures are aliocated whally to capital reserves,

1) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
All loans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amaortised cast,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing aans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving toreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign cuffency maonetary assets and Kabilities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruing on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incame.

i) tash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amgrtised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to sharcholders
Interim dividends are recagnised in the perigd in which they are pai¢ and final dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders.

I} Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial staternents except as noted beiow,

IFRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided more guidance on the definition of a business to assist in determining
whether a transaction results in an asset or a business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Referm - Amendments to IFRS S, IAS 39 and IFRS 7. The arnendments provided temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting 1o continue during the period of uncertainty befare the replacement of an existing interest
sate benchmark with an alternative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 8 - Definiticn of Material. The International Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and issued practical guidance on applying the concept of materiality. The amendinents have not had a material impact
on the Graup’s financial statements.

The Conceptual Framewaork for Financiai Reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standarg however its purpose is o outline
a set of concepts for financiat reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing cansistent accounting policies
and assistance to others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The framewaork has not had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of sfandards and interpietations

The standards issued befoie the reporting date that becomne effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a materiak
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new International Financial Reporting
Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial stalements are listed below:

IAS 1 Amendments - Classiication of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effective date amended to 1 January 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for ciassifying liabilities as current of non-current. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclasure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting palicies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting policy information. The amendments are niot expected to have a material irnpact on
the Group's financial staternents.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty” The amendments alsa clarify the
interaction between an accounting palicy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are nat expected to have a material
impact on the Group's financial staternents.

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective 1 january 2022) The amendments intend to clarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from sefling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial staterments.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuved

IS 37 Amendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling cantract (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarify that for
the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling contracts. The amendments are niot
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 39, IFRS 4, 7. 9 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2) {effective 1 January 2021) IBOR refarm refers
to the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of some interbank offered rates (BOR} with
aiternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the referm on a company’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy, additionat information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company s exposed arising from financial instruments subject to IBOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company’s
progress in completing #ts transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 41, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvernents 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1 January 2022) The minor improvements,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements, to the standards noted were endorsed in
September 2020.

IFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual framewark (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of tAS 37 of IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination. in addition, IFRS 3 now contains 3 statement that an acguirer
does not recegnise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS 9 Deferral {effective 1 January 2023) The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions {effective 1 April 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to lease payments originally due on or before 30 june 2022

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts {effective T January 2023) iFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, incfuding measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments to IFRS 17 {effective 1 January 2023) In june 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standard. The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 491
Dividends fram ovesseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
Scrip dividends from listed investments 7,482 3,370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200
- 36,557 47112
3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£000 £'000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415
Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, fent payable and service charge costs {1.321) {1,984)
T ' 295 3217
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3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered inta commercial leases on its property portfalio. Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market
conditions. Some leases contain options to hreak before the end of the (ease term.

Future minirrum rentals under nan-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

20 2020
£'000 £000

within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500

o 32,000 28,550

4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

£'000 £'000
Interest receivable 1 32
Interest on refund of overseas withhoiding tax 44 3
Underwriting commissica 22 -
B T T m

Underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee companies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of cornmission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which it is prepared 1o increase its
holding should that be the outcorne. The cornmission earned is taken to revenue unless any securities undeiwrillen are required to

be taken up in which case the proportionate commissian is deducted fram the cost of the investment. During the year the Lompany
participated in one (2020 wil) underwiiting and all commission earned was 1aken to revenue and shown under Other operating income.

5 MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

20N 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Retum Return
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4,709 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

201 2020
£°000 £000

Directors' fees (Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 57) 132 209
Audites's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statements 80 80
Legal fees 15 kgl
Taxation fees 69 103
Other administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
ltrecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue ) 1,251 1,398

Expenses charged to Capital 604 615 g "E'

1,835 2,013 z 5

E

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797.000 (2020: £796,600}.

Cther expenses include broker fees, marketing ard PR casts, Birectors’ Nationat Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution casts. These expenses are charged solely to the
revenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS
00 2020
£°000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafis repayable within 1 year 1,210 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1,391
HMRC interest: release of FIl GLO provision (240) -
2,388 3,257
Amount allocated to capital return (1,969) (2,443)
Amount aliocated te revenue retyrn B 4. T g4
8 TAXATION

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2021 pliral 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
UK corporation tax at 19% {2020: 19%) 1,989 {1,989) - 3362 {3,149) PAK!
Overseas taxation B66 8 874 2,606 - 2606
2,855 {1,981) 874 5,568 {3,149) 2,319
(Over)/under provision in respect of priar
years {1,980) - {1.980) (406) - (406)
875 {1,981) {1,106) 5,562 (3.149) 2,413
Deferred 1axation (108)  (686) (794) 350 - 350
Current tax chaige for the year 767 {2,667) (1,500) 5,912 {3,149) 2,763
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8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2020: fower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large company of 19%
(2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

2021 201 2020 2020 2020

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Totat
Return Return Return Return

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Net profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550)  (145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9938 (37.535) (27,597}
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - (37.351) {(37,351) - 29187 29187
Currency mavements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204) (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1,038) (1,038)
Non-taxable returns (23) {3,380} (3,403} - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends {972) - (972) {1,043) - (1,043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends {4,573} - (4,573) (5,540) - {5,540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment {108) {686) (794) - - -
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior

years (1,980) ~ {(1,980) (406) 5 (a01)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Deferred tax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 (87) 201

767 (2,667) (1,960) 5,912 (3,149) 2,763

The Group has nat recognised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020 £nil) arising as a result of losses carried forward.

It is censidered too uncertain that the Group wiil generate piofits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available lo
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to obtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capilal gains arising on the revaluation o¢
disposal of investrments.

<) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group
2021 2023 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 000
Accelerated capital aliowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (688) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) {686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continved
Company

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Refurn Return Return Return
£°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried farwaid - (6886) {636) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) {686) 108 - 108
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group
01 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retuin
£000 £000 £'0600 £000 £'000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances {108) - {108) 1 350 35
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686} (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) {686) 108 - 108
Company
201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £500 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 167 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year I {686) {686) 108 - 108
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/{lass} per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000
Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/{loss) 195,520 (194,401)
Net total profit/(loss) 234,409 (148,007)
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317.350,980

Revenue earnings per share
Capital earnings/(loss) per shate

Earnings/(iass} per Ordinary share

12.25

61.61
73.86

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share are the same.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE
3) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company

2021 2020 2020

£000 £000 £'000

Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,071 83,071 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429

1,400,516 1,443,828 1,185,295 1,205,724

b) Business seqment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net ER'EIITENT revenue revenue

31March  additions/ appreciation/ EIELEIL) 31 March 31 March

2020 (disposals)  {depreciation) 2021 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Listed investinents 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 45,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17,978 {141) 3,320 5724
Total return swap (3,808) 3,996 (188} - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 25973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 (9,838) {1,601) 83,071 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44113 58,037

in seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationaily and also in investment property lecated in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there
are two distinct reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and aliocation of
resources. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives information on the two segments on a regulas basis. Whilst
revenue streams and direct praperty costs can be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannat be
split to aliow a profit for each segment to be determined The assels and gross revenues for each segment are shawn above.

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217,000) for the direct property reporting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

valuation Net Net IRELTEUTLT revenue jevenue

31 March  additions/ EUas WP 31 March 31 March 31 March

2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 201 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £°000 £000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963

UK enlisted equities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct preperty’ 94,510 (9,838) (1,607 83,0M 4,236 5,201

Continental European listed equities 708,597 89.093 124,11 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 195,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

UK contracts for difference? 5,01 (13,108} 8,621 584 1,242 2,714
European contracts for difference? 3,627 (13,709} 9,357 (725) 2,078 3,010 E
S @
UK total return swap® (3,808} 3,996 (188) - - - 2
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 é 2

Ingluded in the abave figures are purchase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,000) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £199,000).
These comprise mainly stamp duty and commisston.

The Company received £329,018,000 {2020: £367,977.000) from investments, including direct property, soid in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

' Net additions/{disposals) includes £465,000 (2020: £981,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/{depreciation) includes
amaunts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciation/(depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year.

¥ The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movernent in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or more of any class of ¢apital in 10 companies (2020: 8 campantes) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See note 21 on pages %6 and 57 for
further details of subsidiary investrnents.

¢) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investments) or the balance
sheet amount is a reasanable approximation of fair value {due from brokers, dividends and interesl receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
{ategorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the refevant asset as follows:

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Llevel 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (i} and 1 (g).
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

¢) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabifities continued
The table below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 2021 level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £7000 £000 £000

Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445

Investment properties - - 83,07 83,071
Contracts for difference - (1) - (147)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {1,107) - {1,207)

1,315,977 (1.248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £'000 £'0600 £'000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785

investment propesties - - 94,510 94,510

Contracis for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total teturn swap - (3,808) - {3,808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (5,609) - (5,609)

1,060,103 (719) 95192 1,154,576

The table above represents the Group’s fair vaiue hiesarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 {2020: £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as level 3 in hoth years. The movement in the year of £7,117,000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair value in the year,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the release of a corporation tax provision of £348,000
in a subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2021 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:

£1,214,422,000),

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

Appreciation /EEIRELL]

At 3t March 201 31 March
2020  Purchases Sales {Depreciation)
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786
Investment properties B h
- Mixed use 52,623 315 {303) (4,658)
- Office & Industriai 41,887 150 (10,000) 3,057
) ) 94,510 465 {10,303) (1,601)
95,192 465 (10,303) (815)

1,468

47,977
35,094
83,07
84,539

All appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above relates to movements in fair value of unlisted equity investments and investment

properties held at 31 March 2021,

The Group held one unguoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hieraschy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continuved

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement cateqorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment properties are:

® Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft {2020: £6.5- £65)
® Capitalisation fates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in isolation would result in a significantly higher {Jower}
fair value measurement. A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in a significantly lower
(higher) fair vaiue measurement.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by market rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuatien to changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at office &

31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial g é

£/000 £'000 m2
2k

Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 “

Decrease in rental value by 5% : {250) {1,610) {25) {1,885)

Increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040) (5,835) (925) {10,800)

Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985

Estimated movement ir fair value of investment properties at office &

3t March 2020 arising from Retail Industsial Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080

Decrease in rental value by 5% (1,225) (1,720) - (2,945)

Increase in yield by 0.5% (5,025) (6,005) (950} (11,980)

Deczease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instrsments for the long term in the pursuit of the Investment Objectives set out cn
page 24. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could resuit in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group faces in its portfolic management activities are:
® Market risk (comprising price 7isk, currency risk and interest rate risk)

® Liguidity risk

@ (redit risk

The Manager’s policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
year.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price Huctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the portfelio activity and performance at each Board meeting.
The Board moniters the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group’s exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment praperty portfalic, was as

foliows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Investments held at fair vatue 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD long gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS long gross exposuce - 6,558

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Pofices on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company, geographical
region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an apprapriate spread of exposure to individual or sector price risks. As an
investment company dedicated ta investrnent in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price rnovements across the property
asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The following table itlustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group’s equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The level of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous vear. The sensitivity is based en the Group’s equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables held constant.

201 2021 2020 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Deciease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Statement ol Comprehensive income - peofil after lax

Revenue return (103) 103 {77} 77
Capital return 209,801  {209,801) 173,817 (173,817)
Change to the prefit after tax for the year/sharehalders' funds 209,698 {209,698) 173,740 {173,740)
Change to total earnings per Grdinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p (54.75)p
11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group’s portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value can be significanily atiecled by
meovements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives a repor! at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, Euros or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozone by funding investments in averseas
securities with unsecured loans denominated in the sarme currency or thiough forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Ewo 51.0% 53.0%
Swedish Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The foilowing table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the net
menetary assets and liabilities:

Sterling g g

201 £000 Eal

g 2
Receivables {due from brokess, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafis {95,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) {10,142) (1,031) - -
FX forwards (61,209) - 13,843 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items o {94,036) o 13,976; B 15,059 41825
investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-current liabilities {15,000) {42,593) - -
Total currency exposure 370,365 679,351 170,694 106,023

Swedish

Sterting Euro Krona Other
2020 £000 £000 £000 £000
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income teceivable) 31,552 27495 634 413
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 11,922 962 1,643
Bank loans, ioan notes and overdsafts (40,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,026) (6,076) - -
FX forwards {133,737) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign curfency exposure on net monetary items {124,603) 95,355 24121 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-cutient assets (15,108) (44,246} - -
Total currency exposure 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

it assumes the foliowing changes in exchange rates:
® Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Swedish €rana +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency sensitivity continued

If Sterfing had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect:

Year ended March 2021

Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Statement of Comprehensive Intome -
profit after tax
Revenue return (2,726) (589) (250) {3,016) (340) {(99)
Capital return (83,243) {20,269) (7,579) (71,091) (13,132) (7.317)
change to the profit after 1ax for the
year/sharehclders’ funds (85,969) {20,858) {7,829) (74,107} (13,472) (7,416)
Change to total earnings per Grdinary share (36.13)p (29.93)p
if sterling had weakened agamnst the currencies shown, this woutd have the following effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020
Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax
Revenue return 3,41 732 318 497 423 113
Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909
change to the profit after tax for the
yeai/shareholders’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate mavements may affect:

@ the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair vaiue of the loan notes;

@ the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on depaosit;

® the level of interest expense en any variable rate bank loans; and

@ the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that coutd arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into account when
making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of gearing and structure of its
debt portfolio is a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
set out in note 13. In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan facilities which carry variable
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, pius a margin. These facilities total £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (i.e. the loan nctes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investment portfolio. These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group’s financial assets are not directly
subjet to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuaticns in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 Maich of financial assets and financiat liabitities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

@ floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027,000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil}.

IYIINVNIA

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

v
h-3
B
o
=z
m
=
z
w

® Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivatent
(2020: same).

® Interest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan facilities, is at a marqin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan {2020: same).

® The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to inlerest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest fates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2021 201 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £'000 £000

Change to shareholders’ funds (1,176) 1,176 (317) N7
Change to total eaenings per Ordinary share {0.37)p 0.37p {0.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holds.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unguoeted investments in the portfclio are subject o liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the fiquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% (2020: 8% of the
Group's investment portfolic was held in direct property investments.

At 31 March 2021, 94% {2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable,

Bank loan facilities are short term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilities tagether with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within within Within within  More than

1year  1-2 years 3-4years 4-5years 5 years

At 31 Mmarch 2021 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank lpans” 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593

Projetted interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 10 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717

Within Within Within Within within  More than
1year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
At 31 March 2020 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59246

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 17,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,892
Other creditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

* A £60m multicureency facility with RBS was renewed far one year in February 2021. £50m (2020: £10m) was drawn an this facility at the balance sheet date. A
£30m one year tacility with ING Luxembourg was 1enewed in july 2620 £30m (2020: £30rn) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A £40m facility
was renewed with ICBC in November 202€. £15m (2020: £nil) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum expeosure of the partfolig to unquated and direct property investments. These are set

out in the Investment Palicies an page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and ditect property investments with a

value gver £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains reqular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is explaring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongoing basis.

11.5 Credit risk

The failure of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
2 loss, At the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with cne counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 twa counterparties).

Management of the risk

Invesiment transactions are carned out with @ number of braokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periodicaily by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high guality
externat credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In surnmary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximumn exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as foilows:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Balante  Maximum Balance Maximem

Sheet  exposure Sheet exposure

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Debtors 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29114 29,114 40,129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirernent for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
alt receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected credit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an {SDA Master Agreement of similar agreement with its O1C derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreernent
is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event of a default and/or termination event. Under
an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterpasty certain derivative financial instruments
payables and/or receivables with toilateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterparly. However, bankruptcy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
restrictions on or prohibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceabie
rhaster netting arrangement or similar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s derivative assets and’l}a_bilitiés (bwype\and counterparty) are as follows:

IVIINYNIL

Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

v
»
=]
=
2
m
=
3
Wl

Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £000 £000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs {141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
T 50,913 8,698 31,525
TRS position: .

ING - - (3,808) 7997
- - (3.808) 7,997

FX forward contracts: ) 7 -
Bank of Montreal - - (2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC (1,107) - - -
Westpac - - {(9) -
(- (5.609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Nate 13}, the fair values of the financial assets and
financiat liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet amount is a
reasonable approxirnation of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prepayments).

The fair values of the listed investrnents are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an assel or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year.

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Beok) valuation of the praperties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
in the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amaunts of change in fair value for investments inctuding net retuins on (FDs recognised in the cansclidated profit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

& 1o ensure that it will be able to continue as a gaing concern; and
® to maximise the total retuin to its equity sharehaolders through an appropriate batance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of ralled up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue resefves totalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000}. The Group does not regard the loan notes and loans as
permanent capitak.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at ail times be equivalent 1o a minimum of 300% of Tetal Borrowings; and
® the Adjusted NAV shall nat be less than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Group Cempany Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £000

Amounts falling due within ane year:

securities and ptoperties sold for future settlement 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income! 5176 5176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 7997 7997
other debtors 403 403 358 358
o ) ' 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972

Non-cuirent assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

' includes amounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 194 194 5975 5,975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 141 141 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 3 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3812 3,783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 PE

Other creditors 110 104 294 286 5 E
107,280 150,120 58 110,016 g §

Non-cuirent liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59,354 59,354
Loan Notes

©n the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,006,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 16th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euro Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219,000
(2020: £15,553,000) at 31 March 2027,

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Noltes are deemed 1o be categorised within tevef 2.

The loan netes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Bormowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAY shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group alse had unsecured, multi-currency, revolving short-term foan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000) at
31 March 2021. At 3t March 2027 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities {2020: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 1.3 and 11.4.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

long term  Short term
debt debt Total
£°000 £°000

Group and Company

Opening fiabifities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:

Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement on foreign exchange {(1,653) - {1,653)
Cosing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 202t 57,593 95,000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share capital
The baiance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, allotted
and fully paid

Number £000
Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 T 317,350,980 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none}.
Since 31 March 2021 ne Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Share premium account
The balance classified as share premiumn includes the premium above nominal value from: the proceeds on issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivalent to the nominai value of purchases of the Company's own
shares in order to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

{ompany Gfoup Company

2021 2020 2020

£'000 £000 £000

Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,51
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 651,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996

Revenuye reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982

Graup investment halding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unlisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.

Company investrnent holding gains at 31 March 2021 include gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,697,000) refating to unlisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,661,000 revaluation gain (2020: £50,742,000) relaling to investment properties. Dividends are
only distributable from the revenye reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 Maich
2021 2020

£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 27,292
(2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502
44,429 43,794

Amaounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the yeas:
Proposed finat dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 21927

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial statements in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”

w
5
m
£
m
=
=
a

Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirernents of 51158 of the
Corpaoration Tax Act 2010 are considered.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020

£000 £000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2027 of 9.00p

(2029: 8.80p) pet Ordinasy share 28,562 27927

45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,463,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,986 (2020: 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent fiabilities (2620: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are registered and operating in Scotland, England and Wales:

Name

New England Properties Limited
The Colonnades timited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Deveigpments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investment Tryst Limited

The Tefra Property tnvestment Trust Limited

Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Unien Properties (Number Five} Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Numnber Eleven) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Fousteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Propersties {Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Progerties {Cardilt) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale} Limited

Trust Union Properties {Number Twenty-Two) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Fin2nce Limited

Trust Urion Finance (1991) Plc

FGH Developments timited

FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited (E18030)
fGH (Newcastle) Limited

NEP {1994) Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England Investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New £ngland (Southerr} Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Reg. Number
788895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2416015
2415843
2416017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416027
2415820
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2415806
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416031
2475765
216036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SC638799
1466619
977481
1385909
2613905
144721
178731
803940
2134624
1233998
24715911
2420097

Principal Activities
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
investment financing
Non-tiading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nan-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Investment holding and finance company
Investment hoiding and finance company

Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued

The Company has provided a quarantee for each of these subsidiaries in arder for them to take the exernpticn from the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the holdings are ardinary shares.

All companies have the registered office af 1112 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festivai Square, Edinburgh EH3 98BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been elimirated on
consalidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

20 2020
£'000 £'000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 a2

j imi 5%

TR Property Finance Limited 20,231 27743 zZ

New England Properties Limited (20) (20) =2
42,880 50,342

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, whe are the key management personnei of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified in IAS 24: Related Party Disciosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a refated party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disciosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 57.

Dividends totalling £17.000 (2020: £10,006) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.
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Glossary and AIFMOD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance Measures are numernical measures of the
Company’s current or historical performance, financial position or
cash flows, other than the financidl measures defined or specified
1n the Ftnancial Stalements.

the measures defined below are considered to be Alternative
Performance Measures [hey are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended investment
companies

Total Return

The NAV [otal Return 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends
In the assets of the Company trom the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividends are deemed to be reinvested on the ex-dividend
date as this 1s the protacol used by the Company's benchmark
and ather indices The Share Price Tatal Retuin 1s calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Cempany from the
relevant ex-dividend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 Maich 2020 358n 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 417.97 3925
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Return for the year _ 20._7% - 28.3%

Net Debt

Net debt 15 the total value of loan motes, Ioans (including rotional
exposure 1o CkDs and IRSs) less cash as a proportion of net asset
value

lhe net gearng has been calculated as follows:

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFD positions (notionat exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS position (noticnal exposure) - 16,405
Less: (ash {29M4) (40,129)
Less: Cash collateral {included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) (50,913) {39.522)
218,567 86,728
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 7.6%
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The Dngoing Charges ratio has been calculated n accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the total of invesiment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset Values throughout the year
Ihe defimtion of adrministrative expenses does include property
related expenses, the Ongaing Charges calculation 1s showi
Inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow companson
of the direct administrative and management chaiges with

the majonty of investrnent Trusts which do not hold any direct
property investments

including

Excluding
Performance Performance
Fees Fees

£'000 £000

Management Fee

{note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note &) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Cngoing Charge o N o

2077 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongaing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

Ihe Ongoing charges ratio provided in the Company’s Key
Information Dacument 15 calculated in line with the PRIPS
regulations which 1s different to the AIC methodclogy above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Irust’s ghjective against a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are considered to be Alternative Performance
Measures These are set out on pages 26 and 27 of this report
together with inforimaticr about any calculations or the source of
data



Glossary and AFMD disclosure <3000l

2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

the Alternative Fund Managers Directive 1s buropean legislation
which created a European wide framewark for reguiating the
managers of “alternative investrment funds” (AIFs) It1s designed
to requlate any fund which is not a UQITS (Undertakings for
Collective investment In Iransferable Secunties) fund and which
Is managed or markeled In the kY

AlC
Ihe Association of Investment Companies - the AIC1S the
representative bady for closed-ended investment companies

Alternative Performance Measure

Afinancial measure of financial performance or financiat position
other than a hnancial measure defined or specified n the
accounting stalements

Discount

Ihe amount by which the market price of a share of an
mvestmert rust s lower than the Net Asset value per share
expressed as a percentage of the NAv per share

Key Information Document

under the PRIIPs Requlations a short, consumer friendly Key
Infarmaticn Dacument 1s required selting out the key features,
nsks, rewards and costs of the PRIP and s intended to assist
investars 1o better understard the Trust and maxe comparisors
between Irusts

The document includes estimates of investiment performance
under a rumber of scenanas 1hese calculations are prescribed
by the requiatior and are based purely on iecent historical data
it s impertant for investors tc rote that there 15 no judgement
appled and these do not In any way reflect the oard or
Manager’s views.

Key Peeformance Indicator "KPi~

A“KPI"1s a quantifiable measure thal evaluates how successful
the trust 15 in meeting its objectives, The Trust's KPis are
discussed on pages 26 and 27

MiFID

The Markets n Financiar instruments Oirective s the £U
legislation that requlates frms who provide services to clients
Irked to “financial irstrurments” (shares, bands, units in colective
investment schemes anc denvatives) and the venues where
thase Instruments are traded

Net Asset Value {NAV) per share
lhe vaue of tola: assefs less habilites (iIncudirg borrowings)
divided by the nurrber of shares In ssue

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD™)

In accordance with the AIFMD, information 1n relation to the
Company’s leverage and remuneration of the Campany’s AlbM,

FaC Investment Business Limited, 1s required to be made
avatlabie to investors. Delailed requlatory disclosures including
those on the AlFM's remureration palicy afe avallable an the F&C
website of from F&C an request. The numencal remuneration
disclosures in relation to the AIRMS first refevant accounting
period will be made available n due course

leverage
Under the AlFM Directive, 1t1s necessaty for Alfs to disclose their
leverage In accordance with prescribed calculations

Although teverage 15 often used as another teim for geanng,
under the AIFMD leverage 1s specifically defined Two types of
ieverage calculations are defined: the gross and commitment
methods These methads summarnly express leverage as a ratio
of the exposure of the AlF against its net asset value ‘Exposure’
typically inciudes debt, the value of any physical propesties
subject to mortgage, non-Stering currency, equity or currency
hedging at absolute notional values (even those held purely
for risk teduction puipases, such as forward forergn exchange
contracts held for currency hedging) and denvalive exposure
{converted into the equivalent underlying positions) The
commitment imethod nets off denvat.ve instiuments, while the
grass method aggregates them

The table below sets aut the current maximum permitted limit
and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020:

! Gross Commitment
Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%

Actual 124% 118%

The leverage umits ase set by the AlkM and approved by the
Board and are in ine with the imits sel out in the Company’s
Arlices of Assaciatior

Ihis shou'd not be confused with the geanng set cut e the
Financial H'ghlights which is catculated under the taditional
method set out by the Assac ation of Investmert Comparies 1he
AlthA s aisc required to comply with the gearng parameters set
by the Board ir relat on to borrcwirgs
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Notice of Annual Geraral Meeting

THIS NOTICE 1S IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

It you are 1 any doubl as to the action you should take you
should seek your own adwice from a stockbroker, salicitor,
accountant ar ather independent prefessional adviser who is
authonised under the Hinancial Services and Markets Act 2000 if
you are resident in the United Kingdom, or if not, from another
appropnately authorsed independent financal adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accompanying
documents to the purchaser, ar transferee, or to the person who
arranged the saie or transfer so they (an pass these documents
to the person who now holds the shares

Our preference 15 to welcome sharehalders in person to our 2021
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced in 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic The Comgany Is continuing to monitor
the current COVID-19 legislation and public health quidance issued
by the UK Government

we have prepared for this AGM based on the antiupated status
of the UK Government's roadmap aut of lockdown at the date
of the meet.ng 1115 expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as normal as 3 physical meeting.

However, it may be necessary Lo adapt our dirangements to
respond to any changes 1in crcumstances, including the possibility
of a delay to the further easing of restrictions Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM {including ary change to the lacation
of the AGM) will be communicaled lo shareholders before the
meeting, ncluding through our website (www.trproperty.com)
and via an RNS announcement

The meeting will be conducted in accordance waith legislation
and public health guidance in force at the tme aof the meeting
Depending on the arcumstances at the ime of the meeting, 1t
may be necessary ta lmit physical attendance by sharehclders
we regret 1hat it wiil not be possible to provide refreshments
i the usual way. If new restrictions are imposed, 1t 15 possible
that we will not be in a position to accommadate shareholders
beyord the mimmum required to hold 2 quorate meeting.

Reqgardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
lo proceed as planned, we strangly encourage all shareholders
to vole In advance by proxy and appoint the Chairman of the
meeting as thewr praxy rather than any other named perscn,
whg may not be permitted to attend the AGM. This will ensure
that their vote will be counted If they {or any other proxy they
might otherwise appaint} are nct able to attend the meeting All
resclutions will be vated cn by a pall

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to register
their intention as soon as practicable by email to the following
dedicated address cmuk-tipropertyinvestment@hinkgroup co.uk

Sharetolders who are not atle or do not wish to atlend the
meeting in person (regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able tc watch a live webcast of the meeting This wilf include the
formal business of the meeting, the Marager's presentatior and
quest:ons ard answers 1he webcast wili nat enable sharehalders
ta participate 1n the meeting ar vote However, shareholders will
be invited to submit questions through cur websie, by 12.00
noon on 26 July 2021 Guestions of 3 very similar nature may be
grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the AGM
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Shareholders are asked lo consult the website 1n the period
leading up to the event where any restnctions or changes will
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitied at that ime

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

IR Property Investment Irust plc (the "Company”™) will be held
at 2 30 pm on 27 July 2027 at the Royal Autamobile Club, 89/91
Pali mall, London SW1Y SHS for the purpose of transacting the
fol'owing business.

lo constder and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions,

of which Resolutions 1 to 11 will be proposed as Crdinary
Resoiutions and Resalutions 12 Lo 14 shail be prapesed as Speciai
Resoiutions.

lo receive the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021,

lo apprave the Directors’ Remuneration Repart (other than the
pairt containing the Directors’ remuneration policy) for the year
ended 31 March 2021

To declare a final dividend of 5.00p per Ordinary share
To re-elect Simon Marrisorn as a Director.

lo re-elect David watson as & Directar.

To re-elect im Gilibanks as a Direclor.

lo re-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director

To re elect Sarah-Jane Curtis as a Director

To re-appoint KPMG LLP {the "Audicr™) as Auditors of the
Company o hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual
Genelal Meeting of the Company

To authonse the Directors to delermine the remureration of
the Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Grdinary resolution

© THAT, in substitution for all such existing authonues, the
Directors be genelally and unconditionally authenised
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) Lo exercise all
the powers of the Company o allot shares in the
Company and ta grant nghts o subscribe for, or to
convert any secunty inlo, shares in the Company us o
a nominal value of £26181.455 (heing approximalely
33% of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company
as at the latest practicable date prior to publcation of
this Notice) provided (hat this authonty skall expire
at the date of the next Annual Generai Meeling of
lhe Cempany {or, 1f earlier, at the close of business
or 27 Gctober 2022), save that the Company shall
be enlitled (o make alfers or agreements belore the
expiy of this agthonty which would or might 1equue
shares to be allotted o nghts to be granted after
such expiry and the Direciors shall be entitled to allot
shares and grant nghts pursuant 1o any such offers o
agreements as If this authonty had not exprred



Natice of Annual General Mezting

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

{a) {in substitutign far ail such existing autherities and subject
to the passing of Resolution 11 set out abave) the directors
be empoweted pursuant ta Section 570 ard Section 573 of
the act to allot equity secunities (as defined in Section 560
of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authanty conferred
by Resolubon 11 above and/or 1o sels shares held by the
Company as weasury shares for cash asif Sectior 5611} of
the Act dig not apply to any such allotment, provided that
this pawer shall be limited to

(1) the allotment of equity securities and sale of treasury
shares far cash in connection with an ofer of, or
invitatian to apply for, equity secufities

(aa) to sharehalders in propertion (as nearly as may be
practicable) ta then existing holdings, and

(bb) to halders af other equity secunties, as required
by the nghts of those secuniies, or as the 8oard
otherwise cansiders necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any m.ts of restrctions
and make any arrangements which 1t considers necessary
or appropriate ta deal with treasury shares, fractignal
entitlements, record dates, teqa’, regulatary or practical
prabiems i, or under the laws of, any teirtory or any other
matter, and

(i the case of the aLthor:ty granted under Resolution
1 and/ar i the case af ary sale of treasury shares
far cash, to the allotment (otherwise than uinder
paragraph (1) above) of equty secunites or sale of
treasury shares up 1o a nomnal amount of £3,966,887
{being approximately 5% of the tota. issued share
capital of the Company a5 at the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the notice of meeting),

{(b)the pawer gwven by this resolut on shall expire upon the
expiry of the authonty conferred by Resolution 11 above,
save that the Cornpany shall be entitled tc make offers of
agreements before the expiry of such power which woulg
or might require equity secunties o be aiotted after such
expiry arc the directars shall be entitled to allct equ-ty
securities pursuent to any such offer or agreement as 1t the
power conferred hereby had nat expiec

THAT the Compary be ard 1s hereny genera’ly ard
ancorditionally authonsed in accordance wit™ Sectioin 707
of the ACt to make market Jutchases (wrhin e
meani-g of Section 693(4) of the Aty of Ordirary srares
of 250 eac 1 e wapita of e Comoan, o7 such teims
and 1~ such —anner as the directors me, fram tre 1o
wme deizimiee provided that

(a) the maximum number of Grdinary shares hereby
authansed to be purchasec shai' be 14 99% of the
Company's Crainary shares it 1ssue at the date of the
ArrLal Cerere” Meeling (equiverent tg 757,911 Qrdirary
shares of 25p each at 3 une 2021, the latest pract.cab e
date pror to pubi cation of this Nelice),

(by the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any suth share shall not be more than the
higher of

(1) 105% of the average of the middle market quatations
for an Ordinary share as taken fram the London Stock
txchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the Campany
agrees o buy the shares conteined, and

(1} the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary
share in the Company on the rading venue where the
purchase 1s caftied cut at the relevant tme;

(c) the minimum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Crdinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Grdinary share, and

{d) the authanity hereby canferred shali expire at the
canclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
In 2022 (or, 1f earler, at the close of business on 27 Gclober
2022), save that the Company shall be entitied 1o enter
Into 3 contract to purchase Qrdinary shares which will, ar
may, be campteted or executed whaily ar partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase Ordinary
shares pursuant 16 such contract as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired

- THAIL with effect fiom the conclusian of this meeting,
the Articles of Associatien produced to the meeting and
initialled by the ¢harman of the meeting for the purposes of
identfication be hereby approved and adopled as the Articles
of Assoc:aticn of the Compary, :n substitution for, and fo the
exclusion of, the existing Articles of Assocation

Reqistered Oifice
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Reqistered in Ergland No. 84492 112 Hancver Street

London
W1S 1YQ
By Orcer of the Boaid

For arc on behalt of
ol fomipany Woartaos Lntad
Sec’e[af‘,

2 June 2020
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Neotice of Annuat General Meeting

The Company may not require the shareholders reguesting
any such website publication to pay its expenses In complying

NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vale at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 15 entitled to appoint one

or more proxies 1o exercise all or any of the rights of the
member (o attend. speak and vote in his or her place
Shareholders are strongly encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
person who may not be permitted to attend the AGM in the
event of restrictions or IMits on attendance. A proxy need

not be a shareholder of the Company To appaint more than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photacopied and the
name of the proxy to be appointed indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such praxy Is
appointed wn respect of. Completign and submission of a proxy
instruction will not preclude @ member from attending and
vating 1n person at the AGM (subject ta any restrictions on
physical attendance)

Ic be valid any proxy form ar other instrument appainting

a proxy must be returned by post, by courier or by hand lo
the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services
FLC, The Pavihons, Bridgwater Road, Brisiol BS99 6ZY, or
alternatively, by gomng to www.epicxyappointment.com

and following the mnstructions provided Al proxies must

be appointed by ne 1ater than 43 hours before the tme of
the AGM In the case of joint helders, where more than gne
of the joint holders purports 1c appoint a proxy, only the
appomtment subrmitted by the most seruar holder will be
accepled Semonty s determined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register
in respect of the joint halding (the first named being deemed
the most semior).

in order to be able to attend and vote al the AGM or any
adjourned meeting (ard also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes a person may casl), a person must have

fus or her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 2.30 pm on 23 July 2021 (or 6.00 pm on the
date two cays before any adjourned rreeting) Changes to
entres on the Register of Members after this ime shall be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
of vote at the meeting

voting will be conducted on a peil 3t the Meeting. On a goll
vate every shareholder will through their proxy have one vole
for every ordinary share of which he or she 15 the holder.

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to
requests made by sharehalders of the Company under Section
527 of the Campanies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish on a website a statement setting cut any malter
relating to. (1) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including
the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to
be laid before the AGM, or (11} any circurnstance conrected
with an auditar of the Campany ceasing to hold office since
the previous meeting at whith annual accounts and reparts
were laid in accordance with Section 437 of the Companies
Act 2006
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with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Acl 2006, Where
the Company 1s required to place a statement on a website
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 20086, 1t musl forward
the staterment to the Company’s auditor not ater than the
ume when 1t makes the statement available on the website.
The business which may be dealt with at the AGM In¢ludes
any statement that the Company has been iequired under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a
website

Any corporation which 1s 8 member of the Company can
appoint one of more corporate representatives wha may
exercise on 1ts behalf all of its powers as a member provided
that they do not do so in relation ta the same shares

The nght to appoint 2 proxy does not apply lo persons whose
shares are held on their behalf by another person and who
have been nominated to receive communication from the
Company In accordance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persons”) Nominated persons may have

a nght under an agreement with the registered sharehoider
who holds shares on their behalf to be appointed (or to

have someone else appointed) as a proxy Allernatively, if
nominated persons do not have such a nght, or do not wish

to exercise I, they may have a night under such an agreement
to give instiuctions 1o the person holding the shares as to the
exercise af voting rights.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electromc proxy appointment service

may do so far the AGM to be held on 27 July 2021 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual CRESI personal members of other CREST
sponsared members, and those CREST members wha have
appointed a voting service provider should refer to thewr CREST
spansors of veting service provider(s), who wili be able to
take the appropriate action on thenr behal

i crder for a proxy appointment or instruction made by
means of CREST ta be valid, the appropriate CRESI message

{3 "CRESI Proxy Instruction™ must be properly authenticated in
accordance with turoclear UK & ireland Limited’s specifications
and must contamn the information required for such
instructions, as described in the CREST Manual The message
must be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC {CREST Participant
ID: 3RAS50}, no later thar 48 hours before the time appointed
for the meetng tor this puipose, the time of receipt will

be taken to be the ume {as determined by the time stamp
applted to the message by the CREST Application Host) from
which the Company’s agent 1s able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST 1n the manner piescnbed by CRESI

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST spensor or
voting service provsder should note that Euraclear UK & Irelang
L'rited coes not make avallable special procedures in CRESI
for any particular messages
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Naormal system tmings and imitations will therefore apply

in relation to the mput of CRESI Proxy Instructions 1t 1s the
responsitifity of the CRESI member concerned to take (o, if
the (REST member 15 a (REST persanal imember ai sponsored
member or has appointed a voling service prewider, (o procure
thal fws or her CRESI sponsor or voling service provider

takes) such action as shatl be necessary to ensure that a
message is transmmtted by means of the CREST systerr by any
particular time. In this cgnnection, CREST members and, where
apphcable, their CREST sponsor of voling sefvice pravider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning practical imitations of the CREST system and
tmings the Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction In the arcumstances set cut in Regulation 35(5)(s)
of the Uncertificated Securities Requlations 2001

Any member allending the meeting (subject to any
restrictions in place at the ume of the meeting) has the night
(o ask questions The Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business being deait with at
the meeting but ng such answer need be given if (a) to do so
would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
oi inveive the disclosure of confidentialnformation; (b) the
answer has already been giver on a website 1 the form of an
answer to a question, of (¢) 1t 15 undesirable in the interests
of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the
quest ar be answered Questians of a very smilar nature may
be grouped together 1o ensure the orderly renming of the
AGM

A capy of this notice, and other information required by
seclion 311A of the Companies Act 2008, ¢an be fourd at
Www liproperty com

Members satislying the thiesholds n section 338 of the
Comparies Act 20606 may require the Company to qive, 10
members of the Company entitled to receve rotice of the
AGM, notice of a resolution which those members intend to
move (and which may properly be moved) at the AGM A
resolLtion may propefly be moved at the AGM unless

(i) 1t would, of passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of
any inconsistency with any enactment of the Company’s
corstittion or otherwise), (1) 1 1s defamatary of any persor,
or (i} s frvolous or vexatious A request made pursuant
to this nght may be 10 hard copy or eiectroric form, muyst
idenufy the resotution of which notice 15 to be given, must
be authert-cated by the person(s) makire it ane must be
rece vac by the Company not later ther six weeks before the
date of the AGM

Members salisfy ng the thresho'as . sect-an 3384 of the
Comparies Act 2006 may request the Corrpany to include

In the bLsiess to be deat wih at the AGM ary malter

{ather thar a praposed resolutior) whech may proper'y be
nciucec In the business at the AGM A malter may properly
be mcluced in the busiress 2t the AGM un.ess (1} it s
defamatory of ary persor, or {) 1115 frvc'ous or vexalous

A regLest mace purstant o this nght may be .r hard copy

or electronie forr, must idert fy the matter o be rciuded ¢
the bus mess, must te accompan.ed by a staterment settng
cul the grounds for the request, must be authert cated by the
perscn(s; making 't and must be rece ved by the Compeny rot
later thar six weeks before the date of the AGM

Biographical details of the directars are shown an pages 38
and 39 of the Annual Repoit & Accounts

" As at 3 June 2021 (bewmng the latest practicable day prior

to publication of this Notice], the issued share capital af

the Company 15 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each
1herefore, the tota! number ot voting nghts in the Company at
3 June 2027 15 317,350,980

. the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the

Management tngagement Commitiee, the Nomination
Committee, the New Articles of Association and the Letiers of
Appointment for directors will be available for inspection for
at least 15 minutes pnoy to and duting the Company's AGM.

- You may not use any electronic address prowided esther in

this Natice ar any related documents Lo cormmunicate for any
purpases ather than thase expressly stated

". The Company may process personal data of attendees at the

Annual General Meeting This may include webcasts, photos,
recording and audia and video liks, as well as ather forms
of persoral data The Carnpany shall process such personat
data i accordance with 1ts privacy policy, which can found at
hitps.//www.liproperty com/legal
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RESGLUTIONS 1, 2. AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Qirectors’ Rermuneration
Report and the declaiation: of the final dividend

the vole lo appiove the Remuneration Reparl 3 advisory only
and wili not require the Company lo alter any arrangements
detalled in the report should the resolution not be passed

The Board 1s proposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 March 2027 of 900p per ordinary share If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend an 4 August 2021
to those shareholders on the Company’s register at the close of
business on 18 June 2021

RESQLUTIONS 4, 5, &, 7. AMD 8: RE-ELECTION OF
BIRECTORS

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon Marrison,
nm Gillbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-jane
Curtis. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Cade, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves far re-election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directors contirues 1o be
effective and demonstrates their commitment to therr role.
Their biographical details, which are set out on pages 38 and

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledge to lead the
Company’s lang-term susiainable success Accordingly, the Board
uranimously recommends therr re-election

RESQLUTIONS 9 AMD 10, AUDITORS

These deal with the reappointment of the Audilors, KPMG
LLP and the authorisation for the directors tc determmine their
remuneration

RESDLUTION 11 ALLOTMENT OF SHARE (APITAL

Our Board considers 1t appropriate that an authonty be granied

to allot shares in the capital of the Campany up 10 @ Maximum
nominal amount of £26,445,915 {iepresenting approximately one
thrd of the Company’s issued share capital as at 3 June 2027,
being the latest practical date prior to publication of this Notice of
the meeting) As at the date of th:s natice the Company does not
hold any shares in treasury.

Ihe directars have no present intention of exercising this
authority end would oniy expect ta use the authorty If shares
rould be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net Assel value per
share.

Ihis authanity wll expire at the earlier of cose of business
on 27 Cotober 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual Genera,
mMeeting of the Company to be held in 2022
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RESOLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

Ihis reselution waould give the diectors the authonty to allot
shares (or sell any shares which the Company efects to hald
In treasury) for cash without first offering them to existing
shareholders in praportion to their existing shareholdings

Ihis authonty would be limited to allotrments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive affers and offers ta halders of
other equity secunties if required by the nghts of thase shares
of as the board atherwise considers nacessary, of atherwise up
to an aggiegate nommal amaunt of £3,966,887 This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total 1ssued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 202, the latest practicable date
prcr to publication of this Notice. In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm thewr intention to follow
the provisions of the Pre-tmption Group's Statement of Principles
regarding curnulative usage of authonties within a relling
3-year penod where the Prinuiples provide that usage in excess
of 7.5% should not take place withaut priar consultation with
shareholders.

The authonty wili expire at the earlier of close of business on
2/ October 2022 and the conclusicn of the Annuai General
Meeting of the Campany to be held in 2022.

RESQLUTION 13: AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
DURCHASES OF THE COMPAMY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held in 2020, 8 special resciution was proposed and
passed, giving the directgrs authonty, until the conclusion of the
AGM In 2G21, to make market purchases of the Company’s own
issued shares up ta a maximum of 14.99% of the 1ssued share
capial

Your Board 1s proposing that they shouid be given renewed
autharity t¢ purchase Ordinary shares in the market. Your

Board believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropriale limes and prices is a suitable method of enhanang
sharehotder value The Company would, within quidelines set
from time 1o time by the Board, make either a single purchase or
3 series of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders

where purchases are made al prices below the prevailing Net
Asset alue per share, this will enhance the Net Asset Value

for the remaiming sharehoiders 1t s therefore intended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset Value
your Board considers that it will be most advantageous to
shareholders for the Campany to be able toc make such purchases
as and when 1t considers the timing to be favourable and
therefore does not propose to set a tmetable for making any
suck purchases

The Cocmpanies {Acquisiion of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Requlations 2003 enable companies i the United Kirgdorr to
hald ir treasury any of thes own shares they have purchased
wilh a view to possible resale at a future date, rather than
cancelling them !f the Company does re-purchase any of ils
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shares, the directors do not currently intend to hold any of the
shares re purchased in tieasuiy Ihe shares so re-purchased will
continue 1o be cancelled

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty hmit the maximum
price {exclusive of expenses) which may be pard foi any such
share 1t shall not be more than the higher of:

{1} 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an
Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily
oificial List for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the Company agrees ta buy shares
concerned; and

(1) the tugher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for an Qrdinary share in
the Cornpany on the tiading venue where the purchase is
carried out

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share (being the nominal value) 1he Listing Rules also imit

a listed company to purchases of shares representing up to
15% of its 1ssued share capital in the market pursuant fo a
general authonty such as this kor this reason, the Company s
limiting 1ts authonty te make such purchases 0 14 99% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares In 1ssue at the date of the AGM, this
15 equivalent to 47570,511 Ordinary shares of 25p each {nominai
value £11,892,727) at 3 June 2021, the fatest practicable date
priar to publication this Notice. the authority wel fast until the
Annual Gereral Meeting of the Company to be helg in 2022

RESOLLTION 17 ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSOUIATION

Resolution 14 relates Lo the adoption of new Articles of
Association (the "New Articles”) in order to update the
Campary’s current Articles of Associatian (the “Current Articies”),
which were acopled on 14 Qecember 2072 1he New Articles
reflect developments in best practice, and provide addibanal
clanficaten and flexibsiity the main changes ir the New Articles
are summarsed 10 the Appendix on pages 106 and 107. Other
thanges, which are of a munor, techrical or dantying nature have
rot heen noted in the Appendix. The New Artices showing 2li
the charges to the Current Articles are available for nspection,
at www tiproperty com and wilt aisc be gvailable at the Apnua
Gerierai Meeting

RECOMMEMDATION

Your 20ard believes that the resoictions cortained r this Notice
of Arrua Gereral Meeting are in the Lest interesis of the
Company and shareholders a5 a whole and recoirmends that you
vote -n favour of them as your Girectors intend to da o respect of
therr beneficiz skareboldings

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company'’s articles of association

sigma Shases and Deferren $hares

The New Articles amend the Current Articles to remave
provisions and references relating to S1igma Shares and Deferred
Shares 1his reflects that on 14 December 2012 all Sigma Shares
were (onsolidated and redesignated as Ordinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company for
canceliation The Company nowe has o siyle clgss of Ordinary
Shares.

Untraced sharshoiders

the New Articles amend the pasition in relation 10 untraced
sharehalders Rather than requiring the Company to lake oul
two newspaper advertisements, the New Articles require the
Company to use reasonable efforts to trace the shareholder.
‘Reasonable efforts’ to trace a sharehalder may include, if
considered appropriate, the Company engaging a professianal
asset reunificalion company or other racing agent to search for
a shareholder who has not kept their shareholder details up to
date

In addition, the New Articles provide that money fram the sale
of the shares of an untiaced shareholder witl be forfested 1t not
clarmed after two years, rather than six years

These changes reflect best practice and pravide the Company
with appropriate flexibility in connection with locating untraced
shareholders

Suly divisinn of shases

The New Articies clanfy that any shares resulting from a sub
division of the Company's existing shares may, in addion to
having any preference ar advantage as compared with the
Company’s other shares, also have deferred or other rights 1his
charge rrakes administering any sub-divisior of shares maie
straightforward

Qearatier of goner ! meetings

Ihe New Articles cantain specific provisiens to clanfy that the
Company <an hold “hybnd” generai meetings (-ncluding annual
general meetings) and ta set out how such meetings are 1o
be conducted Under the dlew Articles, the Company may hold
“hybrid” general meetings In such a way that enables members
to attend and participate in the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electronic facilty Voting at hybr:d meetings will, by default, be
decided on a potfl Hybnid meetings may be adjourned in the
event of a technological failure

The New Articles allow the Company, where appropriate, to make
changes to the arrangements for general meetings (including the
irtroguction, charge o cancellation of election-c faciites) after
nolice of the meeting hias been 1ssued The Company may give
notice of any such changes in any manner considered approprate
(rather than via an acvertisement In twa national newspapers)
The New Articles aiso exglcitly allow the Company to introduce
health and safety arrangemerts at its meefings

These changes were introduced to provide the 3oard gieater
Hexihility tu align wath technologica! advances, changes in
investor sentiment and evalving best practice, particularly im kght
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of the Covid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duratian of socal
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings 1he Board
believes that hybnid meetings will aliow for greater sharehalder
and stakeholder engagement over the coming years in a way
that 15 more convenient for all parties. Absent exceplional
circumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company In person.
'n line with the views expressed by the Investrment Assocation
and Institutional Sharehaolder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an electionic basis, so
a physicat meeting will still be required In deciding whether and
how to hold a hybnd general meeting ini future, the Company
will have regard to the views of shareholders and institutional
governance badies at the relevant time as well as to relevant
guidance or codes of best practice

The New Articles also specifically refer to the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of overflow
rooms Satellite meetings are legally valid even withaut such a
provision but it has been added for clanty

These changes are pnmarily contamed in articles 47, 48, 50
and 53 in the New Articles, A number of other consequential
amendments have been made tc the New Articles.

Gbjections or Errass o Yobing

In relation to the stalitory requirement that a proxy must vote
In accardance with any mstruchions given by the member by
whom the proxy ss appointed, the New Arficles state explicitly
that the company 1s not required to check that prexies and
corporate representatives have voted in accordance weth therr
instructions or that their faillure to do so would vitiate the result
of a shareholder vote

Murnbed of directens
The New Articles reflect the statutory mimimum of two directors,
and introduce a maximum of 10 directors.

Reappainument of directuis

In fine with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require direciors to retire (and should
they wish to remains In office, seek re-election) at each annual
general meeting 1his requirement does not apply to directors in
therr fisst year of appointment wha were appainted in the period
between the AGM notice being 1ssued and the AGM itself This
confirms existing Company praclice.

Diraciois fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggregate of all fees paid

to directors shall not exceed £250 000 per annum Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £300,000 ta reflect the
amourt approved by rescluticn of the Company an 22 July 2014

Bonaving Puwers

The New Articles include in the defimtion of “barrowings” the
minority preportion of moneys boticwed by a member of the
graup and owing o a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
(with "the mironity proportion” meaning a proportion equal tc
the proportion of the 1ssued share capital of a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which 1s not altnbutabie to a member of
the group)
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Forfpiture of woctauned dividends

lhe Current Articles provide that if a dividend or other payment
due to members has not been claimed for twelve vears after
being declared or becoming due, 1t will be forferted to the
Company Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this penod from
twelve 10 SIX years

Payments of dividends and other amounts

The New Articles give the Board greater flexibitty to determine
the appropnate method(s) it pays dividends {and other sums}
1o shareholders 1his flexibility will help the Board take account
aof developments in market practice and keep down the
administrative cost of making payments The New Articles

also provide that where a paymenl cannat be made because

a shareholder has not prowvided valid account detalls Lo the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed untl the
shareholder provides those details

Capitai Reserve

Ihe New Articles remmave Article 132 10 the Old Articles, which
was included to ensure that the company qualifies as an
investrment trust and s trealed as an investment company
Following the modermisation of the investment tiust regime and
amendments t¢ legislation abalishing the restrciion on the ability
to distribute capital profits, ths provision s no longer necessary

Strafegic report ang supplamantiry materiag

the Companies Act 2006 ard the Companies (Receipt of Accounts
and Reports) Requlatiens 2013 allow the Company to send a copy
of its strategic repart with supplementary matenal instead of

its fuil accounts to a member who has elected of tacitiy agreed
ta recerve these documents, provided that the Company 15 net
prohibited from doing sg 10 its art cles. Article 129 15 intended ta
make 1t clear there 1s o such prohibiticn Sharehalders should
note that they can always view the full anneal report or the
Campany’s website or request a hard copy frgm the Company's
reqistrar
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vender Neuny Draftng
Ihe New Afticles arrend the Current Articies so that gercer
neutral language 15 Lsed

Gapary

Other changes which are of a minor, technical or danfying nature
or which have beer made to remove pravisiors 'n the Current
Articles which duplicate English company taw zre not nated.
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Ihe half year results are announced in late Navember. The full
year fesuits are announced in early June
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Ihe AGM 15 held in London n July
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Dividends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares as follows

intenm January
binal: August

- R I S e
[IPREES IhE SRS R B

Dwidends can be pard te shareholders by means of BACS
{Bankers’ Aulomated Cleanng Serwices); mandate farms for

this purpose are avallable from the Registrar Alternatively,
shareholders can write to the Registrar {the address 1s qiven on
page 108 of this repart) ta give ther instructions, these must
include the bank account nurnber, the bank account title and the
soit code of the bank 1o which payments are to be made

e e e
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TR Property Investment ltust plc offers shareholders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the Company thiough
the DRIP Please nole that foilowing Brexit sharehalders i turape
are no longer able ta participate wn the DRIP DRIP forms may

be obtained from Comrputershare Irvaestor Services PLC thiough
their secure website www investorcentre co uk, or by phenirg
0370 707 1694 Charges do apply, deaing commission of 0 75%
{subject to a mirimum of £2 50) Govemnment stamp duty of

G 5% also applies

The market prices of the Compary’s skares are publ'shed caily

in The finarcial imes Some of the nformatior 15 published in
other leading newspapers. [he Financal Times aise shaws figures
for the estimatec Net Asset Yaues ang the discounts appicable

'SIN GBODO90&4097
SEDOL 0906409
Bloomrberg TRYLN
Reuters TRY L
Datastream 1RY

Betaiis of the herchmadri are green in the Sirateqic Repot
or page 24 cf this Repert and Accounts The bencrarark irgex s
pubhshed daly ard car be found on Bloomiers,

FISE EPRA/NAREIT Deve'cpeg burcpe Capped Net Tota!
Keturr nidex 0 Ster ng
S'comberg TRCRAG 'rdex

wr

[ e o

Details of the market price and Net Asset Value of the
Gidinary shares can be found on the Company’s website at
www Irproperty com

Shareholders who hold thewr shares in certificated form can check
their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare lnvestor Services
PLC, via www investorcentie co uk. Please note that to gain
dccess tu your detaits on the Compotershare site you will need
the holder reference nurnber stated on the top left hand carner of
your share certilicate

v
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Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents issued
by the Company are avallable from the Company Secretary If
needed, copies can be made avaiable in a vanety of formats,
ncluding Braille, audic tape of larger type as approprate

You can contact the Regustral, Compulershare Inveslor Sepvices
PLC. which has instatled textphones fo allow speech and heaning
impaired people who have their own textphone lo contact

them diectly, without the need for an iptermediate operator, by
dialing G870 702 G005, Specially trained operatars are avavable
dunng nofmat business hours to answer queries via this service

Alterratively, if you prefer 10 go through a ‘typetalk operatar
{provided by the Roval Nabonat institute for Deal People) you
should dial 18001 foilowed by the number you wish to dial
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DY

where notification has been provided in advance, the Campany
will arrange lor copies of shareholder communications to be
provided to the aperators of nominee accounts Nominee
Investars may attend general meetings and speak at imeetings
when Invited to do so by the Chairman

LR P

Upon a disposal of all ar part of a sharehalded's holding of
urdinary shares, the impact on the sharehalder’s capital gains
tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in 2007 and the
redesignation 1o Grdinary shares in 2012 should be considered.

In respect of the conversion tg Sigma 1n 2007, agreement
was reathed with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC”) to base
the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost on

the proportion of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007,

Therefore, if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007, the
capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be equal 1o 20% of the original capital gains tax base tost
of the Ordinary shares that they held pre-conversion. the base
cost of their remaining halding of Ordinary shares wouid then be
30% of the original capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary
shares held pre-conversion,

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares inlo Ordinary
shares in December 2012, a further shareholder’s agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains tax
base cast in therr new Grdinary shares should be equivalent to
their capital gains base cost 10 the pre-existing Sigma shares
{1e ther capital gans base cost under the existing agreement 1t
applicable).

It in doubt as lo the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders should consutt with therr own professional advisors

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Ihe shares of 1R Praperty Investment Trust plc are histed and
traded an the London Stock Exchange Investars may purchase
shares through ther stockbrokes, bank or osher hipancial
wtermediary

R e AT A R

Investors may hald their investment in certificated torm Our
registrars, Cornputershare operate a deaing service which enabies
Investars o buy and sell shares guickly and easily anline without
a bioker of the need to cpen 3 trading account Altermatively the
investor Lentre allows mvestars to manage partfolios quickly and
securely, update detarts and view balances without annuai charges
Further details are avaifablie by contacting Computershare on 0370
707 1355 or visit www computershare com.

i Praoperty investment Trust plc now offers shareholders the
opportunity io purchase further shares in the company through
the Dividend Re investment Plan {"DRIP”) through the reqistrar,
Computershare, Shareholders can obtain further infermation on
the DRIP thiough ther secure website www ipvestorcentre co vk,
or by phoming 0370 707 1694 Charges a0 apply Please note

that to gan access to your details or reqistar far the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the halder reference number
stated on the top lett hand comer of your share ceificate

A number of banks and wealth management arganisations

pravide Savings Schemes and 15As through which UK clients can
invest 1N TR Property lnvestmenrt 11ust plc.

ISA and savings scherre providers do charge dealing ard cther
fees for operating the accounts, and investors shouid read the
Terms and Conditans pravided by these comparnies and ensure
that the charges best suit therr pianned nvestment profile Mest
schemes catry annuai charges but these vary between provider
and preduct Where dealing charges apgly, 10 some (ases these
are apphed as a percentage of funds invested and others as a
flat charge The optimum way 1o hold the shares will be different
for each investar depending upor. the frequency and size of
investments (o be made.

Details are given below of two prowiders offerng shares in
TR Property Investment Irust, but there are many other options.

Irteractive mvestor provide and admirister e range of seif se'ect
nvestmert pians, Including tax-advantaged 1SAs and SIPPS
(seil-Invested Personai Pension), ana Trad'ng Accaunts

For mose information, irlerachve investor cap be contacted or
£345 607 6001, ar by wisthing https /w160 uk/

Irteractive nvestor offer nvestors i IR Property and other
investment rysts a free cpt-r orine shareho'der voting ard
ielarmat.on service that enabies \nvestars tg recave sharehaider
rommur-catiors and. i they wish, to vate or the shareboidirgs
held r the.r account

TR Property 15 aisc or the \ntetactive super 60 rated | st

BMOC cffer a nuimber of Prvate ‘rvestar Plans, 'rvestrrant Trust
ana jumof 15As and Chooren’s rvestmert Plans Investrments
c2r be mace as lurep sLms of thigugh requla savings kof mere

nformation see inside the back cover BMO can be contacted on
0800 136 420, of vist www bmogam.com

Please remember that the value of your investments and any
Income from them may go down as well as up Past performance
15 nat & guide to future perfarmance You may not gel back

the amount that you invest if you are x any doubt as to the
sutability of & plan or any investrment avadable within a plan,
please take professional advice

T T O VN T T P
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Following the acquisiion of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
nvestor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred 1o the
interactive investor platform an 14th Gctaber 2019

In 2012 BNP Panbas dosed down the pari of then business that
operated Savings Schemes and ISAs Investars were given the
chawce of transferring their schemes to Alliance Trust Savings
("A1S") of to a prowider of their own choice, or to close theyr
accounts and sell the holdings.

if mvestors did ot respand to the letters rom BNP Faribas, therr
accounts were transterred to ATS

totlowing the acquisition of Alliance iryst Savings by miteractive
investor, ATS self directed accourts wele transferred to the
interactive wnvestor platform on 14 October 2015

Sharehoidess 1n a rember of Investrnent Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed

of an apporturity to sell their shaies as the company 15

subject to a takeover bid This 1s not true and 1s an allempt to
defraud shareholders The share fraud alsc seeks payment of 3
“tommussion” by shareholders ta the part'es carrying out the fraud

Shareholders should remain alert to this type of scam ard treat
with suspscicn any contact by telephone offering an attractive
Investment opoeriunity, such as 3 premium price for your shares,
or an attempt 1o convince you that payment is requiced n order
ta release a seitiement far your shares These frauds may alsa
ofter (o sell your shaies in companies which have hittle or no
value or may cffer you bonus shares These so called “bailer
foam” scams can aiso 'Pvolve an atternpt to obtan your perscna
anc/or banking information with which to commit identity fraud

Tre caller may be fnendly anc reassur.ng of they may take a
more uigert tone, encouraging you to act guickly atherwise you
could lose rmoney of muss oul on a deal

It you have heer contacted by ar unauthorsed hirm regarging
youl skares the FCA would iike to hear from yeu You cap repost
an unauthonsed firm using the FCA helpline or D800 117 6768 or
by visiting e websile, which a'so has other vseful nformaton
al wwiw fra org uk

dyou recewve 2ny LhsGeoted ipvestment adv (e T ake sure you
get the coirect narre ¢f the gerson arc orgarisatcn 1f the cals
pers'st, hano up «f you cearw.ih ap uracthcrsed o, you w.
rot be engbre o receve payrent urger the knpanc al Setvees
Ccmpensaticn Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone calls of such a nature to
shareholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST




BMO 15A

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with a lump sum from £100 or reguiar
savings from £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing 15As to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO JUNIGR 154 {JiSA)

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 luinp sum or
£25 a month. }ISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO LIFETIME 15A (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. nvest
with a lump sum from £100 or reqular savings from
£25 a month.

BMO CHILD TRUST FUND {4177

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, frem £100 fump sum or £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

EMO GENFRAL INVESTMENT ALLOUNT (1A}
This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments ¢an be made from
£100 lump sum or £25 a month.

MO JUNIGR INVESTMENT ACCOUNT {310}
This is a flexible way to save for a child in our

range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust {where the child is noted as the beneficial
ownes) of kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 8 month per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.
“the (T and 154 scoounts die operes by parents v the chig’s name

ard they bave dccess to the money at age "8 " “Lalls may be recorded or
rrofitered for ramnny ard cuahity puiposes

BMOQO 9
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Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan.

AMMAAL VIO
© ot E60+VAI
v £40+VAT
T+ E£25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
(v addition to any annual subscripticn imits)

DEVEING CHARGE
£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deals placed through the online 8M0

Investor Partal) for ISA/GIA/LISA/)IA and ISA Ihere are no dealing
charges on a CIF

Dealing charges apply when shaies are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the ivestment of monthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0 5% alsa ¢ppltes on the purchase of
shaies (where applicahte}

The value of investiments can go down as well as up and you may

not get back your orginal investment. tax benefits depend on your
individual arcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change
Please ensure you have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key teatures documents before investing. kor
regulatory purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related 1o the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Docurments (KIDs) for the investment trusts
you want to invest into

KRR N

To open a new BMQ ptan, apply online al bmogam.com/apply

Orhine applications are not available if you are transternng an existing
plan with anather provider to BMQ, or If you ate applying for a new
pian in more than one name but paper applications are avaifable at
brmainvestments co.uk /dacuments ar by contacting BMO

AP S RS
Call: T

Email: A e
e TN

Call:

Ematt:

By post

You can also nvest in the trust through onhne deahling platforms for
piivate investors that offer share dealing and 1SAs Companies include-
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

broinvestments.co uk
§ facebock.com/bmaoinvestmentsuk

(1345 600 3030, 900am - 5.00pm, weekdays, calls may be recorded
or monitared far training and quality purposes

BMO Asset Managemer! Lmited 1s athensea and regulated by the Rirencei Corduct Authonty dnd s @ memten of BMO 10bal Asset Maragemert EmMEA of waich the

utimate parent company 1s the Benk ot Montree! 737510 156 _05/21 LK
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TR Property Investment
Trust plc is managed by

BMO M | A part of BMO Financial Group




